Public Document Pack

CYNGOR
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir Fflint
Chief Officer (Governance) - . .
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) Flintshire
COUNTY COUNCII

To: Clir Aaron Shotton (Leader)

. . . . CS/ING
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell,

Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, 11 February 2015
Kevin Jones and Billy Mullin

Nicola Gittins 01352 702345
nicola.gittins@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the CABINET will be held in the CLWYD COMMITTEE ROOM,
COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on TUESDAY, 17TH FEBRUARY, 2015 at 9.30
AM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

e

T

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 14)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting.



TO CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING REPORTS

STRATEGIC REPORTS

COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 (Pages 15 - 76)

Report of Chief Executive, Chief Officer (People and Resources), Corporate
Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 AND INDICATIVE
FUNDING (Pages 77 - 96)

Report of Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Organisational Change), Corporate
Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2015/16 & CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2015/16 (Pages 97 - 122)

Report of Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise),
Corporate Finance Manager - Cabinet Member for Housing, Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Finance

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015/16 (Pages 123 - 148)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

QUEENSFERRY CAMPUS PROJECT - PAUSE & REVIEW (Pages 149 -
160)

Report of Chief Officer (Education and Youth) - Cabinet Member for Education

OPERATIONAL REPORTS

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION 2015/16 POLICY (Pages 161 - 166)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance



10

11

12

13

14

15

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH 8) (Pages 167 - 198)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATE POLICIES FOR 2015-16 (Pages 199
- 204)

Report of Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) - Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 AND 2017/18 AND REVISION OF
THE 2014/15 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS (Pages 205 - 214)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager - Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Finance

GREENFIELD VALLEY HERITAGE LOTTERY PROJECT (Pages 215 - 226)

Report of Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) - Deputy Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Member for Environment, Cabinet Member for Education

CHANGING TIMES: HELPING FLINTSHIRE'S TOWN CENTRES ADAPT
TO A CHANGING WORLD - RECOMMENDATIONS (Pages 227 - 230)

Report of Member Engagement Manager

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS
None to report.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT
AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

The following items were scheduled to be reported to this meeting but are not
included on the agenda for the following reason:

e Vehicle Tracking Policy
Deferred to May to allow the impact of Business Planning proposals to
be considered.

e Enforcement of the environmental powers under the Anti-Social
Behaviours, Crime and Policing Act 2014
Deferred to March as additional information required.






Agenda Iltem 3

CABINET
20 JANUARY 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet of Flintshire County Council held at County
Hall, Mold on Tuesday, 20 January 2015

PRESENT: Councillor Aaron Shotton (Chair)
Councillors: Bernie Attridge, Chris Bithell, Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine
Jones and Kevin Jones

APOLOGY:
Councillor: Billy Mullin

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Chief Officer (Education
and Youth), Chief Officer (Governance), Chief Officer (People and Resources), Chief
Officer (Organisational Change), Chief Officer (Organisational Change), Chief Officer
(Planning and Environment), Chief Officer (Social Services), Corporate Finance
Manager and Team Manager — Committee Services

ALSO PRESENT:
Councillors: Ron Hampson, Carolyn Thomas and Arnold Woolley

102. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors Helen Brown, Derek Butler, Christine Jones, Kevin Jones and
Aaron Shotton declared a personal interest in agenda item number 5 — School
Modernisation Strategy.

103. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 December 2014 had been circulated
with the agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

104. 2015/16 COUNCIL FUND BUDGET SETTING PROCESS UPDATE

The Chief Executive delivered a presentation on the 2015/16 Council Fund
Budget Setting Process which covered the following areas:

Content

National Position

Revised Local Position

Impacts of 14-15 on 15-16

Strategy to Close the Extended Gap
Up to Date Strategy Position
Remaining Strategy Actions

Page 5



105.

Big Budget Conversation

Member Involvement

Overview and Scrutiny

Final Steps in the Budget

Medium Term Financial Plan Review

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance expanded upon the forthcoming
consultation process which would be taking place with Overview and Scrutiny
Committees over the following two weeks before consideration by County Council on
17 February 2015. He added that the authority maintained its position to protect local
services and facilities wherever possible. However, if similar cuts were experienced
in future years, services could become unsustainable. He stressed the importance of
Community Asset Transfer options coming to fruition, full details of which were in a
report for consideration at this meeting. On consequential funding, he expressed his
disappointment that no further funding had been made available to local authorities in
Wales.

RESOLVED:
That the presentation be received and the update position be noted.

SCHOOL MODERNISATION STRATEGY

The Cabinet Member for Education introduced the updated ‘Strategy for the
Modernisation of Flintshire Schools’.

Details of a number of school organisation projects which had been
undertaken since the original Strategy was introduced, which increased efficiency
and effectiveness within the school system, were outlined in the report.

Work had also progressed well on the 21st Century Schools Band A projects at
Holywell and Connah’s Quay. The John Summers project was subject to current
pause and review.

He explained that it was the responsibility of local authorities to manage the
supply of school places and whilst the level of surplus places in Flintshire was similar
to the Welsh average, it was significantly higher than the advice from the Wales Audit
Office (WAOQO) and the Welsh Government (WG) target, both of which were 10%. A
target of 10% meant that resources could be focused on teaching and learning
instead of the upkeep of buildings and leadership and administrative costs that were
inefficient.

The Chief Officer (Education and Youth) added that the key drivers for school
modernisation and reorganisation included the need to address:
e Educational improvement
Resilient school leadership
Securing suitable learning and working environments
Addressing unfilled places
Addressing diminishing revenue resources

Page 6



106.

The Cabinet Member for Education explained that strategies would continue to
be developed to ensure that the authority was providing school places that were fit
for purpose in the 21st century.

RESOLVED:
That the updated School Modernisation Strategy be approved.

COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment provided an update
on the development and implementation of the Council’'s approach to Community
Asset Transfer (CAT).

Public assets owned by Flintshire County Council were one of its major
strengths. However, the Council must balance the requirement to dispose of surplus
or underutilised assets to provide funding for its capital programme with the need to
regenerate local communities and encourage social enterprise through the
alternative use of its buildings and land assets. Community ownership could play a
part in enhancing the local environment and providing opportunities for all sectors of
the community.

Assets that were considered suitable for transfers included playing fields, play
areas, community centres, youth centres, allotments, sports grounds, pavilions and
libraries.

Interest expressed to date included a total of 20 proposals for over 40 assets
which had been agreed to proceed to stage 2. The next stage would be to produce a
business case which was expected to take six months. In addition, a total of 47
informal enquiries had also been received from Town and Community Councils,
community organisations and individuals relating to 195 assets which covered 21
Town and Community Council areas.

The stage 2 decision would be a formal decision that committed the Council to
an Asset Transfer subject to completion of legal agreements. Therefore the decision
making needed to be formal and in line with Council policy. It was proposed that the
initial mechanism be a recommendation panel with one representative Member from
the Council and Flintshire Local Voluntary Council (FLVC), supported by council
officers. Recommendations from the panel would then be brought back for formal
ratification by the Council and authority given at that stage to enter into legal
agreements. It was proposed that the Cabinet Member for Environment be the
Council representative on the panel which should meet every three months.

The Chief Officer (Organisational Change) explained the approach and
methodology of the CAT strategy as follows:
e Stage 1 — Expression of Interest: This could be made by an individual
or community group
e Stage 2 — Business Model Application: This could only be made by a
community group and was the formal application stage of the process

Page 7



107.

e Stage 3 — Completion and Transfer of Asset: The final stage in the
process which would be between the Council and an appropriate
organisation

In response to a question from the Cabinet Member for Education, the Chief
Officer (Organisational Change) explained that Town and Community Councils were
being encouraged to act as facilitators in their areas with a view to other
organisations and groups getting involved.

The Chief Officer (Governance) responded to a further question and explained
that there was sufficient capacity within the Legal Services team to undertake the
work on the legal agreements as each one would be similar and not bespoke.

The Chief Executive explained that services were protected for 2015/16 which
provided time for Town and Community Councils, community organisations and
individuals to express an interest for 2016/17. The Leader concurred and said by
allowing more time for expressions of interest to be shown, communities would
understand the implications of what would be at risk if CATs were not considered.
He added that the level of interest shown in a short time period, since November,
was encouraging and demonstrated that discussions were taking place in
communities.

RESOLVED:
That the appointment of the Cabinet Member for Environment be approved to sit on
the Panel which will make recommendations in relation to all stage two business

models.

INTERMEDIATE CARE FUND (ICF)

The Cabinet Member for Social Services provided an overview of the projects
delivered by the Intermediate Care Fund (ICF) and the opportunities to scrutinise the
outcomes that had been delivered.

Full details of the projects which had been delivered following the funding
received were detailed in the report, which included: provision of step up/step down
beds in residential care homes; purchase of a dementia assessment bed; increasing
staff resource; extending specialist dementia care in the community; end of life care;
equipment; aids and adaptations; enhanced pharmacy support within the community;
falls prevention; dementia community support service; intermediate care support
service; healthy homes for discharge project; hoarding tendencies support project;
neurotherapy centre; support at night; conversion of a property for short term
intermediate care accommodation and development of extra care.

Also detailed in the report were case studies which provided real life examples
of how ICF funding had made a difference to people’s lives.

The ICF was designed to be one year funding for 2014/15 and Welsh

Government (WG) had confirmed that the Fund would cease on 31 March 2015.
There was a degree of flexibility in funding projects until the end of April to ensure

Page 8



108.

that projects were appropriately closed and support finalised for people who had
already started a short term service. Regional work was underway to identify critical
ICF projects where it was considered that the end of the project would have a
significant adverse impact on the delivery of effective intermediate care. In Flintshire,
these had been identified as:

e Step up/Step down provision and the associated investment in in-reach

support staff to enable people to return back to the community

e The falls prevention project

e The palliative support project and associated nursing support

e A regional project for minor adaptation and equipment

Those projects had been communicated to BCUHB so there was an
opportunity for dialogue aligned to the development of their three year plan. In
addition, potential funding opportunities could continue to be explored from WG.

RESOLVED:

(a)  That the report be noted including the progress made with the effective use of
the Intermediate Care Fund; and

(b)  That given the importance of early success of the priority services which have
been recognised by BCUHB, other partners and Flintshire County Council, the
case should be made to Welsh Government for continuing financial support
when new funding possibilities arise.

FLINTSHIRE COAST PARK PROPOSALS

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment presented a
prospectus for a Flintshire Coast Park which detailed the strategic direction of
recreation and access along the Dee Estuary following completion of the Wales
Coast Path.

The prospectus featured six hubs whereby people could access and enjoy the
coast. The Wales Coast Path and cycle path provided a common thread between
hubs, providing walkers and visitors with a flavour of the Flintshire coast. The
distinctive character of each hub would give a rich and memorable experience but
would be set in a common theme of branding to give continuity along the county’s
coast.

The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) explained that engagement
work would be required as projects were promoted within communities. The vision
would enable positive environmental benefits through managed access to the Dee
Estuary and coast.

RESOLVED:
That the concept of the Flintshire Coast Park be endorsed and it be recommended

that Council seeks to take forward potential key projects within the area to support its
priorities and objectives.

Page 9



109.

110.

TRANSPORT PRIORITIES AND THE REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment provided an update
on the progress made to refresh the Regional Transport Plan (RTP) and sought
approval for the document to be approved by the Taith Board.

In line with Welsh Government (WG) Guidelines, the Plan demonstrated how
transport would deliver the Programme for Government, with a focus on maximising
the benefits from WG investment. Once approved, the RTP would become a
statutory document that would sit alongside the Local Development Plan (LDP) and
other strategic document policies and plans for each of the local authorities.

The document had been subjected to a period of consultation with the final

version taking account, where possible, of the comments received during the
consultation period.

The finalised RTP would be presented to the Taith Board for approval before
submission to WG at the end of January 2015.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the progress made to refresh the Regional Transport Plan (RTP) be
noted and the document be submitted to the Taith Board for approval; and

(b)  That the local transport priorities within the RTP be approved, noting the
comments received during the consultation period.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH 7)

The Corporate Finance Manager provided Members with the latest revenue
budget monitoring information for 2014/15 for the Council Fund and Housing
Revenue Account based on actual income and expenditure as at Month 7 and
projected forward to year-end based on the most up to date information available.

The projected year-end position, as estimated at Month 7 was:

Council Fund
e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.821M lower than budget.
This included variances on pay
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2015 of £3.762

Housing Revenue Account
e Netin year expenditure forecast to be £0.083M less than budget
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2015 of £1.249M

The report provided details on corporate and functional efficiencies, workforce
efficiencies, inflation and monitoring budget assumptions and risks.

Page 10



111.

On unearmarked reserves and the current projected outturn at Month 7, the
projected balance on the contingency reserve at 31 March 2015 was £3.762M, full
details of which were contained in Appendix 4 to the report.

The position at Month 7 on the HRA was an overall projected underspend of
£0.083M and a projected closing balance at Month 7 of £1.249M, which at 4.15% of
total expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.
Appendix 5 to the report provided details of the reasons for significant variances.

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment asked for
consistency with the headings used for the Revenue Budget reports which were
submitted to both Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee which was agreed.

RESOLVED:

(@)  That the report be noted; and

(b)  That the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31 March 2015 be
noted (note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue

Account).

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME

The Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise) introduced the report which
explained the requirement to adopt the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) for
2015/16 by 31 January 2015.

Within the Regulations made under Schedule 1B of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, there was limited discretion given to the Council to apply
additional elements that were more generous than the national scheme, details of
which were outlined in the report. The Council’s recommended approach to the
available discretions were to continue to apply them as follows:

1. Not to increase the “extended payment period” to more than four weeks
when an applicant starts work. This rule acted as a good incentive
measure under CTRS and it made sense to maintain it in line with the
Housing Benefits (HB) Extended Payment Rules, which were also set
at four weeks. The projected cost of this measure for 2014/15 was
£20,098 and the approximate cost for 2015/16 would be £20,700.

2. To continue to disregard all War Disablement and War Widows
Pensions as income. The projected cost of this measure for 2014/15
was £42,870 and the approximate cost for 2015/16 would be £44,156.

3. To maintain the standard three month backdating provisions for working
age customers when a good reason for failing to claim earlier was
shown. This reflected the current position with regard to CTRS and HB.
The projected cost of this measure for 2014/15 was £62,502 and the
approximate cost for 2015/16 would be £64,377.

Page 11



112.

113.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the laying of The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Prescribed
Requirements and Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2015
be noted; and

(b)  That the Scheme as set out in 3.02 of the report be adopted and the
recommendations agreed to maintain the current discretionary elements.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REPORT 2014/15

The Corporate Finance Manager presented the draft Treasury Management
Mid-Year Report for 2014/15 for recommendation to Council.

Treasury Management updates had been provided to the Audit Committee at
each quarterly meeting during 2014/15 and a Mid Year update was also submitted to
the Audit Committee on 10 December 2014.

RESOLVED:

That the Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2014/15 be approved and
recommended to Council.

ENERGY SWITCHING SCHEME

The Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Environment advised on the
opportunities relating to energy switching and energy advice. Information was
provided on the resulting Welsh Government's sponsored collective switching
scheme called Cyd Cymru and a nomination was sought for somebody to sign the
related charter to support the scheme in Flintshire.

The Chief Officer (Planning and Environment) explained that Cyd Cymru had
concluded two fuel switches and the processes and procedures worked well and
without incident. The current scheme was open for registrations and would close on
1 March 2015. Those who had registered would have until 16 March 2015 to confirm
whether or not they wanted to switch.

Residents on prepayment meters could participate in the switch with tariffs
offered based on what the resident entered as their preferred billing method.

The Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance suggested that the Cabinet
Member for Environment be nominated to sign the charter and provide a statement of
support which was agreed.

RESOLVED:

(a)  That the initiative be supported and the Cabinet Member for Environment be
nominated to sign the charter and provide a statement of support; and

Page 12



114.

115.

(b)  That the engagement packs be utilised by Members (when available) to
promote the Cyd Cymru fuel switching scheme and promote energy efficiency
when doing so.

CHILDREN’S SERVICES FORUM

The Cabinet Member for Education sought approval to amend the
membership of the Children’s Services Forum.

The membership of the Forum had been extended to include a secondary
school headteacher and had benefitted from the knowledge, experience and input
from that representative. It was the view of the Forum that extending the
membership to include headteacher representation from the primary sector would
further inform the Forum, and afford direct links to the primary sector.

The addition of a representative from an independent professional advocacy
service had also been considered by the Forum and it had been agreed that the
extension of the membership to include this would positively support the Forum in its
remit.

Both of the representatives would have full voting rights and would be formally
co-opted by the Children’s Services Forum. Terms of office would be four years with
representatives being able to serve for an unlimited number of terms of office, subject
to reselection.

RESOLVED:

That the changes to the membership of the Children’s Services Forum be authorised
to include a Primary Headteacher representative and an independent advocate.

EXERCISE OF DELEGATED POWERS

An information report on the actions taken under delegated powers was
submitted. The actions were as set out below:-

Streetscene and Transportation
e Brushwood Avenue, Flint — Traffic Calming
To advise Members of two unresolved objections following the advertisement
of the proposal to replace the existing traffic calming on Brushwood Avenue
with a new scheme, and to recommend that Members overrule the objections.

o Bagillt High Street — Traffic Calming
To advise Members of two unresolved objections received following the
advertisement of the proposal to introduce physical calming on Bagillt High
Street, and to recommend that Members overrule the objection.
RESOLVED:

That the actions taken under delegated powers be noted.

Page 13



116. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were two members of the press in attendance and one member of the
public.

(The meeting commenced at 9.30am and ended at 11.20am)

Chairman

Page 14



Agenda Item 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY 17 FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND

RESOURCES), CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.00 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.01 To present the final revenue budget proposals for the Council Fund for
2015/16 for recommendation to Council.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The final Local Government Settlement for 2015/16 was published by Welsh
Government on 10 December 2014.

2.02 As a consequence of the combined impacts of:-

a reduction in Revenue Support Grant from Welsh Government;
reductions by Welsh Government in specific grants;

no provision within the Settlement for pay and price inflation;

no provision within the Settlement for nationally recognised demand
led and policy led service pressures; and

¢ local service and financing pressures.

a total funding ‘gap’ of £16.4m to be ‘bridged’ for the 2015-16 financial year
was reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014. As reported to both Cabinet
and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee subsequently
the gap has been increased by £1.865m to £18.265m

2.03 The draft budget reported to Cabinet in December presented corporate and
service portfolio efficiencies totalling £12.640m. At that time the remaining
gap to be found stood at £1.760m. This gap has since been increased to
£3.625m

2.04 Budget Strategy
As reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014 the budget strategy developed

for 2015/16 onwards is based on an organisational strategy to reduce costs to
shield and protect local public services.

Page 15



The overall budget is a package of measures and proposals which combine:-

corporate financing options e.g how to manage inflation;
portfolio level business plan proposals;

reviews pressures on portfolio budgets;

maximising income generation;

reviews of workforce numbers and costs;

a review of council tax levels; and

a full review of Reserves and Balances.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

FIRST STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET ‘GAP’

3.01 The ongoing work on developing further efficiencies had produced a set of
further proposals, by the January meeting of Cabinet, to a value of £2.848m,
leaving a remaining gap of £0.777m.

Table 1: Closing the Gap Stage 1

Proposal £m

Procurement Supplier Charging 0.116
Non Standard Inflation Provision Review 0.348
Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision 0.124
Council Tax Reduction Scheme projected provision 0.130
Central Loans and Investments Reviews 1.830
Workforce Efficiency Projects 0.300
Running Total 2.848
Remaining Gap 0.777

3.02 Table 1A: Proposal Explanations

Procurement Supplier Charging

An income generating opportunity has been identified by applying a
charge to suppliers of the Council for the use of electronic invoicing
software. A charge of £50 p.a. will apply in relation to suppliers who
undertake in excess of £1,000 of business per year.

Non Standard Inflation Review

The draft budget proposals provided for an inflationary increase for energy
(8%), Fuel (6%) and Food (4%), products where inflation has been
running above standard inflation. Due to reducing unit prices, and taking
into account specialist advice, the provision for NSI allocation was first
revised downwards by £0.348m, with a commitment to review further on
the basis of latest advice, prior to the setting of the final budget.

Page 16



Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision

The draft proposals reported to Cabinet in December provided for an
inflationary increase of 2% on the 2014/15 levy of £0.139m. The annual
budget has been set by the Fire and Rescue Authority. The budget
requires a minimal increase of £0.015m, thereby reducing the required
provision by £0.124m.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Projected Provision

The draft proposals included an additional amount of £0.308m to reflect
the impact of the annual council tax rise (3% at draft stage) which is not
provided for in the Revenue Support Grant received from Welsh
Government. Current demand levels have been reviewed and the
additional amount required to meet demand is £0.130m less than first
predicted.

Central Loans and Investment Reviews
The additional efficiencies in this complex account are:-

Reprofiling of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): accounting
principles provide an opportunity to account for the cost of borrowing in
the year after the related asset becomes operational. The draft proposals
provided for this charge in the year that the expenditure was incurred. In
view of the overall financial challenges it is deemed appropriate to take
advantage of this ‘borrowing holiday’.

Interest on borrowing: the required level of borrowing and the timing of
that borrowing is reliant on the Capital Programme set by the Council and
the internal resources available to meet that expenditure. The draft capital
programme and the information arising from the detailed review of
reserves and balances has allowed a review of the amount of borrowing
required, the timing of that borrowing and the types of loans and
associated interest rates.

Impact of the exit from the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy
System (HRAS) exit: arrangements are continuing for the exit of the
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system by April 2015. The settlement
transaction will be dealt with in line with corporate practice and the revised
apportionment rates will result in a benefit to this account.

Workforce Efficiency Projects

The next phase of the strategy to make further reductions to workforce
costs is under development in consultation with the Trade Unions.
Projects including the “buy back” of annual leave are well advanced.

Page 17




3.03 SECOND STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET ‘GAP’
Changes proposed by Cabinet to the following efficiencies as a consequence
of the challenge and suggestions made by Overview and Scrutiny are listed
below:-

Table 2: Responding to the Challenges from Overview and Scrutiny

Housing: Portfolio: Response Service Out of Hours

Amended proposal to withdraw the charging proposals (budget pressure of
£20K)

Life Long Learning Portfolio: Let’s Walk Cymru

Amended proposal to include a transitional grant of £7.5k for Walkabout
Flintshire pending agreement of a longer term plan (budget pressure of
£7.5k)

Corporate Resources: Switchboard and Contact Centre Services

Amended proposal to phase implementation of call handling systems
changes (budget pressure of £40k)

Corporate Resources: Post Office Counter Payments Options

Amended proposal to defer implementation of the payments option to
assist vulnerable clients with an alternative personalised payment option
and budgeting advice (budget pressure of £7.5k)

3.04 Summary of Balancing Position

Table 3: Table 1: Closing the Gap Stage 2 to Balance the Budget

Remaining “Gap” (as per Table 2) 0.777
Revisions following Overview & Scrutiny Challenge 0.075
3.04

Reduction of NSI (3.05) (0.197)
Council Tax at 3.75% (Net of CTRS Impact) (3.06) (0.385)

Use of Reserves i3.07i i0.270i

Page 18



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01

That the Cabinet makes the following recommendations to County Council on 17
February 2015:-

1. the 2015/16 Council Fund Revenue Budget Requirement to be set at
£249.979m (which is £1.827m below its calculated Standard Spending
Assessment) (5.02)

2. there be a 3.75% increase in Council Tax at Band D and an assumed 99%
collection rate (5.02)

3. inclusion of the Outcome Agreement Grant of £1.479m in the budget
(5.03)

4. acceptance of the levels of inflation assumed in the budget (5.04 — 5.06)
5. acceptance of the amounts for transfers in and out of the settlement (5.07)
6. inclusion of £2.853m of recurring pressures in the budget (5.08)

7. inclusion of £0.730m of one-off costs to be funded from Reserves (5.09)
8. inclusion of efficiencies of £12.874m in the budget (5.10)

9. The use of reserves to fund transitional funding of £0.270m pending the
identification of additional efficiencies (5.11)

10. the contingency reserve be maintained and its use considered in the

context of the overall medium term financial plan for 2015/16 and future years
(6.03)

Page 19



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF_EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND
RESOURCES), CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER
SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.01 To present the final revenue budget proposals for the Council Fund for
2015/16 for recommendation to Council.
2.00 BACKGROUND
2.01  The final Local Government Settlement for 2015/16 was published by Welsh
Government on 10 December 2014 following a period of consultation during
which Flintshire made representations over the risks to local services being
caused by continued annual reductions in revenue and capital support for
local government.
2.02 As a consequence of the combined impacts of:-
e areduction in Revenue Support Grant from Welsh Government;
e reductions by Welsh Government in specific grants;
e no provision within the Settlement for pay and price inflation;
e no provision within the Settlement for nationally recognised demand
led and policy led service pressures; and
e local service and financing pressures
a total funding ‘gap’ of £16.4m to be ‘bridged’ for the 2015-16 financial year
was reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014. As reported to both Cabinet
and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee subsequently
the gap has been increased by £1.865m to £18.265m as a consequence of
the adjustments made to the efficiency targets set for achieving reductions in
workforce costs (based on targets for reductions in workforce numbers) as
part of the 2014-15 budget and the minor impact of the final settlement.
2.03 The draft budget reported to Cabinet in December presented corporate and

service portfolio efficiencies totalling £12.640m. At that time the remaining
gap to be found stood at £1.760m. This gap, which has since been increased
to £3.625m with the adjustments to efficiency targets through workforce
reductions, was to be bridged through a combination of:-

e corporate financing options e.g central loans and investments and

Page 20



2.04

inflation provision;
e income levels including Council Tax;
o further specific workforce efficiencies; and
e further service efficiencies.

Budget Strategy

As reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014 the budget strategy developed
for 2015/16 onwards is based on an organisational strategy to reduce costs to
shield and protect local public services. Whilst building and capitalising upon
the efficiency programmes in being from earlier years, it was recognised that
the renewed strategy had to be more ambitious due to the scale of the
financial challenge. The strategy was built on the four pillars of ‘corporate’ or
whole council efficiencies, ‘functional’ or within service efficiencies,
organisational redesign on management structures based on a new
‘operating model’, and workforce efficiencies through phased reductions in
the number of people we employ.

The principles which underpinned this strategy, as set out in the Council’s
Medium Term Financial Strategy for the period 2013-2017, have been
followed through:-

planning for the long-term as a whole organisation;

making decisions for local public services which can be sustained;
being ambitious and positive about change to better the organisation;
having a clear philosophy underpinned by social values; and
managing the transition from the current to the future with care.

The twin objectives of these programmes of change and cost reduction have
been and remain as:-

e maximising the financial efficiency of the organisation and prioritising
our resources; and

e modernising the organisation to be lean, productive, efficient, resilient
and high performing.

Whilst the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is under review alongside the
developing budget for 2015/16, with the purpose of re-forecasting the
changing budget assumptions for future years and realigning our
organisational strategy to suit, the principles and objectives within stand fast.
This Cabinet led review will be reported upon, and shared with Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in April/May.

The continued organisational change strategy from 2014-15 and a series of
fundamental business plan reviews across each new Chief Officer portfolio
form the basis of the renewed financial strategy for 2015-16 and future years.
Chief Officers and their operational teams have been set the challenge of
working to a collective budget savings target of up to 30% of total Council
resources up to 2017/18. The business planning approach, which has

Page 21



3.00

3.01

challenged priorities, models of service design and delivery, base budget
allocations, value for money, income and cost recovery for services and
management and workforce structures and cost, has generated the proposals
listed in the appendices to this report.

The overall budget is a package of measures and proposals which combine:-

corporate financing options e.g how to manage inflation;
portfolio level business plan proposals;

review of pressures on portfolio budgets;

maximising income generation;

reviews of workforce numbers and costs;

a review of council tax levels; and

a full review of Reserves and Balances.

The MTFP and the Improvement Plan of the Council set out ambition for
alternative ways of working and alternative service delivery models, some of
which will be new to Flintshire. A number of the budget proposals for this and
later budgets are based on creative and ambitious ideas for community
ownership of assets, community and social enterprise, commissioning and
trading, and more extensive collaboration. Within the budget are the seeds of
new ways of working described in the new Council operating model, the
MTFP and the Improvement Plan.

CONSIDERATIONS

FIRST STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET “GAP”

The ongoing work on developing further efficiencies within the four areas
listed in 2.03 above had produced a set of further proposals, by the January
meeting of Cabinet, to a value of £2.848m, leaving a remaining gap of
£0.777m. These further efficiencies, which are shown in the table below, were
reported in full to the special budget meeting of the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 22 January 2015 and have been
explained to the four service portfolio Overview and Scrutiny Committees at
their respective special budget review meetings held on 23 and 26 January
2015.

Table 1: Closing the Gap Stage 1

Proposal £m

Procurement Supplier Charging 0.116
Non Standard Inflation Provision Review 0.348
Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision 0.124
Council Tax Reduction Scheme projected provision 0.130
Central Loans and Investments Reviews 1.830
Workforce Efficiency Projects 0.300
Running Total 2.848
Remaining Gap 0.777

Page 22



3.02 The six proposals set out in the table above are explained in more detail
below :-

Table 1A: Proposal Explanations

Procurement Supplier Charging

An income generating opportunity has been identified by applying a
charge to suppliers of the Council for the use of electronic invoicing
software. A charge of £50 p.a. will apply to suppliers who undertake in
excess of £1,000 of business per year.

Non Standard Inflation Review (NSI)

The draft budget proposals provided for an inflationary increase for energy
(8%), Fuel (6%) and Food (4%), products where inflation has been
running above standard inflation. Due to reducing unit prices, and taking
into account specialist advice, the provision for NSI allocation was first
revised downwards by £0.348m, with a commitment to review further on
the basis of latest advice, prior to the setting of the final budget.

Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision

The draft proposals reported to Cabinet in December provided for an
inflationary increase of 2% on the 2014/15 levy of £0.139m. The annual
budget has been set by the Fire and Rescue Authority. The budget
requires a minimal increase of £0.015m, thereby reducing the required
provision by £0.124m.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Projected Provision

The draft proposals included an additional amount of £0.308m to reflect
the impact of the annual council tax rise (3% at draft stage) which is not
provided for in the Revenue Support Grant received from Welsh
Government. Current demand levels have been reviewed and the
additional amount required to meet demand is £0.130m less than first
predicted.

Central Loans and Investment Reviews
The additional efficiencies in this complex account are:-

Reprofiling of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): accounting
principles provide an opportunity to account for the cost of borrowing in
the year after the asset for which the borrowing is incurred becomes
operational. The original budget proposals provided for this charge in the
year that the expenditure was incurred. A rescheduling of borrowing is
proposed which defers making some significant capital payments for two
financial years.

Page 23



3.03

3.04

Interest on borrowing: the required level of borrowing and the timing of
that borrowing is reliant on the Capital Programme set by the Council and
the internal resources available to meet that expenditure. The draft capital
programme and the information arising from the detailed review of
reserves and balances has allowed a review of the amount of borrowing
required, the timing of that borrowing and the types of loans and
associated interest rates.

Impact of the exit from the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy
System (HRAS): arrangements are continuing for the exit of the Housing
Revenue Account Subsidy system by April 2015. The settlement
transaction will be dealt with in line with corporate practice and the revised
apportionment rates will result in a net benefit to this account.

Workforce Efficiency Projects

The next phase of the strategy to make further reductions to workforce
costs is under development in consultation with the Trade Unions.
Projects, including the “buy back” of annual leave, are well advanced.

SECOND STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET ‘GAP’

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been given an assurance that
further service efficiencies, over and above those which have been presented
and scrutinised through the budget preparation process, would only be
considered as a last resort. This limits the options to bridge the remaining gap
of £0.777m and achieve a balanced budget. The options which remain are a
further review of Non Standard Inflation, the Council Tax precepting level, and
drawing upon reserves and balances.

Responding to the Challenges from Overview and Scrutiny

At the closing budget review meeting of Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (to which all members were invited) the Chief Officers
and Cabinet members summarised the main challenges from the Overview
and Scrutiny Committees on itemised budget proposals, and gave an initial
response.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been provided with the
summary feedback from the first phase of the public ‘Big Budget
Conversation’ held in August and September 2014 and the full unedited
feedback from the second phase of this information and consultation exercise
held from December 2014 to January 2015. The first phase consultation was
based on the general financial position and the actions the council could take
to manage its reducing finances; the second on the specific draft budget
proposals of the Cabinet published in December 2014. The Committees
were encouraged to draw upon the feedback in examining the budget
proposals.

Page 24



3.05

The attention of the public was drawn to the specific proposals where there
will be some public impact, as opposed to the proposals which are to be
achieved from internal change without any impact. There has been a strong
alignment between the proposals selected by the public for feedback and
those which members have chosen to examine from the beginning of the
internal consultation process in October 2014. Therefore, the questions and
concerns of the public have been well tested by members as part of the
democratic process.

Changes proposed by Cabinet to the following efficiencies as a consequence
of the challenge and suggestions made by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee will be presented in full at the Cabinet meeting, and will have an
impact on the budget ‘gap’ as summarised above:-

Table 2: Responding to the Challenges from Overview and Scrutiny

Housing: Portfolio: Response Service Out of Hours

Amended proposal to withdraw the charging proposals (budget pressure of
£20K)

Life Long Learning Portfolio: Let’s Walk Cymru

Amended proposal to include a transitional grant of £7.5k for Walkabout
Flintshire pending agreement of a longer term plan (budget pressure of
£7.5k)

Corporate Resources: Switchboard and Contact Centre Services

Amended proposal to phase implementation of call handling systems
changes (budget pressure of £40k)

Corporate Resources: Post Office Counter Payments Options

Amended proposal to defer implementation of the payments option to
assist vulnerable clients with an alternative personalised payment option
and budgeting advice (budget pressure of £7.5k)

The combined effect of these amendments is a pressure of £75k which would
increase the remaining budget ‘gap’, as its stands at 3.01, to £852k.

Review of Non Standard Inflation (NSI)

As also discussed at the budget review meeting of the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee the need to set aside any provision for Non
Standard Inflation (NSI) has been re-reviewed. Specific market intelligence
on energy (Crown Commercial Services, UES Energy) has identified that gas
prices are currently predicted to stay at a similar level to 2014/15 with the

Page 25



3.06

3.07

potential for a small reduction, whilst electricity is likely to increase slightly
due to electricity market reforms which is likely to increase the standing
charges within bills between 2% - 3% although the energy supply cost is is
forecast to remain similar to current levels.

Market intelligence within the food markets (Tuco Ltd, Procurement Partner)
indicates that some food groups (fish, pasta, canned groceries) may be
subject to an increase of between 0.5% and 3% though there is likely to be
stability within other food groups. Inflation on food is considered to be the
area of greatest risk in 2015/16; therefore an allocation of £0.064m will be
maintained and held centrally within the budget.

NSI provision is set aside to support services which are exposed to higher
than normal annual inflationary pressures in procuring fuel, energy and food
supplies. Over and above the £0.348m proposed to be withdrawn as an
efficiency in the table in 3.01, a provision of £0.261m still remains in the draft
budget. On the basis of the review this amount is recommended to be
reduced to £0.064m with the remaining £0.197m contributing to a further
efficiency to reduce the remaining reported budget gap. The reduction of NSI
is considered low risk although it will be closely monitored as an in-year risk
with any financial pressure caused by a reverse in the deflationary market
trends to be met corporately in-year should it arise.

Review of Council Tax Level

Following a review of Council Tax levels and taking account of the overall
remaining budget gap the proposed Council Tax level for 2015/16 is an
increase of 3.75% which equates to an increase of £37.06 on the Band D rate
raising the annual amount to £1,025.27. The Council Tax rate at 0.75%
above the working assumption within the original budget proposals has the
effect of reducing the budget gap by a net £0.385m after taking account of the
corresponding increase in the Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

Reserves and Balances

Councils can draw on reserves and balances to help balance their annual
budget. This is an option which Flintshire has generally avoided in recent
years. Whilst a lawful option, provided that there are sufficient uncommitted
reserves available, this practice poses risks. Whereas reserves can only be
used once, the annual efficiency to be funded by them recurs year on year
and would have to be funded through a different solution in each and every
financial year which follows. A modest use of reserves and balances could be
a part of the solution to closing the remaining budget gap, noting that the
Council has only limited uncommitted reserves and balances with other
demands upon them. These demands include the ongoing need to meet the
redundancy and other exit costs of employees leaving the organisation under
our ongoing programme to reduce workforce numbers, and service pressures
which emerge in-year once the budget has been set. Taking into account the
adjustments proposed in 3.04 — 3.06 there is still a remaining gap of £0.270m
and it is proposed that this is met from transitional funding by way of the

Page 26



3.08

3.09

3.10

utilisation of reserves.
Summary of Balancing Position

Table 3: Closing the Gap Stage 2 to Balance the Budget

Remaining “Gap” (as per Table 1) 0.777
Revisions following Overview & Scrutiny Challenge 0.075
3.04

Reduction of NSI (3.05) (0.197)
Council Tax at 3.75% (Net of CTRS Impact) (3.06) (0.385)

Use of Reserves i3.07i i0.270i

Implementation of the Budget Efficiencies

The Council has developed processes for the in-year tracking and reporting
on the progress of implementing agreed efficiencies in recent years. Given
the growing scale of the annual efficiency programme, and the reducing
financial flexibility to accommodate any significant in-year under-achievement
in efficiency targets, these processes need to be strengthened. Actions will
include extended programme management arrangements, more consistent
use of the corporate model for project management, internal escalation of
risks for resolution, and higher profile reporting of the higher risk efficiency
proposals to members. As proposed by the Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee all higher risk efficiency proposals of a significant
financial value will be featured in the monthly budget monitoring report (which
is reported to both Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee). The implementation of specific service change proposals of
significance and/or risk can also be reviewed by the respective Overview and
Scrutiny Committees, at their request, as part of the forward work
programming.

As discussed at the second and closing budget meeting of the Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the achievement of a number
of itemised budget efficiencies will be dependent on the completion of service
reviews and the adoption of their outcomes by Cabinet, with the input of
Overview and Scrutiny. These reviews are Day Care Services, Car Parking
Strategy, Transportation, Highway Winter Maintenance, Part Night Street
Lighting, and Household Recycling Centres. In recommending these
proposals Cabinet has a policy intent to implement change once these
reviews are completed and reported. It is important that Council supports the
policy intent and accept that the outcomes of the reviews will need to be
‘sized’ to meet the efficiency targets set for each.

Page 27



3.11

3.12

4.00

Schools Budget

The budget report to Cabinet on 16 December 2014 provided details on the
impact of the proposed budget on schools. There have been no further
changes made to the schools budget and the budget has been set at an
overall increase of 0.6% in line with national expectations of protecting
investment in schools. Welsh Government has been notified of the schools
budget for 2015/16 in line with the statutory deadline of 14 February 2015.

Medium Term Financial Planning

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is being reviewed thoroughly to (1)
forecast the financial resources to be available to the Council during the
period 2015-16 to 2017-18, and the budget pressures, based on the best
available intelligence and (2) project the collective efficiency targets to be set
to enable the corporate and portfolio targets to be re-set. The MTFP will set
the context for the next stage of developing, agreeing and implementing the
organisational strategy for the next three years. For the second part of this
critical work the starting point will be the review of the new three year
business plans for each service, for which the 2015-16 financial year is the
first year of implementation.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

Following on from the Council’s Big Budget Conversation held during August
and September, the Council’s budget proposals were published on 18
December 2014 and were open for public feedback for a four week period.

In meeting its duties to assess the potential equality impact of its budget
proposals the Council facilitated an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
workshop on the evening of Monday 5 January 2014. The purpose of the
workshop was to look at Category 2 and 3 proposals (those with lower and
higher direct public impact) and discuss what potential they had to specifically
impact on any of the 9 protected characteristic groups and the Welsh
Language.

Those proposals, where it was felt there was potential to impact on people to
whom the Council owes an equality duty, have also been subject to specific
ElAs and consultations have been undertaken, or are in progress, with those
people most impacted.

A summary report of the public feedback and EIA workshop is attached at
Appendix 9. As reported in 3.04 the public feedback has been shared with all
members and the Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been invited to
draw upon the feedback in scrutinising the budget proposals.

Page 28



5.00 SUMMARY OF FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS AND ASSUMPTIONS

5.01 As a result of the changes outlined above, total expenditure and funding now
equates to £287.605m and the total budget build up is outlined below. Details
of the figures making up the total budget are attached in appendices 1 - 7.

Summary Position

Proposed Budget 2015/16

Funding £m
Aggregate External Funding (AEF)/RSG NNDR 186.419
Council Tax 63.560
SSA/Budget Requirement 249.979
Specific Grants (Estimated) 35.147
Outcome Agreement Grant (Estimated) 1.479
Use of Reserves — Investment Strategy 0.730
Use of Reserves — Transitional Funding 0.270
Total Funding 287.605

Expenditure

Base Budget Rolled Forward 296.945
Prior Year Budget Decisions (Appendix 1) (1.657)
Inflation (Appendix 2) 1.573
Transfers in/out of the settlement (Appendix 3) 0.406
Pressures & Investments Recurring (Appendix 4) 2.853
Pressures & Investments One off (Appendix 5) 0.730
Efficiencies — Business Planning (Appendix 6) (12.874)
Less Specific Grants 2014/15 (35.518)
Plus Specific Grants 2015/16 (Estimated Appendix 7) 35.147
Total Expenditure 287.605

Page 29



5.02

5.03

5.04

5.05

5.06

5.07

5.08

Income

The budget proposals in this report set a budget requirement of £249.979m
which is an amount of £1.827m below the calculated Standard Spending
Assessment (SSA). At this level of spend, the increase on the Band D
Council Tax Rate (excluding Police and Town/Community Councils’ precepts)
is 3.75%. This equates to an increase of £37.06 on 2014/15 and a Band D
rate of £1,025.27. The Council Tax system in Wales contains nine property
bands ranging from Band A to Band I. In order to ensure consistency
between councils when reporting Council Tax information it is agreed practice
that all related information is expressed in terms of Band D equivalents.

The amount of the Outcome Agreement Grant available for 2015/16 has been
advised by Welsh Government. As always the achievement of this is subject
to assessment against agreed performance. The Council has been
successful in achieving 100% of its grant in previous years and full grant
achievement has been assumed for 2015/16.

Expenditure

Inflation

Pay and Price Inflation of £1.573m is included in the budget proposals as
detailed in Appendix 2. The proposals include pay inflation at 1% for
increases on pay from April 2015 which is sufficient to meet the outcome of
the nationally negotiated agreement. Price Inflation of £0.421m has only
been included for some targeted service areas at levels where this has been
judged as essential.

As shown in 3.05, for 2015/16 it is recommended that a risk based approach
be taken to Non Standard Inflation for energy, food and fuel. As such there
will remain a small provision for inflation on food supply procurement only of
£0.064m to recognise the risks within the market and this will be monitored
throughout the financial year as part of the Corporate risk process. A small
amount of Non Standard Inflation (£0.038m) also remains to meet increases
in Non domestic rates (NNDR).

Inflation of 3% amounting to £0.254m has been generally assumed on the
yield from existing fees and charges.

The final settlement included various transfers in and out of the settlement
and, following an assessment of the local impact for Flintshire, the relevant
amount of funding has either been “passported” to (for transfers in) or taken
from (for transfers out) the service concerned as detailed in appendix 3.

Appendix 4 sets out the recurring pressures and investment of £2.853m

recommended for inclusion in the 2015/16 budget. These now include the
unachieved workforce efficiencies remaining from the 2014/15 budget.

Page 30



5.09

5.10

5.11

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

Appendix 5 details one-off costs of £0.730m associated with the achievement
of efficiencies included in the budget which will be funded from the reserves
identified as being available following the extensive review of historical
reserves and balances.

Appendix 6 sets out the efficiencies, totalling £12.874m, recommended for
inclusion in the budget. This now includes the additional efficiencies
identified from Central and Corporate Budgets as part of the Strategy to close
the budget “gap” as identified in 3.02

Transitional Funding

As part of the final balancing budget strategy, there is a requirement to
contribute a temporary amount of £0.270m from reserves pending the
identification of further efficiencies in-year. This is considered a reasonable
strategy due to the relatively modest amount required and the fact that there
are sufficient reserves available to meet it.

UNEARMARKED BALANCES AND EARMARKED RESERVES
Base Level of Unearmarked Reserves

The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy confirms the Council’s
commitment of maintaining a base level of reserves of 2% of turnover. The
current base level of reserves is £5.769m as reported in monthly budget
monitoring reports. Despite the fact that funding has reduced in 2015/16 over
2014/15 it is proposed that unearmarked reserves are maintained at the
same level for 2015/16 which will provide an additional safeguard in the
current uncertain financial climate.

Contingency Reserve

When the 2014/15 budget was set the Contingency Reserve was estimated
to be £3.709m at 31 March 2014. As a result of the net underspend reported
in the final outturn for 2013/14 the actual amount in the Contingency Reserve
at the year end was £5.328m.

The monthly budget monitoring report has provided updates on the
movements on the reserve and the Month 8 monitoring report (also on this
agenda) shows an estimated balance of £3.955m in the contingency reserve
as at 31 March 2015. It is recommended that this reserve is retained and its
use considered within the context of the overall medium term financial plan
for 2015/16 and future years.

Whilst the base level of reserves is a known sum which is set aside, the level

of contingency reserve is based on the current estimate and is subject to
change at the end of the financial year.

Page 31



6.05

6.06

7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

Review of Reserves and Balances

As part of its budget strategy, a critical review and challenge of all reserves
and balances held by the Council was undertaken to ensure that all balances
were still required for the intended purpose and for the same amount. The
aim of this review was to maximise the amount of one off funding available for
use in relation to future investment costs. The outcome of this work has
identified £1.138m of reserves and balances that have been released with no
direct risk or impact on service levels.

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves include service balances, corporate
balances and schools balances.

Service balances are made up of those balances held by departments which
Cabinet has agreed can be carried forward. Corporate Balances are held to
meet commitments which fall in future years on specific items of expenditure.

The Council also holds Specific Reserves which are set aside for a specific
future service.

Appendix 8 details the estimated closing balances for 2014/15 and 2015/16 in
respect of all reserves and balances. The Section 151 Officer is satisfied that
the level of these reserves is appropriate (see also Section 6 below)

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER REPORT ON ESTIMATES AND RESERVES

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty on the Chief
Finance Officer (for Flintshire this is the Corporate Finance Manager) to report to the
Council when it is considering its budget and Council Tax setting on the robustness
of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves. The Act requires the Council to have
regard to this report in making its decisions in relation to the budget.

The 2015/16 budget has been set within the context of the Medium Term

Financial Plan and continues to recognise a significant reduction in the funding
available to the Council from Welsh Government (3.4% for 2015/16). The Council’s
budget strategy for dealing with this significant financial challenge, which is based on
it’s organisational strategy, has been set out in detail for members in previous budget
reports and at the member drop in sessions and various overview and scrutiny
meetings.

The Council’s overall level of reserves and balances is reviewed annually as part of
the budget process. However, to ensure that the Council was best positioned to
respond to the scale of the financial challenges it faces for 2015/16, it was important
for me to ensure that this review was undertaken in greater detail and with more
challenge than in previous years. This was done with a view to maximising the level
of resources available to contribute to current and future funding requirements and
the outcome of this review resulted in an amount of £1.138m being made available as
previously reported.

Page 32



7.04

7.05

7.06

8.00

8.01

8.02

8.03

9.00

9.01

Details of all the Council’s earmarked reserves were also sent in a letter to the
Minister for Public Services following a request made to all Welsh councils. The
letter also included details of the Council’s strategy for dealing with and utilising its
reserves and a copy of this letter was sent to members attending the budget review
overview and scrutiny session on 30" January 2015.

Supported by the above, I can confirm the reasonableness of the estimates contained
in the proposed budget, having regard to the Council’s spending needs in 2015/16
and the financial context within which the budget is being set. Inevitably in managing
a budget of this scale across a large and diverse organisation variances will occur, but
I believe that the budget assumptions represent a measured and acceptable level of
risk. A robust programme for the delivery of the £12.874m of efficiencies within the
budget and to the timescales anticipated is essential together with effective and
disciplined in- year financial management that will assist with ensuring that budgets
are managed effectively and prompt action taken to mitigate any impacts should
variances occur.

Within the context described above, I recommend that the Council should maintain
the level of general balances of £5.769m which will safeguard its position and also
enable it to plan ahead to meet future financial challenges as set out in the Medium
Term Financial Plan. The level of earmarked reserves and balances is set out in
Appendix 8.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT ON RISK

The budget strategy for 2015/16 has been a major challenge for the organisation with
diminishing options being available year on year to secure organisational efficiencies,
following successive years of significant reductions to Council budgets. The budget
for 2015/16 relies on a combination of the continued implementation of the
organisational change programme and the service-level efficiencies derived from the
new Chief Office portfolio service business plans.

The Council needs to be satisfied that these levels of financial efficiency are
achievable (1) based on the risk-assessed plans shared with members and (2) in
proportion to the overall budget.

There is a sufficient level of confidence that the efficiency targets are achievable
provided that the organisation improves its systems for programme to co-ordinate,
track and review the implementation of budget plans in each portfolio. A number of
specific budget proposals are subject to the completion of reviews and the adoption of
their outcomes as set out in 3.10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet makes the following recommendations to County Council on 17
February 2015:-

1. the 2015/16 Council Fund Revenue Budget Requirement to be set at

Page 33



10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

£249.979m (which is £1.827m below its calculated Standard Spending
Assessment) (5.02)

2. there be a 3.75% increase in Council Tax at Band D and an assumed 99%
collection rate (5.02)

3. inclusion of the Outcome Agreement Grant of £1.479m in the budget
(5.03)

4. acceptance of the levels of inflation assumed in the budget (5.04 — 5.06)
5. acceptance of the amounts for transfers in and out of the settlement (5.07)
6. inclusion of £2.853m of recurring pressures in the budget (5.08)

7. inclusion of £0.730m of one-off costs to be funded from Reserves (5.09)
8. inclusion of efficiencies of £12.874m in the budget (5.10)

9. the use of reserves to fund transitional funding of £0.270m pending the
identification of additional efficiencies (5.11)

10. the contingency reserve be maintained and its use considered in the
context of the overall medium term financial plan for 2015/16 and future years
(6.03)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in detail in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

As part of the EIAs impacts on poverty have been raised and will be
considered by services at the point of developing the detail around the
proposals for implementation.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The impact of the proposals on the 9 protected characteristics and the Welsh
language have been assessed by means of an EIA workshop. Further
specific EIA's have also been undertaken, or are in progress, on those
proposals where it was felt there was potential for impact. See section 4
above and Appendix 9. These will be considered by services at the point of
developing the detail around the proposals for implementation.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Page 34



14.01

15.00

15.01

16.00

16.01

Continued workforce reductions are proposed within the portfolio business plans
which generate the proposed budget efficiencies. Specific workforce efficiency
projects with a value of £0.300m are in negotiation with the Trade Unions.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Consultation Required

Formal consultation on workforce proposals will be set out in the detailed
plans and timescales of the workforce programme and in accordance with
statutory requirements and Council policy. The requirement for further
consultation on those proposals where there is a direct public impact will be
subject to ongoing review.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The budget proposals have been published and were open to public feedback
from 18 December 2014 to 11 January 2015.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) workshop, attended by
representatives from older age groups; disability groups; the Welsh language;
people from a black and minority background; Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and
Transgender (LGBT) groups; Trade Unions and other groups representing all
protected characteristics such as North Wales Regional Equality Network was
held on the evening of Monday 5 January 2015.

Consultations and EIA's have been undertaken, or are in progress, on a
number of specific proposals to ensure there is no discrimination or
disadvantage.

The Council's Overview and Scrutiny Committees met on the dates below to
debate the budget proposals and consider the public feedback and EIA
findings:-

Corporate Resources - 22 January

Housing - 23 January

Environment - 23 January

Social & Health Care - 26 January

Lifelong Learning - 26 January

Corporate Resources (open invitation for all members) - 30 January

The School Budget Forum has received updates on an ongoing basis
throughout this process and formal consultation has now been completed.

Consultation with Business Ratepayers has been undertaken with Flintshire's
largest businesses and representative trade and business organisations.

Dialogue and information sharing has been a regular feature of the ongoing
process and formal consultation has now been completed with the FJTUC.

Page 35



17.00 APPENDICES

17.01 Appendix 1 — Prior Year Budget Decisions
Appendix 2 — Inflation
Appendix 3 — Transfers in/out of the Settlement
Appendix 4 — Pressures and Investments — Recurring
Appendix 5 — Pressures and Investments — One-Off
Appendix 6 — Efficiencies
Appendix 7 — Specific Grants
Appendix 8 — Reserves
Appendix 9 - Summary Report of Public Feedback and EIA Workshop

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 36



Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / Items Dropping Out

Appendix 1

2015/16 2016/17
£m £m
APPROVED 2013/14 BUDGET
Social Services
Transition to Adulthood 1.239
1.239
Streetscene & Transportation
Loss of Car Park Income (0.002)
Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) -rephasing of full implementatic 0.225
0.223
Education & Youth
Free School Meals - increased demand 0.003
Review of Denominational transport provision (0.030)
(0.027)
Council Wide
Revised Effect of Prudential Borrowing costs for agreed Capital Projects
(change due to revised interest rates and receipt of grant funding) 0.916
0.916
Corporate Services
Income reduction - Vacation of former Council Offices , Ewloe 0.000 0.399
0.000 0.399
TOTAL 2013/2014 2.351 0.399
APPROVED 2014/15 BUDGET
Social Services
Independent Living Fund (ILF) estimate of RSG transfer 0.338 0.112
Transition to Adulthood 0.000 0.700
Funtional VFM's
Learning Disabilities — Short Term Care (0.012) (0.013)
Learning Disabilities — Enhanced Community Residential Services (0.006) 0.000
Childrens Services - Accommodation Efficiencies (0.018) 0.000
Social Services for Adults — Direct Payments (0.024) (0.024)
Social Services for Adults — structural realignment (0.032) 0.000
Development and Resources - income (0.030) 0.000
Social Services for Adults — Assets (0.023) 0.000
Housing — Community Support Services (0.018) 0.000
0.175 0.775
Planning & Environment
Funtional VFM's
Public Protection and Planning (0.042) 0.000
(0.042) 0.000

Page 37



Appendix 1

Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / ltems Dropping Out

2015/16 2016/17

£m £m
Streetscene & Transportation
Landfill Tax - increase cost per tonnage 0.292 0.053
Funtional VFM's
Streetscene & Assets Transportation — Highways Related Services (0.075) 0.000
0.217 0.053
Education & Youth
Remission Payments for School meals, trips & uniforms 0.025 0.025
Corporate VFM Procurement 0.002 0.000
Funtional VFM's
Youth and Community services (0.046) 0.000
Inclusion Services (0.218) 0.000
Library Service 0.001 0.000
(0.236) 0.025
Governance
Chief Executive and Democratic Services - Review of support (0.110) 0.000
(0.110) 0.000
Central & Corporate
Impact of Actuarial Valuation 1.747 1.504
Single Status Agreement 0.000 5.801
Workforce Organisational Redesign (0.550) 0.000
1.197 7.305
Review of 2012/13 - Social Care Variance (0.409) 0.000
(0.409) 0.000
TOTAL 2014/2015 0.792 8.158
ONE OFF AND TIME-LIMITED PRESSURES
Investment Costs Dropping Out (4.800)
(4.800)
TOTAL ONE OFF AND TIME-LIMITED PRESSURES (4.800)
TOTAL PREVIOUS YEARS ITEMS (1.657) 8.557

Page 38



Appendix 2

Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue
Inflation
£m £m
Pay
Pay Inflation from April 2015 (1%) 1.304
1.304
Price
Targeted General Price Inflation 0.421
0.421
Non Standard
Food - (2%) 0.064
NNDR - (2%) 0.038
0.102
Income
Income - (3%) 0.254
0.254
Total Inflation 1.573

Page 39



Provisional Settlement 2015/16

Transfers in:
21st Century Schools (LGBI)
Integrated Family Support Services
Autistic Spectrum Disorder

Total Transfers in

Transfers out:
Student Finance Wales
Food Safety Controls
National Adoption Service

Total Transfers out

Net effect

Page 40

Appendix 3

£m £m
0.376
0.144
0.040
0.560
(0.120)
(0.022)
(0.012)
(0.154)
0.406



Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments

Social Services

Transition

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
Total Social Services

Streetscene & Transportation
Foodwaste rate increase

Tipping Fee increase

Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment
Landfill aftercare provision

Gas Engine Income

Total Planning & Environment

Education & Youth

Teachers Pension Increase

School Modernisation

Greenfield Valley trust contribution to Lottery Funding
Total Education & Youth

Community & Enterprise
Impact of CT increase on CTRS
Total Community & Enterprise

Governance
IT System Maintenance (P2P)
Total Governance

Central & Corporate

Feasability Study Provision
Workforce unachieved efficiencies
Review of State Pension - estimate
Next Actuarial review - Estimate
Insurance Provision

Prudential Borrowing

Loss of income from Ewloe rent
Total Central & Corporate

TOTAL NEW PRESSURES

Page 41

Appendix 4

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£m £m £m
0.000 0.223 0.863
0.290 0.216 0.216
0.290 0.439 1.079
0.110 0.110 0.110
0.018 0.018 0.018
0.128 0.128 0.128
0.100 0.100 0.100
0.100 0.100 0.100
0.200 0.200 0.200
0.000 1.364 1.364
0.000 0.236 0.112
0.021 0.000 0.000
0.021 1.600 1.476
0.254 0.625 0.952
0.254 0.625 0.952
0.062 0.062 0.062
0.062 0.062 0.062
0.050 0.050 0.050
1.798 1.798 1.798
0.000 2.738 2.738
0.000 0.000 1.300
0.050 0.328 0.328
0.000 0.252 0.281
0.000 0.000 0.532
1.898 5.166 7.027
2.853 8.220 10.924




Budget 2015/16

Business Plan Investment Requirements
Portfolio

People & Resources

Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Governance

Total

Page 42

£m

0.050
0.200
0.050
0.430

0.730

Appendix 5



Business Plan Efficiencies 2015/16
Summary

Portfolio

Planning & Environment (Appendix 6a)
Streetscene & Transportation (Appendix 6b)
Social Care (Appendix 6c)

Education & Youth (Appendix 6d)
Organisational Change (Appendix 6e)
People & Resources (Appendix 6f)
Governance (Appendix 6g)

Community & Enterprise (Appendix 6h)
Corporate & Central (Appendix 6j)

Total

Page 43

£m

0.941

2.570

2.068

1.459

1.306

0.385

0.248

1.565

2.333

12.874

Appendix 6



oN

SBA

'SEale asay)} Ul USYERapuUN AJUaLINd }I0m

4O BWIN{oA jo sisAjeue ue uo paseq si bulaes jo sjlewsy ‘jesodosd
ay) uiyim paquosap se pabieyd aq ued aay buiwueld e yowym

Jo} saiiAnae jo sedA} ey} aseasoul o) sasodoud |ig (sajepn) Buueld

UOEIBUBE) BLLIODUY

0500

ajnpayos a3 mau 0) Juanbasqns '2}a SUCIPUOD jo
abseyosip oul ypom Buiuueid Joj 6uiBseyd jo sjuawsie |euoppY

ol

ON

ON

‘Ul paJ0jae) S| BADQE g UI 0} paLiayal
aseasoul a9) Buiuueyd %4,G| ay] "19A0331 0} SANURUOD AWOU02d
au se suoijesydde Buluueld Jo SWNIOA By} L) asEaIOUI pajewnsy

UOlBJAURL) BWODU]

ON

SOA

‘30U 83} JO S{3A3| |ENULIE JU32AJ UO Paseq
3jewisa aAeAIasuod e S| jesodosd sy “seay uoneadde Buiuueid
|le U1 asealoul %G| © 2anposul 0} $333s (i (Sajep) Buiuueld

uoneiIsua) awoduy|

oN

oN

‘UOHEPOWILLIOIIE 32Yj0 Jo Bulaes e
w Bunynsaz Bunpiom ajibe pue ajigow pasesiout jleH Ajuno) o) died
SSaUISNG PIaYUIRI0) WOJ) WEa) uapiem pooynoqybiou ay) Ao

Aouaioyj3 ao1A19G

ON

SaA

*sinoy Bunpiom [euucu usamiaq dn ) yoid yels a1o0jq

jyBiuano Gop ay) uiejas Jo JojoeRUCD BullBUUBY JNO jB S3AJaSWaY)
yo Bop ayj dosp o)} Jusjuod ase adiatas ay) buinbas siawoisno
1SOW JBY} UMOUS SBY 2USPIAS pue AJOJNJeIS-UoU S| 321A8S SIY |
‘spuaxaam pue Aepu4 o) Aepuoyy wdg| pue wdpg g usamiaq sbop
AeJs 193102 0} 83} Inofjes pue Aq-puejs e pied Ajuaund aJe SIsdPO

MAIABY |esnjong

0900

suopeddde Guiuueld jo saquinu uj asealduf

(aseasoul OM %G 1) sea) Buued u) aseasou;

(SamnN 10 JuB1 OU) BYO PIRYUBAIS) JO BINSO[D

cLoo

aoinag 6o sINoH Jo INO anowsy

suasn bunsixg

SaA

*Saseasoul

@9j pasodoud ay) uo uayeLaPUN aQ [|IM UONE)NSUOD JYIoads
‘sanuoyine Guunoqubiau Jsuiebe Ajlqeinoae) Joayal saa) pasodold
‘siseq 6uioueuy-jias e uo ajesado jses)| 1B ued uoloun; Buisuadl ay
jey) aunsua |pm pouad Jeak 8a.y) 8Y) JOAD SISEaIOU| 83 [BJUBWIAIOU]

UONBIBUAL) BWODU}

0200

Buoueuy jjas Guisuao e

ssasn Bunsixg
/91qnd [esus

SaA

‘S8seaJ0Ul 89} pasodoid ay) uo usyeuBpUN aq 1M

uonelnsuoa ayinads “lolaas ajeaud ay) pue ssnuoyine Guunoqybiau
1suiebe Ajqeinoaey 1o0jas s83) pasodold "siseq Gupueuy

-jj@s e uo ajesado ISea)| Je UeD UOoNJUNY 10U Jsad pue [ewiue ay)
1By} 21nsua [im pouad Jeak 83y} By} JIAO SISBIIIUN B3 |BIUBLIIOU|

UONEIBUBE) BWOIUY

ON

ON

‘331AIBS BU) JO BOLBLISAL
ay) aaosduwil 0} pounoy) ybnosog AJuno) weyxaipn yim siseq
paJseys e uo jsod JadiyQ pue] pajeuIuejuor) JUBDBA Bl 0} Jruday

uoiiesoqelion

oN

ON

“jesodoad

sBuiaes ay) uiAsIyoe Ui ISISSE [jIm Base abeuIRIp BY) LIYNM oM
jepoyy Auaayaq aanews)y psemio; Buibuuq pue sysenbas juawamas
Kiejunjoa Apea Buyjying “palirudas aq o} jou Jsod UaAaSs mojje

{lim papiaoid aie SBDIAISS YDIUM Ul JBUUBLL BY) Jo mainay -oliojpod
3} SS008 JSPEST] WES | JO [3AS] 3Y) MOJaq S)sod autu jo ssoT

Ma)ABY [RINIDNNG

oN

oN

"S[esodaid

sbuines Buiaaiyoe u) JSISSE |Im S)Sod JUBIBA 0} JUBLIINUIBI-UOU
pue Juawamas Aselunioa e “sjas) ajeudosdde e ase ofjojod
M3U 3y} UIYIIM [0AUOD JO sueds JeL) 2INSUB 0) [9AS)| JopesT| wea |
pue Jabieuepy asiniag ‘ad1AIBS JO PEaH Je sisod GG JO uononpay

MBINDY [RININIS

pauueld uofeynsuod
ofiqnd oysdedsg

)aeqpas)
ayqnd o3 uadQ

uofjeuejdxgy

adA) [esodoigd

Joedwn osjpqnd
B S 849y} JOYIBym
30 uopesuobale)

jesodoud

ay} Jo Aypqessagiep

pue Ayjiqejdedse

8y} 1oy smels HSiY

0E0’0

Butaueuy Jas [0AU0D 1Sad PUe [ewiuy Xep

$20°0

[1vuno? ybnosog AJUNoT) WBYXBIAA UM uoleiogqeiod - Buyels

€S20

mainal aswues - Buyerg

S62°0

asmonisas Juswabeuew - buyeig

w3
s|esodoid
9i-G1

sjesodoid oyoadg

oN

eg xipuaddy

o1joI0d

juswuoliAug pue Buluueld 104 91-G1 Jobpng




Page 45

%691 18bpnq % Se{duaidly}s |ejo0 L
196°S 1e10} 33Bpnq ojjogiod
yorduwy ayqnd Jeybi =¢ Iv6'0 s|ejo} Aausoy3g 18bpng
Joedw aqnd mo =z - S812U8|12)4J8/S)S0I JUBWISIAU J8YI0
yoeduy aygnd Jo8ap ON = | Iv60 sjesodoad ue|d sseuisng jo enjen |ejo)
AIN NOLLVSIHODILVD wy juswuoiAug R Bujuueld
W60 AviOL
"231A18S By} JO AJaAlp
oN OoN JJUOSO3ID JO 9SN PaseaJoul pue adndesd 1saq uo Bumesp ssascosd]  Aouaioyg adinRS 1 0200 suawaacidun ssao0sd wawabeueyy wawdopaaq woy sbunesg €L
juawabeuep wawdopaaQ ay) Jo malAss NyYTT [Ny B axeuapun
“SNOJBUO S8 aW0Jaq ABW SIg)
1ey) sisabbns (g (sajepn) Buiuuelq o) pajeras uonesibs| iepuodag|  Aousioyg aoneg 5
ON ON ‘ojojuod JuswiuosAug pue Buiuueld ay) jo [je Joj siadedsmau [ea0]{ [ maIABY [RINPNAS I 0100 Buisuanpe Jededsmau jo jsod aanpay|  ZL
uiym saonou ayqnd aoeld o} Jualalinbas ay) o maiaal e ayeuspun
‘sajep ssauoe sabieyo adiaas piepuels jas pue apiacid Kousio= 83
oN SIA 0} sey Auoyiny Buluueld [eao ay) jeym Ajue|d 'sadaias uonedijdde 1243 sanBS b4 0200 aaiape butuueid aid L

-a1d Ai0jepuew jo uoisiacsd ay) aonpanul [im (g (Sefem) Buluuely

| M3IADY [eIMOrug

g xipuaddy




ON

SBA

-pabueyoun ulews)
OS[E (W SUIq B1j8aUM J0 AIBAIBP PUE BNURUOD pinom Sauado.d UoOB|I07 PIJSISSE 0} SBudALs(Q

S8 BuisnoH ¢
S8QUaY) 198UL0YD BIYSIUY ‘2
sejis anuen Gulokaey ployesnoH ‘L

‘wioyy eanbas A8y} SIBUIEIUOD MBU AUR J28]100 0}
sjuapisal so} 8q | [esodoud ayy “sselippe Jiay) 0) pasealjep aJe sbeq pue afus) JoejUO) i) [jEd
Apuaund -oje sa|ppes pooj 'sbeq ‘saxoq Guydkoes se yons S1BUIEJLD 8)seEm mau Buuinbal sluepisey

uopanpay asiasag

Ss(puUNoD
Aunwwo) g umop

SaA

‘pasepIsuo
aq [w asudiaju] [BI20S B 0} YoM ay) Japus) 0) Ajunpoddo ay) "salis Byl Je sjpas| BupAsal
2L 9A0sdwWI (W YJYM JOR[UOD PESIANUSOUI UE UD paseq Sajs ay) jo juswabeuew ey} joenuod (g}

sa)is 8y} 0} ssedde Juapisas Buisiundo
U0 paseq papioap aq o} sucneao| paiseBsns oy o) AHUNOD B} LI SB)IS JO JAQINL By} 8oNpaJ o} (1)

:si |esodoid ay] ‘inoqe| asnoy-ul Suisygn pajesado ale sa)s ay) 'Sa[EAA Ul SBNUOINY 8307
J8Yj0 AU UBL) 210W S) y2Ium sajis anual) buipkoay pioyasnoH g seiesedo Ajuauna Iouno) ay)

uonaNpay a2IAes

8o10Bs AIBAIBP SIBUIEIUOD 8)SEM BLY) Buirowaey

oov'o

*SUONIB}I03 ANING BPNIOUI PINOM UDILM
JoenUO3 paseq eduewsopad e ybnouy) 82)aes ay) apiaoid |
pue uojsiroxd sanue Bulakoey pioyesnoH asjeucney |

S870

SIEIoL

ON

oN

SEj0)
JuBLNd uo BuKe)s Yeys JBYIO (e Yym Yels alsem uou Joj Jsjum Buunp yaam Buiyiom Aep G eanpasu)

MaInaY [RINONAS

ON

ON

'SBUBIES JBMO| UO

sejol (oy1ads adnas) susueb-uou Iw SIELEIS MAU JO SIBABS| 801AI3S Aue Boe|dal 0) S 8iojelBy)
uofualu) 8Y) "AIBSSBIBLUN S| B3IAIBS BIUB BY} SSOIDE BII0HIOM JUaUab e Jey) Jes(d awoosq
Sey )l 'sieak om) Jo pouad e 1o S|y} pajesado Buiaey uswabuese sy ul syeusq Jes|d sl asey)
1SIYM "AJBJES PBSESIDU) UB 10} WMJBI Ul SBIIAISS BUBDS|SaS JO SUORIAS BU) SSOJIE YIOM O] JEIS
8y} SaJINbas 8|0) MBU BYY "ZL0Z Ul 8j0) aanesedo auedsieans ouauab e paonpoqul (1ounod ay)

MBIABY [eINPONIS

ON

ON

‘sjsod Jusjeainba swn (Iny Ui UONDNP3I GZ - OZ B SI |2A8| pajsadxa

Jles8A0 8Y) INq pouad uofielnsuod Buunp PaUWLUOS Bq 0} PBjJaJE HEIS JO JaqINN “IWeYNY 18

aseq Hunesado s|burs e ojul Jayiebo) yeis Suibuug pue Gujiom pauIqwoo wol) Jyeuaq ey Juasaides
0} PAONPaJ UBSQ BARY SINONAS BY) UIYIW S1BAS] JBYIO (v ‘[0U02 JO sueds soj sejdiouud ubisep
jeuonesiuebio swojjo) pue S1epee wes] pue siebeuepy 931AI8S JO (9A8| BY) SIONPRI BININNS

mau ay| 's,olojod podsues) By pue BuUBoSIBANS SNOIABI BL) WO JEIS |[B SEPNIDUI YIIUM
pedojaaap aunpongs pejesbajul meu e pue usieuapun usaq sey ainjonns Buye)s sy) Jo metael |1y v

Malney [eIMInas

0€0°0

Jels 8)sem uou Joj Jajum Huunp yeem Bupjiom Aep g eanpony

0800

S

(ueyd Jeek g) sej0) auaasiaans susuab-uou mozuoa_.m

q
a

ayc =

SZL'0

malnel ubiseq uonesiuebiiQ Buwojjo) asmonng Guyels

ON

ON

*sisod juejeanbs awn |Inj U uoONPas G- L

- |aag| pajaadxa Jnq pousd uone}nsuod BuuNp PaLLIYUOD 8q O} PAJOBYE YEIS JO JOQUINN ‘SajeJ anjea
1saq Je J0j23s gjeaud ay) ybnoay painaoid aq w sjuswasnbal isieads Jaylo |y “way) poddns

0} sisixa 196pnq e asaym pue Juswalinbal Jusuewuad e S| 88y} 8Jaum [1uno) e Aq pakojdwe

2 Aju0 {jw SI83WO [BALYDS) ‘BININ) 1 B|qeneAe Buipury Jo [8A8] 8y uo AJUIELIBD OU S0 B[l YW
‘Buionpas si Buipuny (endes pue Juesb YGNosL) BIGEJIBAR YJ0M JO JUNCIWE 31} SV "S8WBYDs oju ndul
jeuoissajoid epiaoid pue esiape o) swee) isienads pakojdwae Ajaelp sey (1unod ay) ‘A|esuolsiH

MBIABY [eINonaS

0500

JUBIj2 JBWS — S82IAIBS |BJIUYDS) Isi|eldads 82inosing

P

aqnd uEuwnm

oanqnd 0} uad

uoneuejdx3

ad4A | jesodoid

joedwy oygnd
B S] 331} Joyjaym
jo uonespoBajen

jesodoud
ayy Jo Ayigesanap
pue Aqeydasoe
ay) 1o} SMES HSIY

wy
sjesodosg
91-51

sjesodold oyioedsg

ON

99 xpueddy

ojjojui0d uoyeiodsues|

pue auedsieeng 10} 91-G| }ebpng




-abejs

yoea je uoisiaoud |ewssiul jsulele Bunse) 1exJew - pouad Jeek 89l B JOAO LONDUNY [Ny By} Japuad)
Aljeuawasou 0} st uofuelu 8y ‘esuadxe 1esib e pasy pue ounad eyl AQ paUME JOU S Udym
juswdinba pue juejd pasiesads jo junowe abise| e seanbas uonesado ayy “yejs bupsixe poddns

Aousioy)3 esines

v SL0°0

aotes Bungino sselb as)ews)xy

oN oN oY Aousbe yw ao1a1es asnoy-ul ayy Aq jno palued si Bungino ssesb eese jo Ajuolew ay)
Sjejol
Jiooag Asejunjop
siasn Bunsng uenon o $8)n0J pasipisqns
s[1ounon sjuawsbueLe jaAel) paseq AUNLULLIOD [B20] JaAlep 0} AJUNWWoD HanpaY 8IABS 1ayjo |e malaas pue podsuel) aaisuodsay puews(] erowey s
AJUNWIWOYD g UMO| SOA 1290] B} PUE S{IDUNOD AJUNWLLOD B UWMO] UIW %IOM DPUE SBIIAIBS SN PESIPISGNS JUBLND BACWRY
siouno) “sielieys Joy Aqisuodsal|  yonessuas swouy swunoy) o
Aunwwo) g umo) ON eoueusjulew Bue) Jo 199dsa) u) S|I2UNOD AJIUNWIWOYD @ UMO] YIW 8JUBLULLOD ||Wk SUOISSTIOSI] uno) g Ayunuiuiod o) SIBlays sn Jo aoueusjulew ebieyd
oN SoA [euiLLB) SNE PIOW Ul papiacid AQuaLInd eajaIes uofeusojul jo asnsojy| UONRNPaY 8dles UOREIS SNE PIOIN Ul BIAIBS LOMEULOJULJO BINSOID| ¢
oN SOA Wa)SAS UOHBLLIOJUI BLUN (B8 JB}BYS SNQ B|Qe)jBIun JusLnd Byl sacway| UONONPaY adlaeg sdojs Snq JE WBJSAS UOfJEULIOJU! BUI [E8] 8SEED) €
51502 fJels 82yj0 ¥9eq U) uanoNpal e Aq aoiaes
pajesauab aq pinom sbuiaes ey sjuswabueue Bunsixe ay) asejdas ued 8jN0J pauysp PASIPISGNS|  UOIONPaY BXHAIBS pesipisqns-uou w podsuel) eaisuodsey puews( ade|dey 4
s1asn Buysig SBA -uou Ajienuejod pue seinGas e Jey Jusixe ey} 0} UM0IB Sey 831AIBS BY) JOj puewa(Q - eMNYS apiseeq
"peuinbe) SjoIyBA JO JEqUINU ||BJBAC 81 8INPBJ PUB BIIAIBS BY) JO UOISIACLD BU)|  Aouaioyg aoinles v G/1°0 € 8seyd maiasy 1984 1
ON OoN 1 X8 |wa Siy| “Jaquieydeg ul jeuiqe) Aq paaoidde sem malnay 1938]4 ey Jo eseuyd [euy eyl
SZ6°0 SjeyoL
S~
‘Jes) 8joIyaA sIouno) ey Jemod 0} ABseus ey A_-
Buisnn o3 Ayunpoddo ay) suado Jodep we|fy 0} 82.nos ABseus ey puaixe o} |equatod 8yl 'selis| uonessuss BWOdU)| v 050°0 ypue| je uonanpoud ABisus ao_m>me L
llypue) yioq o} sjeued diejoacioyd budanponu Aq pasnposd ABIeus o [948) B} 85EBIOUI B} PapusiUl
51} Jusunsaaul WiIAn "pub surew auy) o} uoidauuos sy w Apoeded u Bupinsas Guipnpal st Aiddns ﬂy
oN oN seb ey] -seuiqm seb ybnosy AGieus eonpoid Apus.LnNd PJIEPUEBIS PUE |IYNCOIE JE SBJIS [[ypue| 8yl n._u
uooNpay ednes ¥ 5200 syuswebueue Buibieyo uonos|od ajsem AN Jo meIATET™ 0L
OoN SBA *83IAIBS BU} JO S18SN ||e Jo) eBietid BLIoS JBPISUOD pue 8d1A1aS By} Joy pableyd sejel ey Jo melrel v
‘says anue) 6ulakoay ployasnoH e uonoaljod uofINpaY BaIAISS 5:00 Su0Rd3|0D 6
10§ y3] JoU B1SEM JO 250dSIp O} B|ge Sjuapisay 'pandiue ueaq aAey pajuasaid sulq |8 JeY) jeans : : 81sem uiq passiw Joj Buitunial jo Aajjod Bunsixs a1 aroway
oN Saj Aq 19aqs Jjo ubts, pue %28yd 0} SMaJD "U018|[03 JOj INO 8| Jou sulq dn y2id 0) SYISIA winjel dojs
'SJ011ddNs [B10J8WII0D (220) O] B0IAIBS JOj JuBwBuNbaI Aue| |\ oo oo o . S0IAIBS LONISI00 BISEM SPEN BUl SAOWS
1s0d ubis 0) s) |esodord ay| "SIBWOISNI WGY PAAIZVBI S1 BWOJY) Y] INSUB 0} BIINOSAI Jjets obise| APy SANDS Y 0s0°0 : RERRN92 &) PEl] B} anauwga ‘
& sasinbai pue sanssi Bulob-uo sajeeld ao1Aes sy) Buibeueyy ‘@2snoy-u) uru eq o) pesu Aluessesau
S48 92IAIBS sa 10U SE0p 821AI8S 8Y) ING ‘921AI8S 8)jsem apex e jsoduliis o} uoefiqo Aloymers e sey 12unoD 8yL
‘UOf}23)|02 JO§ pajuasasd jeusiew "
ajsem uapueb jo Junocwe pajiw| e S| 818Y) uaym AUeniqa o} JaquanoN pouad siy) Buunp suoos|od Lopanpay ednies 5200 Aseruge o} JeguIBAON SUOI0D Bisem uapied pusdsng g
oN S8 uiq xoe|q ay) Bululeluiew isjiym Suonoa)jo [eusjew a)sem uspseb |le asead o) si [esodosd 8y
SISEQq 88) OU / UW OU @ UO aq jw sebueys asay) jo uofejuswaldw "sepuaioye §
8A01dW) 0} LONEPUBLLLLIOID) BYEW PUE 83IAJSS SISEM BU) UIYIW: SUONEISDO {8 JO MBIABI B N0 MOIAGH |EININAS v 0s0'0 sisem sesodoud ogsoubeiq §
oN oN Auea o) Jeuped ansoubelp e abebua o} s1 jesodoid ay) melasy 18a|4 auy jo a)e|dws) ay) Buwojjod
(pa1daoxa ejsem poo)) U8B0 JXBU BY) 1B pajoaljes aq e .
|l 81Sem JeuoRippe 2y} pue papiaoid aq jou (W SABPIIOH jueg Jejseg pue SBUISLYD U0 SUONDE|I0D uRIY3 aoIARS v pso' dn Y3183 LONIBI0I SBUASLYD OU puE Bunyiom Aep 2 sanpoiy v
oN S84 "SEQJE BWIOS Ul PAONPOIUI SUONJ3|02 ABPUNS PUE PBPUBIXE B( |jwh SUOHDB|0D 8jSem ABpIneS
uiq jeuonippe Asaae Joj Ajdde jw pue paijdde Ajjenuue aq (w abseyo ay) “pandwa| uonessusg ewooy| 0500 uiq sjsem uspJeb puodes Joy ebseyd e eanpony| €
2q 0} uiq ajsem uspseb puodas e Buuinbas sjuspises asoy Joj 8bieyd e aq (w assyL '19G00
o sap - yosepy siseq ApyBiupoy e uo uig 8jsem uapieb ay) Jo uoyoB||0d B YW papircid Bq (W JuspISa) yies

qg xpueddy




%906 128pnq ¥, sajpusioYe |e10L
£1£°82 1€30} 305 ojjojod
yoeduy oyqed JeyBiy =¢ 0/52 siejo) Aousjoys jelpng
Jordwy 2)jqnd mo =g, 0000 [ouLIda/ | B0
1orduy sitgnd 10ep ON = | 0462 jesodoud ueld JSng JO anfeaA jeyol
AN NOILVSINOO3LVD w3 uopepodsues | g 2UdISIVNNS
[oz5 [avioL ]
500°L Sjeyo)
safuoyiny |eso Buunoqybiau
uofoNpay ennes 4 00L°0 ct
oN SBA ‘sjuswalinbas Aioinjels unosiosd IS|IyM PIEPUE]S BOUBLSIUIEW JBJUW MBIASY JO 1B} YIjEW O} pJEPUE]S BOUBUBJUIBL JBJUM B} MBIAGY
Juswssesse ysu Buwolio) ‘spousd A2 pebuojoid|  uoganpay eoines z 0500 syed mn
oN saA 10 mous Jo spowad Ul Bufes - Sysed JED IDUNCD LI UOISIACI] SUBUBHIEL JSJU BU) MBIAGY ’ . 19 [}2UN0D UM LOISIACID BIUBUBIUIEW JBIUM BU} MBINOALI~
weg pue Wdgz| usamaq Jo| UORINPAY BJIAIBS F4 seaJe |enuapisal |ie ut Bunyb b thu- ol
ON S8A pausn) aq | SIy6Y| JuBWSSBSSE ysu 0} 103lqng ‘seese (epuepisal jle w Bunyby Jy6iu ped sonposy a)
Sipuney BISIUI|  uopeseuas Bwodu z sabuey) Bupped segD) 6
AUNWWOY 3 UMO] SaA Ul syJed Jea anjued umo |ie o} sabseys Bunyed Bupnponul ABajens Bubyed Jed siauno) eyl 8siAey fa
*SISEG 88} OU / UM OU B U0 8q |Iw Sabueyd asey jo uone) |dus) D
*S8I0UBIoYE BACIdW O} UONIEPUBLIWIOIAS 3¥EW pue adiaies Aemybiy ay) ungw suonesado ay) MBIATY |RIMONAS [ auaasiselg sjesodosd onsouSeft= g
oN oN Jo mainal e Jno Aued o) Jauped onsoubelp e ebebue o} si |esodoid ay) meInsy Je8;4 au} Buwojio4
‘swee) Buisues(a sAnIER) 3Y) desy pue
Swies) JuaLLadIojuB B} BAOWAI JO (joAs| Buisuess e eanpas pue) Buusy o) yoeosdde aduesalol|  uoganpey eoiAleg L osLo SWES) JUSWADJOJUD BY) AjBJUd BAOWS JO 8INPeY .
0192 & 82npoul W [esodosd 8y] “umo) Aleae U 8ainas Buisues|a Ajjenb y6iy e epiaocid pue
ON SOA SWIes) JUBLIBIIOJUT [EJUBWILCIAUT pUe JuBwadlojug Bunued M) ylog sey AJua.und §ounod auyl |
S(19UN0D "
ApuUNWWoD § umo| SaA 1euiqed Aq paaosdde Ajsnojaald SE malasl 801AS8S 8 J0 aseyd jeuy duy| UONPNPSY BJMBS z 0€0°0 ta|es 82uBluBACD 2gnd jo eseyd jeuid 9
‘Aouenbayy Jua.na ey je sAe|ds ISiA U SIND |je Buiurelss ‘eouo isnl o) psepuegls|  UCHONPEY Bdlleg z 0£0°0 sobian Aemybiy Joy 1n2 sseub puodes snowey| §
oN S84 ay) aonpal o) aq [w [esodosd 8y] "Jesk e aowm) sabiaa Aemybiy [je Ino o} S) prepue)s ueund syl
*paonpel
9Q UBD SBJIYOA JO JBqUINU B} pue 8d1AIRs BuY) Sjesado o) palnbal yers Jo Jequinu ay) - sewoy
paJajiays ‘6'a ‘sjuapisas a|qesau|na o} juadelpe sjyby asow Joy 1 Buluielel Isiym Qunod) ayj ul|  UONIONPaY 8dlaleg 4 0500 eosnose) Bunyby 1eens pasonpay 14
sJyByp jo Alwofew ay Joj prepuels ay) Gunpas Apuesyjubis Ag e1A1as euy) Aq pelinbal s| Se8ainose)
o Sa) 0 [9AB] paxy B Jey) spuewsap Wb Alaaa Jo sedsl ay) Joj SAep 83y} JO PJEPUE]S JUBLIND BY |
juawdinba pue juejd
0 uononpas Aq pajessuab aq |w Buines ay| “pouad Jybiueao pue Buuaae ay) Buunp Jno palled .
‘)0 Buidaams aRues umo] ‘Buikidwa AINB se 4ONS SUONEJBdO LWk BSEBIOU| 3JOM (0 |BA9] Silj ses|  MBABY [Bimonas h. SZ0'0 Buppom yublu pushg| €
lIw [esodosd ay | "syiom pauue|d jo sjuncwe jlews pue sawuabiews yiw Guyesp (Jeef e sAep 5o¢)
oN oN 6 ey ybnouy) som 9)00ad JO JBGUINU JlBWS ¥ “ZL0Z U1 YIS ButudAe ue padNpoUl BUBISISaNS
Jue(d pue 188y BfdIYsA JO UOIONPBI AG UBALP 84 pinom sBulaes ey “Jeak sy MAINBY [BINONAS L 5200 sease 82IMBS (|2 SS0I0E SUONEsedo Aep , z
Buunp SPUBY3EM BLLIOS HIOM 0} YEIS ||B BNbal ||ws Ydiym Aepung o} suogesado puaixa o) S| uofuajul
oN oN 8y) "}oam Guiniom Aep xis e S9181900 MOU BUBDSIBANS ‘2102 U MBIABY BUBDSIBBAS BY) Buwo|iod

q9 xipueddy




ON

ON

uoisiaard Aiojnjels
[eahius uou Joj jefipng eanpes pue 1sod Jeuohndeld Joues JueseA ajeleq

mojAey |eImanng

ON

ON

sediaes Ajljiqesip [eishyd pue Ayiqesip Bulwes)
10§ sjuewebueue Jebeueyy wee) ofuew pue jsod JeBeuepy wee] e ejejeq

MBIABY [eINONNS

oN

Jues BAes 0} sesjweld e9)jjo ebieyy -
ysod sebeuep | esnpey «

MBIABY [BINIONIIS

ON

oN

ey Aq peinouoy ) ‘piecg
ylee Aiissealun) Jpejempe) isieg jo Ajiqisuodsss ey) Buieq se pessesse|
pue * @)nds|p uj, Ajjuenino Aeuow eser) Wpjeey SuNuKUoD Jey) emsug

uofjeseusr) eWoa|

ON

(0€3 sepun "o')) juswdinbe Jouiw Joj euolieae
1sodubis pue sesjnes Adesey) [euoiiednang Joj eled o} ssedde Jjej Alddy

uoyonpay eajales

oN

uoEdepe oy} JO 1800 By
4oy efueya *Aed o} Ay|ige uo peseq ‘pue suoye)dePR JOUIL JBAIGP ||W Jedey
pue eied Hedey pue aied yiw diy [} Joujw jep o

UBIlEIBUBE) BUWIODU|

siesf) Suysixg

uoddns o 1800 ay) pue safieyoed poddns Buianpel |

Alejeudasdde se |jem se o)) Jo Ajjenb serdoed eacidw) pinoys yoeoudde siy)
spasu ojqibije easy oywm ejdoad

Buno/ 1o} sjuswebueue |euonisues, jo ainjee) Aoy e s| Uoisselbosd ainsue «
sjuswwhed 13811 JO 85N BY) BSILIXBL «

©Uv)|I58)

Jeuossed pue Awouoine pjing jey) sAem ul poddns yBnoue jsnf, Buipiaaud o
{esesete)) uerd poddns ey} jo ped se ABojouyse) Buisiwixew «

:sepnjoul s1y) ‘e|qissod se seAy

juspuedepul se 8A)| 0} ejdoed spoddns Yaiym [epow uoissesboud ey) jdopy

Asusioly3 esjnes

sies Bunsixgy

SOA

‘uoneynsued o} jaelgns eJe sBujaes eaneslpu) ‘sisAjeue Ayoedes jexew
episbuoie eoe(d usse) seYy UCHEYNSUCD OJUO JB6D o ||w sBulwn pue sBujaes
oas1204d 101088 depul ey) usal) L aq ues
18y sjoefosd jo Jequnu ey) “peliep ey} eaey jey)
gz ele oY) “iopes ey Aq liop Aoayiaejie oq o
oy eary Aew jey) masfoid Buia)) pepoddng Apuep) o) euejus dojeaeq

Aoueioyjg eoialeg

siosn) Buysixg

‘uotsiAId 813 ULB) LoYS BINpel W

yoeasdde siy) |leiano jey) peiesiaue st )| (221U seY) U1 sieJed Poddns
0} pepiaaid s poddns ybnoue 1snf, jey) og || fedioul Il

8Y] "pestt [ENPIAIpU| Uo peseq UoISIACId 0Je0 WIS) LIoYS JO (8A8] 84) v

s0)18 Z Bujuiewe) oY) Way) 6q |Iw UOISIACIY "8ied ule) Loys AEp pIeysiQ

JO MBIAB] B} L)W SOJS JO JSQUINY IBJIPLS B UD PBiejjo oq 0} 8Jed Wie) Hoys

uofionpay eoiAles

poddng Ajwe v sBuines

zL

seoiAleg Aljigesi( (sisod Juewebeuew eanpey

893)AIas AJJ|IGESIP pUR S82JAJeS )|eey |ejuew o) yoeraidde molaey

oL

ieeH yiw Buipuny juiof ejenoBauey

(Adesoy), |euoy o) sounw 10) pjoy

suofjeydepe Jouul oy Yoeadde Gunse) suesw doeasq

Bujar dd 6aud, e dojereq

10) [epow |

|9

<

sesnoy Buiar pepoddn
oy} uo ==m=®

(@

d £ d

esnoy uj Aq pap ! ! o eI

4

§400

al

pepiAcid SI 8123 ULS) LIOUS BSNOH-U| BIOUM SO)IS JO JOQUINU B4) MOIASY

siesn Bunsixg

*sebejsdnaib Juel|s || Jof 51 |esodald uosiaad ejdsel eanper
lIw yorasdde sy ‘jjeseao ey pebesiaus s1)) ‘Slal [BOUD JIBY) Ul SIBIBD
yoddns o) pepiacid s1 poddns yBnoue Jsnf, yey) Suunsue eq w |edioupd

BuipinG ey ‘pesu |enpjAipu) uc peseq euejus mau Guidde pue euejuD
He Buisines Aq d ejidses o} y; [ panu]

uofanpey 808G

suasn Bunsixg

84

SJUBLLARS 106J1(] JO 55N BEEEIO] «

Apanoe Aep Ajunuwiwiod
pue |esiealun sseade o} ejdoad o) poddns uue) poys pue syU) dojeasp .
sjuswidojesep

a1e) Bax3y meu pue Buysixe je

nae Aep jo
B1JUBD BEBMBYY BL) JO MB[AB) »
'Se)S JO JoqUINu JB|[EWS B L0 pese}jo eq o) uoisiacaid ajes Aeq

Asueialy3 esjales

siasq) bunsixg

SBA

‘918180 Yoddns 0) puB BjjUOWEP YiMm.
sjinpe Jebuno/ ‘Be uoisiacsd )sieioeds esow jebie) [m eualu) “Jojjo alea
Aep oY) Buwaleu 0} MeIA B Ujw uoisirald 8183 AP JOJ BUBILD BY) MBIASY

uonanpey esjales

pauveid
uoge}nsuoa
agnd oyyaadg

yoeqpaay
ayqnd o} uedQ

uogeuejdxg

adAy jesodoig

Joedwy ayqnd
B 5] 3434} JOYOYM
jo uopespofiajen

ay} jo Anqessalsp
pue A)qeydasoe
Q) 10) SEIS HSIY

ojidse) Joj eusiud ApiqiBile 0siAcI pue moIABY

peptacud s 0JE2 Aep 8SNOL-U| BIBYM SO)IS JO JOGLIN BL) MBIABY

e1ed Aep 10) euejud Aqibite snaojey

w3
sjesodoid 91-G1

sjesodold ayjoadg

oN

29 xjpusddy

Ol|0pI0d 31e) |e190g 10§ 91-G| 33bpng|




2g xipueddy

%T'E Jebpnq %, sajauaiole |ejo L
956'85 230} Jabpnq ojjojrod
Jordw ofignd JeyBiH =¢ 898'T sjejo} Aoueidyy3 Jebpng
yoedwj ajiqnd Moy =Z (00z°0) S8|2U|21J)9/SIS0D JUBWISOAUI J8Y)0
Jordusy ojjgnd Joeup oN = | 890°C sjesodosd uejd ssau|sng jJo anjea jejo |
A3 NOILVSINOO3LVD wy aje) [e|20g
[890z [ SieIoL |
JuBLUSEOSSEE
siesq) Bunstxy SBA |eroueUy [ERPIAIPUI UO peseq (g3 ) sejales Ale|ojwop Joj ebieys Apjeem|  uoneleuss) eulcaul z e1e3 Ateyjionuop 1o0j efueyd Xxew gg3 0} OsY W) BWCOU| PeseeIdl]| BT
oy Aaytod Bul 8, S USIEM Ui o) U|
S0jEl |@)JBL LRIV BLj| U] 81 UOISIAGH] 88N0H U] 1NO j8 "o
°N N esusuejuiew spunoub ;puNo) Ajunog esysiutld Joj siuewsebuele jey) sinsugy fousiayj3 edjnies 4 o 9 40} 1oyl 8z
s6jR1 jeyIBW L BUY| Ui 81 uoisiAcld @snoH U] N0 6 10] MBING
N N je sa21A1Bs Buueeo (Dunog AJuna) slysiull4 Joj sjuewebuele jey) eInsug Aousioy3 eainies L d o Hl Lz
Buiures) sjesodio) Y LOHEI0L-0D O} MOIA | Kieiqi 1o} o6, -
N N € U o)s siapEnbpEay Aresd o) wai) q asiof joy|  A2ue1oUI3 comieg ¥ PEPH A2 o) o L
gpuebe ebueyo aiBeens ey poddns 6 u e Bl
°N ON o) sjuelt ueedaing Jo jepuejod ety pue Asuow |euocifie) Jo esn Jejjeq exeyy Aoueroiy3 eainies L tuowieBieuew abueya Joj SiURID esuIdO s¢
ol oN 9nH Buotssiuwo) (euoibay ouj ‘Aq Aoueidyy3 eojaleg L sBujaes qny Buiuoissiuwo)| 2
N p op pue 'Jo} Buipunj sy Ul sejduBIoYe JBALRQ
sias() Buysixg SO uoisiaasd Asojnjess [eanun o) peubiyje Jou eie jey sjebpng eonpey|  uoionpay ednles L SODI1AIS 8,UBIPIYY Ul uoisiaasd Alcjnjels [eonud o) esnjipuedxe :ﬂ- [%4
L =
Pe8U [eanpopsejenil ([
ssas() Bunsixg seA sjueled asoy) 0} pepiacid poddns yiw (10j088 pIg) suos d 1oppeg A L 19)ieW a1eIp|IYD Oy} ac_mm: k44
BJED P|IYD SJBOA AL LUCY) PBUOISSILILIOD BIAISE JO |0AS| aE o.n:ooocwm
ABejeng
SI8487) 8 8IIYSIU|| MB|ABI puB :R.SSEo_nE. oy jo Jeek jsu) oY) w Ajuc e1e n.ﬂ
HOIYM S8IIAIBS YJ|EOH [BIUBH Ul S10BJUGD BUNEIXS OWOS UO 8310 8AIes 0}
(ounon AWEIUR(O, Aiessageu oq (W )| "USIPIYD 40) UoKaY Yiw diysieuyied ojbejens & dofeaep D.
& D SERIROA BN 0} %08 [|W GM SOIIAIBS S,UBIp|iy2 U} ‘sjustuesibe Bujpun) 8100 Jueuns epnjoul| 101085 AIBJUNOA z Jopes Aiejunjoa o) Bujpun) ubtes: pue moley| |z
Jeoa eaysiull :
os{e (W yoeoidde s)y) ‘piemio) Bulof uonendod ey jo ebues seproiq € Yores
184) @9jA188 jo sjepoil meu Gupjees Alealep esiales pue sejuoud aaiaes
1084ip o) peubije Ajesop aq (|w Buipuny ‘Bujpun) jo uoianpal %01 Jesd uo
1eeA € 8ABIOR 0} 10]908 PIE By} Yiw sjuewebueue Buipun) Bupsixs || meirey
%ﬂﬂm
A pe soyiebo) uq 10} (e es0/dx3 Be1 (m & dd So
N seA j u) sopjacid eA) ue ybnoauy; (sidoed GunoA u:n :Ec__:u 1oeg Aieuniop z OEI0APE 0} Yoraidde (euoiDey| 0z
10} & ) eojAteg A Vv WinoA % Bunsixe -]
sol1nies oljnedesey) ey} pue y d ey 10) a:.vﬂ:n_._
stes() Bunsixg (T8 s Bujpue pue spoenUd efald A||we- pue E.E< oY) 10) %01 Jo uoyonpes|  iojoeg Alejunjop L ueIp|IyY o) uoHOY I Buuoissiwwos meaey| 6L
& Bupenobou o} MojA B Liw UeIP|ID Jof UooY (w sioenuco seyiebo; Buug
euysybiquag yiw uoisiacsd esjales Jo §80o ey} ejenobeuey ‘QddA je sAels
sias() Bupsix3z oN 5 10) posu ey 0} sejuse} 0} Hoddns eATELLENE BPIAGIA Aoueroyy3 edjales z (QEdA) LApAQ uaig se|d (0BsA je eimipuedxe eanpay| gL
oN ap N Aousini3 esiaies L E8MAI0S 5 UBIPIYD Ul sjebpng Buluoissiwwo)) m
ey} Joj yoddns toAep [eweixe o} jebpng eanpey DU 0k : 2 R
esudiejue |B|20S B JO UOHESID BY) IO lojoes payyereaud o) Buisinosino ‘6'e
w15 Bunsixg BAA {epow eojAIes ue ybnauy p yoe eq ueo sbul, Asueiyg eames L |epow Aiealiep saneweyje pue sbunesw dnasb Awe) yaeosdde pejefue) eiopy| gL
J8yun) moy eoidxe :w.t pue Bunebise) 1eseeio ybnay) sbuiaes YGF eaejyoy
oN SBA 891AIBS BY) JeAllep 0} ! ooy 1 Ajuep| uoyeioge|j0) L e31Ales Uoewo) Ajwwe jo Aieallep [opowed|  GL
o 8612UBI31}j0 e I
S N eulopiiom ayew pue diy N pue |etoueuy Jeeb: m:.:m‘ MolneY [BInioNIS b | i o B vt
oN oN 1s0d Jefeueyy wee | | esnpes pue eimonns :o__mom_r moIneY [eInjonng L £99|AI08 SUBIPHYO W ubtsepel asiaes| gL




ON “10}38S AUBJUN|OA JO JUSLLIAA[OAU! PASEDIDUI LM N
N pue AB3eNS 9NAIIS YINOA LIM 3Uy UI S[aaa] Buyers paonpay MalneY [BmonnS + 1600 juswafieuepy Aouedep 3§ suononpay Juawabeueyy pauue|q aoinag YInoA| €2
oN ON ‘s9aa) Bulyels paonpay|  maiasY (eimonag ] 8200 uoonpay Buyjelg asiaiag 3oSNr UYINOA - SB0iAIaS YInoA| 22
oN .
i) uoflanpas 1509 i l ¥00'e (45£3) 196png mainay uonesiueBiQ |00YdS Ul LORONPaY - SIooYas AMuad ISt ¥4
oN “5]0040S
uonelapa4 s1eyoea] peay o} pabseyoas aq |m 1500 ay) Ing Aluouyiny au) Aq papiaosd|  Aouaioyl aoines L 5100 Sjooyas
aq 0} SNUNUOD [|W JOBAUOD Uofoadsul LoEINPa [edIsAyd 0) 831135 uoijoadsul jJuawdinba uoneonps jeaisAyd ioj Aypqisuodsal sgysuel] | 0T
ON "jabpnq .
oN Buiseafa) paonpais sey swooisse|o 3|iqow Guipiaoid jo 5109 Aouaioy3 samag b v00 SWI00ISSE|D Bfiqow J0j uoisiaasd 2anpay | 6L
oN SIA “SiuSWaJnba. Kouaioyg IanIeg I 6100
AJOINIEIS YNM BUJ| U1 DUBMOJIE WIOJILN [0OYDS 2oNpay |eas| Aionjels o0} abueyd Aoyod suuopun jooyos 8l
OoN "SuoJSSIWal
uoflelapad siayoea] pesH Bupaaw so} pasn aq Ajajewniba) ues yolym jueso) uonenudag | o )
. 12143 30115 l 151°0
1 s4asn Bunsixg Idng Paseaisu| aAY |IM SIOOYDS 'S|O0LIS LIIM 1S3 [[IM 1500 sjooyas
ay) Buipuny pue suolsioap uoissiwal Bupjew soj Algisuodsay 0} saniqisuodsal SuoISSIWAL Jaysued] - (Uoisiaald B Buluue)d jooyag) ssadoy FAN
oN ON . $1500 BUiEap Aouaioy3 aoineg I 1100 B B ) d
» Bupjeyases ‘saspuasd Buises|al |ie Aunog o) Jels aedoRy s1s00 buiuea(o 9 Bunjejaled ‘sosiuaid — alBIeS MBI JUBN 9l
ss3sn Bunsiag SBA id 15nq JO | jjeuones pue mainay |  Aousioyg eomes 1 v 0800 3D1AJBS JUBWSSASSY AJOJMEJS Ul UONONPaJ — uoisnou] Buiwea] S
ON SBA |apow juaJayip e pasayo aq o) 8joJ yu)j uogeonpl|  Aoualw3 aoiMBS l 0500 [2POW JUBIBYIP BIA PAJBYO B4 O) BJ0J HUI| UOHBINPS — 82IAIBS aansnp inoA|  bL
. . SSN{NJYYIP [RUOHOWD ‘|BI30S INoiABYRg Yhim aidoad
SBNINJYYIP (BUOROWS ‘[BID0S ‘JNCIABYAY YlM
:oamhwﬂwn_m Mhmummw._m. Al sjdoad BunoA ' UBIPNIYD Jo} a3iAIBS papes) yBnoa uonesauab|  Aousioyg saeg z Y oS00 BunoA g uaipiiyd 1o} 831AI8S papes yBnoiy) uonessual swoaul pue uoisirosd Jun
o S3A awooul pue uoIsia0sd Jun [BL3JaY 1dnd JO uononpay euajay yidnd jo uoionpas — adinlag Hoddng Jnoiaeyag / adiAlag [euaey fidng £l
uoneIapa sJayoea) peay | 5'gol
&
/ s49s Bunsixy SOA JuajeAInba awn I} ul uononpal - ASUBJEA JUBLINYD BT aUNIBS ‘ 0v0'0 sjsod juaeAnba awi [0y U1 UOHINP3I - ASUBDEBA JUSLIND — 3DIAISS JBJIAN UOISNjOU Zi
uonesapa. Si8Ydea] peaH ) G'€ 0} S10j[asunod Jua|eAinber={
A
1 ssasn Bunsig SBA *540[[85UN0D JuBjEAINba BN |IN) Ul UOHONPaJ - ASUBJEA JUALIND B3 SoleS ‘ 0v0°0 B (|ny U) uojonpal - AauedeA Juaund — adinag Buylesuno) saidoad Bunop (™) LI
uofielapa Siaydea) pesH *a0jAs8S JO UopRIRdO ) 150d Jo |[eacwal
/ stasp Bupsixg seA pue A1aAap Su) MaIASY 1500 J0 [BAOWI -KouedeA uaung| oo [eimionas . v S -Asueaea ua.und - Joddng sajeael) AsdAg abenbuen [euonippy ue se :m__mcmbc 0l
uofjesapad siayoea] peaH *AI9A)|3p 30(AI3S JO MIIADS PUE 3|0J JOSIAPE 1apIOSI(] MaIAY [BINONAS L v 0900 8j01 JOSIADE J8pIOsI] Wnidads wsin
| s1asq Bupsixg SIA wnnosds wsHny pajesipap jo [eAowal - ADUBDEBA JUSLING Palesipap JO [BAOWAI - ADUBDJEA JUBLIND — poddns WsNY - S82IAISS UOISN|IU; 6
uofesapay siayoea] peaH ‘uonesauab ) h_I
1 s19s Bunsia aWOoUI Paseaioul PUE LONoNpal 1500 Ybnaiyl Asaacoa) Aauaioyz soiniag 4 v 1900
SaA 1509 ||, O} SAOW O} 9DJAJBS (SN 40 Bujjjapousas Jayung AIBA0231 1503 [iny, O) BAOW O) 3IAIBS ISN JO Buyiapowal Jayun4 g
oN Aouaioy3 asineg 1 0200 TUWAD jeay ) pAM[D yhm juswsasby
nuwA) neayl pAMD Yim Juswaalby [9Aa7 a0IABS [IDUN0D [3A97 921A48G [1DUN07) uew ybnosy apew uoisiacid yum Juswaalby paaT 3o1A8S
oN urew ay) yBnoiy papiaoid aq o} LUoISIACid 3J1IAJAS JUALNY uwAo) neay) pAmiD Bupuny aseaq) - uoieonp3 Guinuguon ¢ §1-p| Alepuodag L
oN “(sBuyes sieak Auea papUNY|  fousjoyg eojAses 1 180 ‘(sBumas sseak Apea papuny
Ul awn Jayaea) %01 Jo uoisiaoid Joj [apow mau Buipnjour) juess up awn Jaydes) %01 JO LoISIACId Joj [Spow mau Buipnjow) wesg aseyd uolepunoy
oN asel Uolepunod juawagnu3 Apes 4o Juawiojdag Buisiwixepy wawapu3 Apeq jo wawkopdaq Buisnuixepy - uoeanpy siesA Apes g Kiewud 9
SaguoLne .
ON oN Supnoqybiau s Buluies BuuBALep UBNOILY ASUBIDY3 Haneoge)on b €000 Aouaioy3 Bulies] Jowaaog| G
ON OoN uawannbas Buyyels uy uonanpay|  M3lAaY |einjonus X 2100 {¥'0) buiyeis poddng joafoid asnpay [
ON ON uawaJinbaJ 126pnq pue s}so0a Buiobuo uy uonanpay|  Aoustowg aces l G000 suandussqng asnpay [
ON ON -uswaJinbaJ 1a6pnq pue s1s02 Buiobuo Ul uononpay|  Asusioy3 aoues 1 2100 saa) [eba p siowanog) o) bunpa)) - asueulopad g buuoissILIWo) F4
oN (ss010paid 1snn Ajwed Jayasi4 pue ejep 6unsal (evofeu|  uopanpay aojsasg I 0€£00
oN uo AjaJ) sJawses)| Joj Bunss) 1sa) Ajigy 2anubo asean Bunsa) 1sa) Anpqy anmuboy) asean - wea | uofeuLoju) pue Jualabeueyy [OOYOS 1
jesodosd
pauueid uopeynsuod }oeqpaay 1aedui ayqnd ay) jo Aiqeseaep w3
aygnd oioedg aygnd o3 uadg uopeuejdxy odAy [esodoig B S) 9J8Y) J8Yjoym pue Aungeidease sjesodoig sjesodoid ayj10edg ON
jo uonesyuobajen 9i-G1
8y} Joj smieys H Sy

P9 xipuaddy

01]0J110d YINOA PUE UONEINPT 10j 91-G1 19bpNg|




Page 52

1oeduy anqnd Jaybiy =¢

1oedwy afqnd mo =g

joedw) ojqnd 10anp oN = |

A NOILVSIHOO3LVD

%S'T 186pnq o, sa1dusIdIYe [ejoL
%L'8 S92|AI8S YINOA '} UCHEINPS JBYIQO UO A2UB1d143 %
%E'0 186png sjooyss uo Asuajaiya %
££5'96 1230} 396pnq oljoju0d
LBTYT uoneanp3 18I0 B Yoo
9bE'Z8 1abpng sjooyass
6501 s|ejo) Asuajaiyys 1ebpng
- S9]OUBIN}IISISOI JUWISIAUY JOYIO
65¢'T sjesodoid ue|d ssauisng Jo anjea [ejoL
wy yino, g uopeanpzy

viol

ON

OoN

"siaquinujrdnd u) uonanpal o}
anp sisixa 1abuo| ou Jo pacnpal sey adiAIas ay) Joj juawalinbal
3} @Jaym S|O0YIS Ul SHUN aounosal jo uonewebiewe/anso|)

Aouaiy3 adiasag

UOISIAOL 82IN0SaY JO UOKESIEUOIIEY

14

uopesapag s1ayoea] peaH

ON

“3SEBJ (W 901AJS
0S 3|QEIALN 3HAIIS 3Y) BUNEL 3DIAIDS BU) LLIOL MEIPLIM
0} uojuaju A3 pajleubis aaey sanuoyine BuunoqublaN

uonINPay AJNAIBS

uonessan g uonebajapaq - 22iaeg Aseiqr] [00YIS S|00YOS

e

pg xjpuaddy




ON

peunbaei ewi) yejs Buionpas Aqasey) seljeys suy pue
aignd yjoq Joy sajeys Buipubal jo yse) ay) uo axe}
0) Buypm si1 jey) saped; e o) aseds doys Aidwe ay) je

Aouaioyyg sonieg

ON

ON

Ajunoss awny Aep pue Aep yaam
UO B8OUEIIB1 BY) 9INPaJ PUE [0JJLOD SSBIJE ||ejsu|

Aouaoyjg adInes

ON

SOA

alow Jo Q| j0 sdnoib
Aq amgejieae sbujooq Buiaes| awwesboid su) woy
suotssas ooy pe sedos ybiy pue Buiguo (e eaoway

uoijonpay adIAIRg

sJsasn Bunysixg

sap

%G € UBY) SSB] PaSEBIIUI USSq BABY SaijAIjoe
pajejal yiesy swos aym ‘sease Buunogqybiau

yim auy) ul asow aq o) abejuadiad saybiy

e Aq pasee.au) uasq aaey suonesiuebio pue sqnd
0} sabieyd awWos '%4G'¢ S! SBINAIIOR SBJIAIBS BINSIa]
|ie sso.oe GLOZ Jo) eseasoul asud abeloae ay|

uolnerauag) awoduy|

9000

puubal sieyg - 21)Ua) 2INsie apIseeq

13

2e00

Aunoag - anua) ainsia apissad

413

6200

sadoJ ybiy
Jo Buiquuijo ooy pe o - a)ua) ainsie apiseaq

S¥0'0

}J1IE} U) 9SBBIOU| UOHEHUI 9AOQY - U870 8INSI9T]

ssasn Buysixg

S8A

suossa| Guiuwms Jeuoiippe
ypm suoissas Buluans asay) aoeidss pue awayos
ssuewiopad Bulwwms esysiull4 ay) Joy poddns pug

uolanpay 3JIeS

0LL'0

suoissag Buiuaz jo jeaoway - pAMID OLON

sJasn Buysixg

SOA

Sa)noJ
Bunjiem Joj uoliesisiniwpe pue uoijowosd Buipinoxd
jou Aq sdnosf anysiul4 Inoqeyepn o) Joddns esea)

10)098 Auejunjop

oN

S84

‘s93.18}aJ Jo} JuawAed pue sjepaw jo aseyasnd ayy
‘syusAs AjunoD) pusjie 0} SISLJEs) Joj S)s02 Alddns
J3A02 0) S{00YDS SBIqEUS Jey) Sjooyos 0) juelb asea)

uolonpay ades

8000

niwio Aep s197 - Juswdojaasqg syodg

Hodg |0049g Ul 34 - Juswdopaaq spodg
ainsien

~age oo

ON

oN

JuE)SISSE AJeJql| euo pue
1eBeuew Aseiq) auo Aq sjeas| Buyjels sy} eonpay

MaIABY |elnjonns

ON

ON

2.)u8d aInsia apiseaq o} sndwed
lIeH Aunog woyy sispenbpeay Aseiqy Jo uoijeool-ey

Aouaoiy3 adialeg

sJasn Bunsixg

SBA

SsiP
lie 0} seuanep punogesnoy Buiuiejas Aqassy) aoiAles
Asamjap AJIGI| Yim 9D1AI8S PUNOGESNOY BUIGWOD

uonONPaY 0SS

€LL0

s|ejo)

890°0

Buyers

0€00

siapenbpeayH Aseigi

9200

S30IM188 B[IqoN

sJsasn Buisixg

S84

ag|iases Buiues|d e ypm uoisiaoid Bunejaies

aoeides pue 3iomjeu Aueiql ay) JoAod o} Jejs

O BSN JUaIDYYE BJOW BjQEUS O) G /e O} daam sad

G Lt WOl seuesql Jo sinoy Buuado [lesano aonpay

uoijonpay adAIeg

6v0°0

sauBIqI JHE)S - SeweIqr]

pauueld uope}nsuod
agnd sytoadg

yoeqpaay
onqnd o3 uadg

uoneue|dxy

adA} jesodosg

joedw oygnd
e S| aJay) Jaylaym
J0 uopesuoBajen

|esodoud ayy
jo Aqesanyjap
pue
Anqeydease ayy
Joj snjejs ySY

w3
s|esodoid
9L-GI

sjesodoud oy1redg

ON

99 x|puaddy

I 3ONVHO TVNOLLVSINVOYO

otjojiod
abuey? jeuonesiuebiQ 10) g1-G) yobpng




‘sndwied ay) punoJe asueaANs A1DD
pancsdwi ypm 1ayjabo) ‘jleH Alunos) je umop asojd
Buipging 0} asow o} pasu ay) Josyje. o} A|Buipiodoe

92NPAJ PUB BINOSEI JO [OAS] JUBLIND MBIABY

uoyoNpay 32IAIRS

9L1’0

suolonpal yeis
Aunaeg

1200

sjejoL

‘SpPRUoD
19)JEL [BUIB)Xe BSESIIUI UOIPPE Ul pue AunoD
B8y} jo see.e 0} BoinIas Buiues)o anejediad e Janjeg

UOIBIaUSS) SO

2000

(afiqow) Asnyjep o japow Juasayig

ON

ON

,S8)Is Jayjo jje

o} [|leH Aunog Je pajdope uoleaytoads pacnpal ey}
N0 [|0Y "SBYS [[e 0) PaIaAIDp uoledyiaads Jo S|AS)
Jenoiied Ul 'adiales Buiuesid ey} Jo mainay, Jo saul
sy} Guoje Guiyiswios agheyy "paseAyap S| aslABS
WwauNd ay) Aem ay) pue salua) ase) Aeq pue
SBWIOH {eHUSPISaY ‘sjooyas Aewild ‘sjooyos ybiH
0) paJaAljep Se2IN0sel adialas Buuajed ay) Jo meinay

MBIABY [BINjonnS

16100

(uononpad 1509) abueys |einjonns jjels
Bujuee|)

__|e6eo

sjejoL

sap

‘Sfaa8| 1qep
apjoe} 0} uoijoe ejendoidde aye) pue sjesw |0oYas
0} Bunesel jqep jo siene] ey} Alpaoage aiow abeuep

Aouaiiyg adnes

S20°0

(awoouw) Janosal 1q9ag

"dn @)e) esealau) 0} S|eaw

jooyos ay) jo uoijowoid pue Bunexysew pasosdus
sasnbai sy -aiqessiyoe st jey) jebie) e aq pinoys
%2 1y} Buneoipur Apnis Juedal & Yim %pE Apuasna
s1 S{e0yos ul dn aye) pue asuewsopad N

Aouapuylg aoInies

| 080°0

(awWwooul) siaquinu |eaw asealou|

"KIBAljap PUE |01}U0D XJ0)S JO

wuopeld awoas|e ue o} Bulaow pue ‘ejsem Buionpas
Agesay) Juswabeuew ejep J1UOLIB[E 0) SAOW

pue pabeuew s 300is ABM BYJ JO MBIABS B 8)elapun

Aduaidiyg aoineg

| OvL'0

JoJjuod pue Juawabeuew }o0ls

“paJBAIep SI BOIAIBS

e.uno ey} Aem ay) pue sesuer) ased Aeq pue
SBWOH [eluapisey ‘siooyds Asewtld 'spooyos ybiH
0) PaJBAIBP SB2IN0SBI 801IAIBS BulIBleD BY) JO MBIABY

MBIASY |enjonig

[A4 04V

abueyo [esnjonys yejs

Page 54

"9iAI9S BU} JO AJDAIBP DILOLOBIS JO BSN PasEslaUl
pue aooeid }saq uo Gumeip smoy yiomiaded pue
$955820.d 82140 8Y) JO MBIASI NYT B 93euapun

Kousioy3 soneg

S000

Aouatoiya aoyjo pue sabueyd ssedoud 3O
Buuejen

¢ 3ONVHI TVYNOILYSINVOYO

€190

} abBuey) jeuonesjuebiQ |e3o)

ON

SaliA)oe pajelas pue suolanposd wol
BLI00UI Ul SBSBaIoUl pue ‘sJS00 Bulyels ul uolonpal
B YliM pauIqLIOD ‘g 0} § WO SMOYS Ul UoIIonpay

UONEJaUSL) BWOdU)|
Rousioyg soinieg
Juononpay MRS

00z0

Aaonpoud aseasoul pue smoys aonpai o) [esodoid

|43

nwij neey) pAmo

00£°0

s|ejo )

ON

ON

sa.p)
0} Jnoj woyy s1abeuepy Ayjoed Jo Jaquinu sy} 8anpay

MIIADY (RINJONAG

600

Jabeuepy Ao - ayua) ainsia]

€l

siasn Buysixg

s8)

‘PaoNpaJ SBY SPUSKSaM BY) e BJjuad 8y} Joj puewsp
pue Aupoej SuiBueys umo sj sey mou D4 Asulies

se Aepinjes e uo aiue)) spodg Asujes asoi)

uolonpay adnes

000

Aepinjeg 9s0j) - a2)ua) spodg Aaujies

cl

a9 xipuaddy



Page 55

%LET yeBpnq %, saisua1dyja |ejo |
86b'6 |ejo03 18Bpnq oljojiod
yoeduwy aqnd JeybiH =¢ 90E'T sjejo} Asuaioiy g yobpng
- S8I2UB121J}9/SISOI JUBWISISIAUI JBYIO
Joedwy 9jjqnd mo =g
yoedwy agignd 39831p ON = | 90€'T sjesodoud ue|d ssauisng JO anjeA |ejo |
A3Y NOLLYSINO93LYD wy abBueyo jeuonesiuebip
_ 90€’L _ JONVHI TVNOILVSINVONO ._<._,O._,_
€£9°0 g abuey) jeuonesiuebiQ ejor
6510 sjejyol
*901AJBS 8} JO AIBAIIBP JU0J)IS|S JO 8SN PISEBIoU R
oN ON pue aonoeud )seq uo Buimelp smoy ysomsaded pue Aoueioy)3 sawues S00°0
$855820.d 201J0 8Y) JO MBINBI NYT T B 8}ELOPUN Juswabeuew a0 a9l
oN oN '}S02 82IAJ8S puUE aoeds uonepowwooe Buonpas|  Aouaioy3 8RS 000
‘51500 Buluung 8910 8Y) Jo MBIABI N3 B 8xeuapun s}s02 Buuunt asyo Sl
‘ajisenb saddn Apeaue s Asanep
©OUBUBJLIBI S}i O} UONE(SL Ul Bouewlopad SjouNoD
8yl ‘sjuawasnbal SOUEBUSILIEW U| UOKONPaL
[BJ)EU B 0} PEa) |Im jey) [apow Buiuoissiuuos .
ON ON € UO paseq ‘ainjny ey) ul aoiases soueusiuiew| MENSY [BINONAS 0s1°0
pue ubisap Apadoud e Buisaaljep jo Aem saues|
PUE juBIoy)e BI0W B Puk LOIESIjeuoEs UBNoL}
‘aje)se Apadoid Buionpas e ypm uonouNfuod ut 12Bpnq soueusjulew sonpay
sjabpnq esueusjuiewW Bunsixa SIOUN0D ay) JO MBIADY uBisaq @ asueuajuiey Auedoid vl
0€0°0 sjejo)
‘sjasse Apadosd
siasn Buysixg 7Y N0 JO UOIEOEBA JUBUB) LD S)SO9 UolEPIdelp JO| UONEISUIL) SWOIU| G000 (312
Sjueus) woy AIBAOIS] BAIJOBYS BJOW PUB PASEaIIU| suoliepide|ip) A1aa023. }s02 Juswabeuew sjelsg €l
"991AJ9S 8U) JO AIBAIISP JHUOLIIDYD JO 8SN pasessoul i
ON ON pue eaijoe.d jsaq uo Bumesp smoy yiomusded pue Aouaipyj3 eaines ¢000
$855600id BIIJO BY) JO MBIABI NYTT B avepapun juswsbeuew ayo zZl
sJasn Bupsixg SAA s80uedl| Buizesb pue sjual [einynobe ‘'sases] jo| uonEIBUBL) BWODU) €200 S|emaual asean
|EMBUSI * SBSEB] MBU L0 BLUOJUI [RJUB] Ul SBSEaIoU| sajejs3g g suojjenjep i
5000 sjejoL
‘sndweo fleq N aoueudUIENy
of 0 Aouaroyg aoinue
N i Auno? o} 1abpng esueusijuiew ayoads Ul uolonpay 10413 soInIeS 5000 18410 oL
0100 sjejolL
siosn Bunsixg OoN ‘uaisiaoud onajeduad pue aaisuodsal asow e uodn uonesauss) awoau| 0100 SBSE3IOUI BWOIY|
Paseq Sasn WajsAS Lol aWwosul 83} JO AJBA028y ALDD 6
9Li0 sjejol

ag xipuaddy



19 xipuaddy

UAyeoe JuU

%L9 «Qmﬂ:.u % S3DUIIIYS [B)O |
010'S 12303 Jobpnq ojjojog
1oedwy syqnd JeyBiH =¢ SEEQ sjejo) Aoueioyy3 yebpng
los0 0) 19ue|91}40} [REDTe)
eduy ojiqnd mo =z
Joedw) aygnd Jpesp oN = § S8E0 sjesodosd uejd ssauisng Jo anjea |ejo |
AIM NOILVSINOOD3LVD wy S3UNOSITY ANV 37d403d
GBE 0 sesinosey 3 epdosy
[sie0)
“uopnios
oN oN 8Al}08)j6 }802 010W B SE Jopirad eagews)e|  Aoueiol)g 831A8S L Buuresn pry-jsul4 jo Buisinosing
ue eia Bujuiel piy Jsid JO UOISIAGLY
“@2I0PIOM U] Se10U8idijje buneeld
oN oN AqeJey) sesseoaid eApensiLIWPE slooyaS|  Aouepyy3 eointeg L S{00YaS 0} OTIAIRG O Jusi || jO uoHBIUeUS|dW
pue uo esueljel jo uoonpey
oN N ‘aoeds UoHepowCde BaNPe) 0} ofife pue|  Asuatoyyg acialeg L [ eseyd) suowebuewie
0Of Y 4 L
el fo UonEueweldu pue Logouwold Bupgopm eBy g ejqixely jo (%0S) no-joy seyung
“suewennbel eimny
s,uofiesjuebio ay) jesw Jayeq o) ubiseq
L oN |eucyiesiuefiQ § $62IN080Y UBWNY 1O} Mone) |EININIS b se(as qof pue |epow Bupeledo)
2imanys pue |[epow Bupesedo ey} meinel o | uBiseq jeuonesjuefi0 § S82IN0SBY UBLINK JO MBIASY
"860IN0801 |
HH U0 83ue|[es 8INPeS [ PUE eInn)
oN oN e 10j paulepes aq o peeu siebeuew|  Aoueloyy3 eojales it
PuB M JO senliqisucdses pue sefol suafeusw / [WyH) sesinosey
8 JBY) Ul BACYE B810I0X6 By} sjuswelduio) uBwN Jo}) SBNIIqISUOdSel pUE $8j0l Jeed eulepey
16 y Aaueaiyns jies .Emmucus__ L u
oN ON Jes It | q o} Aousioijg eojales 1 2
{Isdn o} esiuexe juewelieuew pueweq o stoasy ! O} =S eidood eandey3
ubiseq jeuoyesiuebiQ § S82IN0SY UBWINY
0220 SiEi01
unp: o|qe[ieAe 00L 0
oN oN Asens je pesiwixew ase senunpoddo|  Aoueidy)3 esiales [ o ueib om:vSN Ul peliiuop)
Bujpuny jueib jeY) BINSUS 0} B8I2IEXT A v ¥ : : =
0) suofouny eaueul jsyeioeds Aay jo melrey Hhep! o) suofioun) 4 151 # ey
‘UOfOUN) B3UBU] WBpOW & sB sjBsedo
ON oN 0} pue sBioUeDLYE BABIYJE O Besses0xd |  MOIARY RIS 3 ‘|opow 83uRUY MBU JO IO [jo] peseyd
SBOU(BNG PUR BINJONIIS jO MBIAB] B puB
|OpO BIUBULY MOU € jO UoliejuBwejdw) 8y ]
SUOINpB] PUE SO]3UBII1}JG 03I0)HOM Seiousoy)e eoJojjiom Bujqeue
0} PES| (W Y2iMm UOHUBAIBIUI [ENUBL | sy d sno pue dui 0} @oueuy
oN oN 1O WU ey} Y ‘Afjus|aiye elowl |  Aoueioy)g 01ABS L =) Bujuue|d eAyeIoqe)jo) JO uoy (e}
uexeuepun g o} Buuojuow jebpnq ejqeus’
liw 408 MOU SI4) JO Uolionponul ey
FONVNI4
|esodoud
pauue)d seanas. 1vedus) agnd ays 10 Apiqesanyle w3
uopeynNsuod o__.“_: nﬂwo: “ 4o uopeuejdx3y adA] jesodoiyg ® S 348y} Jalaym “:“ >._____n_.nm_~ nuumn_.mn sjesodosd sjesodoig ayp0eds
aj1gnd syyoad 0 uopiesyobaze:
119 oadg # Hes). 1ed ayy Joj SMEIS WSHY 9}-G}
oljojHod

$821n0s9y pue a|doad 40} gL-G| 196png




%T'T- yabBpnq ¢, sajouajoyle |e)o)
8rb'8 lejo} 3eb6pnq ojjogiod
yoeduwy 2qnd saybiy =¢ (zsT'0) sjejo) Asualoy] yeBpng
yoeduy a1jqnd Mo =z {ogp0) S812Ud[D1J9/S)SOD JUBWISIAUL JIBYIO
yoedwy a)qnd 10eup ON = | 8yT'0 sjesodoid ue|d ssauisng JO anjea |ejo}
A3N NOLLYSINOO3ILYD wy 8JUBLIBAOD
8vZ0 9IUBWIBAOG [BJOL
s[ejoL
[\
oM aN ‘puewsap ui sybnouy/syesd pesids pue xuw S|I)S 8seaoul I WEYXSIM Ylm _.o
0) WeyxaJp Ynm paseys AIBANEIOGE|(|0D 8q (W SHOM uofiesoqefon 201nIaS 11 paseys jo Aenlep ybnosy s1s02 Jets pue juswabeuew u) uolanpay
121 )
SIEI0L
“Wea) Jabie) oy JO 6oUBI58) oY) Jo0)8l F3
0} padnpes eq (W Jepes| wes) molaq sisod Jo Jaqunu DI
OoN oN llesaao ay) spiepuels (euonesiuebio sjeaw [onuUod L
j0 ueds sgepes| wee} 8y} JBY} OS PBUIGWOd 8q (W
258U | ‘Swes) ||ews { JO SISISUOD SBJIAIBS JNeIJ0WS(]|  MBINBY [RIMONS wes) 8|6uIs € ojul Swes) HiNW 8jepIosuod - Buyels
"SIequieLl JO Jequinu WNLIXEW ~ T
oN oN sy} uey) Jems) Buney jewiqed o) enp ped u) paunbel i
uey) Jofie] s soouemolle sequwsew Joj 18bpng eyl| Aousioyg sames puads ouolsiy Yim su)| uj sjabpnq sonpay
JILVHO0N3a
siejor
‘puewsp ui sybnoly/syesd peaids pue Xiw z
a SIINS 9SBSIOUl 0) WEeYXBIAM UYum palseys Ajsanesoqge|iod
N N eq |wm yop Jebeuew 8ibuis B JBpun pauiquod 4
aq W yaym sweel g Jo Sisisuod saoweg |ebe|  memey leanprig malnes aanes - buyers
SNounod T
Jayio jo jey jey Apjewixoidde si jabpng eawues ey)
oN oN 10 % B SB PaWee 8odul 8Y)) SS[EAA U S|IDUNOD JByio L
Yim Bull U} 1UNOD 8y} ypm sjuswsaalbe |eBa| Buusjue
oje siedojpasp o) pableyoss seay Byl OSEBSOUl Of| UONEISUBS BWODU| 8LW0oU| 8SBAIIU|
Ivoad
|esodoud
peuueid uoye)nsuod )oeqpaay 1oeduwy aijgnd oY) Jo Ajjiqeaaalep w3
B S| Jay) Joyjaym sjesodoy s|esodol
ajjqnd oyioedg alqnd 0y uedg uoeueidx3 adfy jesodoid | 2404 Jauiey pue Ajqeydasse ! d fesodold aypdedg ON
Jo uonespobelen 9L-GL
oy} 10§ SMEIS NS

69 xipuaddy

01]010d B3UBUIBAOY) 10} 91-G|, }oBpng]




Fadye o

0510 8
ON SoA 1a8foid Jeak ¢ Bupsixs jo uonenunuod - ueb yo aug UOREIBURD Suiodu| b JUNODSHg UOSIad 3IBUIS MaIASY
OoN SaA S|iq Jaded || 10j abJeLD | 3|  UDREIAUaD) awiodu] z 090°0 S||\q Xe | [1ounoy) Jaded Joj 9BJeyo 1€y L3 aonponu| 7
oN SaA sopoeid uonEeIauUas) aWooU) z sz0'0 9
pJiepuess se sjuawded pJed ypaid uo ablieyains 9,z y suawded psed ypasd uo abieyains %z
Sanuad 820°0 G
oN SaA S193UU0Y) auysiulld Je papiacid aq |im IDIALAS - Aouaroyy aoinag z
sjuawded anlaoal o} [1ounod ayy sabieyd aoyQ 1sod uondo WwawAed Se a2yJ0 1504 JO JeACWY
vl aoLo v
N ON Jawwns - Jauigen) Aq paaibe Apeasje 1abse) awoou) UONEI3UBY SUa ‘ 321A19S J)ieq asnoy-u|
UaWabeuew ASUEJEA 00L0 [
pue Aouepunpas Aselunioa ybnosy) pasaalag “siesk
oN N € Jan0 juelb suojsuad pue SHJOM Jo usunsedaq MaINSY [RIMINAS ' v spjauaq Lo} Juelb suotsuag
0} 5)S00 }J€js Yojew o} sisod ul uopanpay PUE SO JO Juswpeda(] 0} S)S0D YElS Yojew O} AIMONISaI YIS
oN oN 51500 UIWPE U) BUIABS | Aousioy3 aoialag [4 500 SPIOJpUE"] 0] SaSIAPE aoUeqiwal bulpuas bulddo)g z
€000 3
S 84 S111q 9 da1a02. ajdoad auow se abejsod w Buines Aauapyi3 adiniss g suonesynou 7 Buyq a Buines 196png
S114IN3E ANV SANNIAIY
€Zro sadjueg yoddng Ajjunwiwo) |ejo L
Hoyep Y BuiBiey) isepeal: 9 ot
= e 201A19s Jasyo Ajjiefued o) yaam sad G| 3 Buibseyd uoneJsuag suioouf £ IDiE4D 1sepiealgy peg
suopesiuebio 5000 Bu 6
o s3, UONBIBUIS) W0 e
o & |eusaixa o) bues) bupiacud Joy Buibreyn NESLSD Susod] : = L
0020 8
ssasn Bupsng SBA (pabieyd ANUBLING S2INUB) JBYIO [I) “90IAIS UOREIBUSS) SWOodU| z v Guibsey) aued9pe]
uee Aunwwod ay) Joj siueus) [puned buibiey)
30)AJ3S = L
sJasn Bugsixg SaA asuodses (puossad SINoY J0 10 L 0 BuibJey? UONBIBUSC) SO 2z v 3|doad Jap|O 40} asinRS asuodsay
Buises| Apadoid ovo'o 9
oN OoN 6oy swoour lysuag BuIsnop BuSIXEN UORBJAUSS) BWOOU) 3 Buisea| woy Jysuag buisnoy
30]A185 JnoquBiau 0£0°0 [
poob buipiacid ssaajunjoa Aq pajuawaiddns
s4asn Bupsig oA 201038 Juawabeuew Aoueoea pue Aouepunpal MBIASY [eINONAS z v aainiss Joddng v v paseg i &/
Asetunjoa ybnouy sJesk ¢ a0 sisod ¢ Jo uonanpay
5195 bunsig SaA abesn 10} JUN0D0Y enUBAaY BUISNOH SBJEU])|  UOReIsusSY awaal) ] 8r0°0 S8RUSD ANUNWWGD y
ON oN 1sod sabeuepy | Jo uofonpay MIIADY [EINNNG | v 0v0'0 aIMonNsay JUSWAbEUE - S8a1A1aS HoddNg AYUNWIWIOD) e
Spiojpuen Ao)j0d UOEIoiE 0£0°0 4
61905 pasaisiBay ON S1BuIS J0j SPIOJPUET] (100G PasaIsIBaY 9B1Ey7 UORBJ3UaS) JWOoou| l 1valoig suoneao|ly pue ss1sibay Buisnoy
sBuires 0200 I
oN SaA JaAap pue adinas syBU aiejam Jo Lol Mmalnay [eInjonng L v mainay wea ] siubny asejam
plenGajes o} AJaAljop 80IAJSS JO [9pOW Japisuo)
S3IDIAYIS LH0ddNS ALINNWWOD
810 S90|AJ9S JOWOISND |BJ0 L
N S2A wiol} pasaalap aq o} wu_tmﬂo._ns_wm:ﬂ_%wﬂ _M_Eww Aauaroy3 ssinag 2 v 0£0°0 |enuajod wmwﬂﬁhuﬁﬁwhﬁwﬁww“Mw%:rw_ﬂuhﬁﬂwﬂ_ﬂ ¢
of 9, lustanbal Sk pade|cal Aouaioyq 901A8 [
N A SEY UONELLIOJUI 3}ISqam |19uno) AJuno?) anysjulld 12443 82IAeS 4 800°0 syooqauoyd | g ul paape abed |} louno jo uonejjeoue)
oN SaA Buipueq MBIAY (BIMONAS z v Si[E3 BUoLdarey b
\[e2 wi1aya Joj suondo nuaw jjeo Aq paoejday B 6600 PJEOQUONMS UIEW J0j adiasas Buuamsue [euostad au asoj)
SIDIAY3S ¥INWOLSND
q w3
1d uoges) {2eqpaay 1oedw oygnd e s) jesodoad ayj) jo Apiiqesaasep
agand oyoeds | ayqnd o uedg uoneueiha adALiesodoid | o 0u; sousoum jo uopestioBaren | pue Angeidecoe ayy oy Smiels NS m.u@mpomwi stesodoid oujoads .
ojopiod

yg xipuaddy

asudiejug pue Ajunwwo 10§ 91-G| }ebpng




%L°0T y96pnq ¢, sajousjoyje |ejol
LITYT |ejo03} }obpnq ojjostod
yoedw) aqnd JoybiH =¢ SIS'T s|ejo) Aouajoyy3 186png
{oso0) S219UB8II1Y)3[SIS0I JUBSAAUY JBYI0
edw) oygqnd mo"y =z
1oedwy 3yqnd 1094p ON = | S98°'T sjesodoud ue|d ssauisng JO anjea jejo} Lo
A2 NOLLVSINODZLVD w3 aspdiajug g Aunwwon
§95°1
001’0 d
oN oN MaIADY [BINIONAS i 2l + AL
sisod sabeuey Jowas g Jo uonajag ’ FANLINYLSTY LNIWNITOVNVIN HOINIS
260°0
19UR0D S10al0Jd [EjUSWUCIIAU 6000 3
Aejunjop jeoo anysiui4 S2A Jo BuoissIwWwoD J0jas puiy) 1o 196pNg paanpay sorag Arewnjop ‘ s198f0.d [ElUBWILOIIAUS AJUNWIWOD 2oNpaYy
uofieuoju 9100 €
oN S9A paseq gam paaosdi) pue asjAIas S10auu0g Yim MBIABY [BINTONUIS 1
92e|das pue anuBd UOKEULIC/U] 1SUNO) JO AINSO|D sapunuoddo uofewUojul ISUNT) [BpoWaY
OoN ON 1sod sabeuepy Jojuas | Jo uoRaEQ MIIADY [EINjONNIS 1 2200 S1aBEUBW JO)USS ay) aJnjonnsay Z
Sv0'0
oN oN Aouepunpals Lejunoa MalASy [RINjONIS L e
ybnosy aaaiyoe o) adoy - sisod 130140 Ul uoNoNPaY 221A19S §0 3(E9S Ul UOONPaY
{S30v1d) NOILVHaINID I
1
1s0d papesb
oN o 1amo) yum aoejdal ‘Asuepunpas Asejunjoa ybnosyy MIIABY [BJNIONAS L *AINURUOD 3DIAIIS S)EPOWIIOITE 0} 3IMONIISay Buyels
150d auo Buiso) wes) aunonnsas snid ‘(IPUNod
Aq papuny Ajiefued) 3sod wiay paxy jo uonapg
ANINJOTIAIA SSANISNG
88L°0
Ajuo 8300 ol
oN OoN JETETL TR ELIIYETS z
UONB0||B SUOISUS PUB SHIOAA JO Juswpedaq ash wawded Buisnoy Aseuonaiasig dn doj o} Jou uoisiaQ
1§auaq xej ||3unod 0020 6
ssasn Bupsig S2A lenJed jo 1dianal ul siauoisuad Joj dn doy jo [eacway Aouanya somsss 4 uesb Jauoisuad jo yuawied uoN

yg xipuaddy



oeduwst o1qnd 13ybiH =¢

Joedwy onqnd mo =g

oedwi oignd 3021p ON = |

A3X NOLLVSIHO93LVI

lejol

ON

ON

'sbulpfing 2iA1D Je bupyied
Jed Joj Buibieys pue aaes|
|enuue Jo joeqAnqg ‘sied jood
10 asn o0} Bunejal Lousioy3

Aouaroy3 sonues

00€0

{esodold Aouaioyy] adJoPHOM

ON

oN

‘wa)sAs

Apisgns wouy yxa (SYuH)
JUNO22Y anuaaay bBuisnoH jo
Joedw) ‘swwelboid |eyde) pue
SaouBjeg B SOAISSAI JO MBIASL
Bumojjo) Bumouloq uo Jsassju|
jo uonjonpay “abiseyd ayy 19)ep
0} (dHIN) UOISINOId anuaAay
wnuwuip jo buyosday :sease
uiew aaly) o) anp Asus|oy3

Aousioiy3 99IAIBS

0e8’L

MIIADY JUBWISBAU| R SUBOT [BNUBD

ON

ON

‘pasinbal

186u0| ou sieaA snoiaaid ul
UOI}Bljul pJEpUE)S UOU JO) 9pise
13s 196pnq o) Gunesas Asusiow3

Aouaioy)3 aolAIeS

Aouaioiy] 196png aseq uonelu| piepue)S UoN

ON

ON

‘leMos

Buioioaul 21U0119319 JO asn ay)
Joj |1I9UnOY 3y Jo sislddns o}
abieys e buifjdde o} uonejas ul
Aunuoddo Gueiauab awoou|

UOIjeI3Ua5) SWOooU|

v

9Ll0

Buibieys Jayddng juswainsold

pauued
uoyE)NSuUod
211qnd oyoadsg

Joeqpaay
211qnd 0y uadQ

uopeuejdxy

adA) jesodoid

yoedw) oyqnd
e s1 a9
Jayjaym jo

uopesuobajen

jesodousd
ayy jo
Riqesaaap
pue
Aingerdasoe
ay) Joy
smejs MSiy

w3
sjesodoid
91-Gl

sjesodoud oy1oeds

ON

lg xipuaddy

ajesodion B [esyuan g1-G| y9bpng

Page 60



Budget 2015/16

Council Fund - Revenue

Specific Grants

Education
& Youth
Non Delegated

Delegated

Social Services

Streetscene &
Transportation

Planning &
Environment

Community &
Enterprise

Organisational
Change

Chief
Executive's

Total

Basic Skills

Language and Play

Community Learning

Community Focussed Schools

Welsh Baccalureate

Families First

Education of Travellers

Foundation Phase

Free School Milk

Funding for Youth Work Training in Wales
Learning Pathways 14-19

Minority Ethnic Achievement

School Effectiveness Grant

Pupil Deprivation Grant

School Uniform Financial Assistance Scheme
Youth Service Revenue Grant

Welsh in Education

Welsh Network of Healthy School Schemes
Education Improvement Grant for Schools
Youth Crime Prevention Fund

YOT / Youth Justice Board

Teaching Induction Training

Youth Engagement Programme

National Literacy Tests

DCELLS (Post 16 provision in schools)

Social Care Workforce Development Programme

Well Being Activity

Flying Start

Implementation of Mental Health Act 2007
Youth Service Community Service Grants

Concessionary Travel
Local Transport Services
Sustainable Waste Management

Safer Communities Fund

Food Hygiene Rating

Animal Health & Welfare Enforcement
Substance Misuse

Crime Reduction and Anti Social Behaviour
Planning - Delivering for Wales

Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator Funding

Supporting People
Communities First
Tidy Towns

Free Swimming

Nationai Exercise Referral
NE Wales Play Forum
Active Young People

LSB Development Support Grant

Budget Budget Variance to
2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
£ £ £
137,526 ] (137,526)
] 58,376 58,376
3,311 2,034 (1,277)
97,877 97,877 0
61,740 61,740 0
1,735,285 1,735,285 0
70,673 0 (70,673)
4,949,746 0 (4,949,746)
179,773 179,773 0
22,000 22,000 0
360,000 0 (360,000)
128,032 0 (128,032)
1,403,508 0 (1,403,508)
2,295,918 2,525,510 229,592
30,487 30,487 0
126,756 126,756 ]
215,374 0 (215,374)
87,320 87,320 0
0 6,446,505 6,446,505
] 221,882 221,882
327,280 241,006 (86,274)
0 30,000 30,000
] 50,000 50,000
35,450 0 (35.,450)
12,268,056 11,916,551 (351,5085)
5,935,481 5,787,094 (148,387)
5,935,481 5,787,094 (148,387)
356,833 367,000 10,167
10,000 10,000 0
2,722,790 2,954,700 231,910
0 ] 0
0 0 0
3,089,623 3,331,700 242,077
1,991,843 2,058,000 66,157
399,062 399,062 0
2,976,172 3,006,226 30,054
5,367,077 5,463,288 96,211
76,868 221,881 145,013
5,969 0 (5,969)
15,646 ] (15,6486)
293,353 638,139 344,786
121,203 31,566 (89,637)
20,000 0 (20,000)
27,500 37,500 10,000
560,539 929,086 368,547
6,483,688 5,809,818 (673,870)
708,911 708,911 0
0 0 0
7,192,599 6,518,729 (673,870)
156,567 164,807 8,240
118,750 125,000 6,250
340,086 319,010 (21,076)
439,867 541,638 101,771
1,055,270 1,150,455 95,185
50,000 50,000 0
50,000 50,000 0
35,518,645 35,146,903 (371,742)

Page 61

Confirmed (C)
or Estimated (E)

aommommmommmoOoooommOoOommmMmmMmMmMmMmMm

mmm mmmmmmm mmm oommm m

mmoOom



Page 62



Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Summary of Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Service Reserves
Social Care

Total

Corporate Reserves
Equal Pay / Single Status

Business Transformation / Workforce Planning
Total

Specific Reserves

Insurance Reserves

Housing Benefits

Supporting People

Building Control

Winter Maintenance

Waste

Unitary Development Plan / Local Development Plan
Post 16 Education

Community Equipment Store

Various (Value of each less than £0.1m)

Total

Total Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Page 63

Estimated
Balance
01/04/15

£m

0.032

0.032

15.132
6.148

© 21280

0.558
0.319
1.493
0.109
0.250
0.327
0.427
0.164
0.120
0.453

4.220

25.532

Estimated
Balance
31/03/16

£m

0.000

0.000

7.247
0.313

7.560

0.803
0.300
1.014
0.000
0.250
0.227
0.427
0.314
0.120
0.132

3.587

11.147

Appendix 8



Page 64



APPENDIX 9

Flintshire County Council

Feedback on the 2015/16 Budget Proposals

Summary Report

January 2015

cS“imrwy Fflint
'ﬂzmg!:,sre




Contents

The purpose inviting feedback
The period open for feedback
How people could feedback
What people told us
Equality Impact Assessment workshop
Background papers
Statistics
Hits and views
Demographic information

Equality Impact Assessment

Next steps

Page 66

o A~ W W LW W

(@)

10

11



The purpose of inviting feedback:

o To raise awareness of the 2015/16 budget proposals

The period open for feedback:
o Thursday 18 December 2014 — Sunday 11 January 2015

How people could feedback:

A bi-lingual, on-line, self-selection feedback form using Survey Monkey software accessible
via the Council's:

e new e-magazine ‘Your Council’ / ‘Eich Cyngor
o website flintshire.gov.uk/FCCBudget / siryfflint/CyllidebCSyFf
e corporate Twitter account @FlintshireCC / @CSyFflint

93 people provided feedback by a range of methods

e on-line
e emails to service managers
e telephone responses

What people told us:

The proposals were grouped to match the Council’s five Scrutiny Committee themes with
open feedback invited against each grouped set of proposals.

Feedback was collected via a Survey Monkey feedback form and other comments were
also received through the emagazine ‘Your Council’ feedback option, by direct email and via
telephone. All feedback has been collected into one comprehensive public feedback
document.

In their feedback people generally were keen to ensure that the impacts of the proposals
would not adversely affect other services delivered by the Council or other organisations.
The continued protection of the young and the vulnerable was also raised particularly in
relation to equality of opportunity, the retention and accessibility of localised services and
community protection.

Each themed area also received feedback in relation to workforce and resources where
ideas and suggestions were put forward for improvements and efficiencies and also a range
of general issues and topics not specifically related to a particular proposal.

Below is a summary of the areas covered in the feedback received:
Corporate Resources
Withdrawal of registration service from outstations

Alternative payment methods
Withdrawal or reduction of benefits

Main switchboard personal answering service

Page 67 ’



Reduction in performances at Clwyd Theatr Cymru
Property maintenance/assets
Environment
Car parking charges
Street lighting
Highway and winter maintenance
Waste and recycling
Public transport
Tourist information
Public protection
Income generation
Transfer of assets to Town & Community Councils
Housing
Benefits
Lifelong Learning

Education and youth services
Sports and leisure

Libraries

Clwyd Theatr Cymru

Social and Health Care
Social Services for Adults

Social Services for Children

Equality Impact Assessment

In addition to collecting the public feedback highlighted above, an Equality Impact
Assessment workshop was held on the evening of Monday 5 January 2014. The purpose of
the workshop was to look at the Category 2 and 3 proposals (those with lower and higher
direct public impact) and discuss what potential they had to specifically impact on any of the
9 protected characteristic groups and the Welsh Language.

17 people attended the session, representing older age groups; disability groups; the Welsh
language; people from a black and minority background; Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and
Transgender (LGBT) groups. Also in attendance were the Trade Unions and other groups
representing all protected characteristics such as North Wales Regional Equality Network.

The main outcome of the session was the identification of those proposals which would
require a full Equality Impact Assessment and highlighting the potential negative impact of

Page 68



proposals which could be reduced if other actions were taken such as providing financial
capability sessions to reduce the impact of bed and breakfast charging.

Concern was also expressed generally about the cumulative impact of the proposals i.e.
where an efficiency on its own may not have a significant impact but considered along with
a group of others could have a significant impact.

It was also felt that consideration needed to be given to ensure that making savings in one
area didn't increase the demand and cost for services elsewhere i.e. those who are
reluctant or unable to pay Telecare costs become less independent and rely heavily on
social services.

Background Papers
Public feedback document

Equality Impact Assessment workshop recorded feedback

Page 69



Statistics

Hits and views

During the open period for feedback following statistics were recorded:

English | Welsh
Views on page 1 of “Your Council’ 4797 228
Views on the Budget proposals introduction page of Your Council 3097 59
Following through to specific grouped proposals:
Corporate Resources 1803 40
Environment 1628 32
Housing 1256 35
Lifelong Learning 1369 35
Social and Health Care 1400 32
Views on the budget proposals ‘Your Feedback’ page of Your 1325 34
Council
Unique users - ‘Big Budget Conversation’ web page 297 7

Page 70




Demographic Information

How people best described themselves

Answer Choices Responses
| live in Flintshire / Rwy'n byw yn Sir y Fflint §1.08% -
| work in Flintshire / Rwy'n gweithio yn Siry Fflint 6.52%
I live and work in Flintshire / Rwy'n byw ac yn gweithio yn Sir y Fflint 23.91% ,
2
| represent a Flintshire business / Rwy'n cynrychioli busnes yn Sir y Fflint 1.09% 1
I represent a Flintshire business / Rwy'n cynrychioli busnes yn Sir y Fflint 0.00% G
| represent a business outside of Flintshire / Rwy'n cynrychioli busnes y tu allan i Siry 0.00% 0
Fflint
| represent a Flintshire organisation / Rwy’'n cynrychioli sefydliad yn Sir y Fflint 217% 2
I represent an organisation outside of Flintshire / Rwy'n cynrychioli sefydliad y tu allan 1.09% 1
i Siry Fflint
I am & visitor to Flintshire / Rwy'n ymweld & Sir y Fflint 0.00% G
Other / Arall 14.13%
13
Total G2

Those people who ticked either option 2 or 3 above were asked a supplementary question ‘Are you
an employee of Flintshire County Council?’ Overall 26% of those people who responded work for
the Council.

Answer Choices Responses
English / Saesneg 100.00% 61
Welsh / Cymraeg 0.00% 0
Other / Arall 0.00% 0
Total &1

Preferred Language

Page 71



Age

Answer Choices
under/dan 16
17-24
25-44
45-64
65-74
75+

Total

Answer Choices
Male / Gwryw
Female / Benyw

Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio a dweud

Taotal

Gender

Answer Choices

Yes / Ydw

No / Nac Ydw

Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio 4 dweud
Total

Transgender

Page 72

Responses

0.00%
1.61%
22.58%
48.39%
22.58%

4.84%

Responses
35.59%
§5.93%

8.47%

Responses
1.67%
80.00%

18.33%

52

11



Answer Choices

Bisexual / Deurywiol

Gay man / Dyn Hoyw

Other/ Arall

Gay woman / lesbian / Merch Hoyw / Lesbiad
Heterosexual / straight / Heterorywiol / Strét
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total
Sexuality

Answer Choices
Yes / Ydw
No/Nac Ydw
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total
Disability

Ethnicity

Answer Choices
White / Gwyn
Mixed / Cymysg
Other / Arall
Asian, Asian British / Asiaidd, Asiaidd Prydeinig
Black, Black British / Du, Du Prydeinig
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total

Page 73

Responses
1.89%
1.89%
0.00%
0.00%
69.81%

26.42%

Responses
8.47%
74.58%

16.85%

Responses
14.70%
0.00%
14.46%
0.00%
0.00%

10.84%

44

10

59

62

12

33



Cultural background — White

Answer Choices Responses
British / Prydeinig 56.60%
English / Seisnig 11.32%
Other / Arall 1.89%
Scottish / Albanaidd 0.00%
Welsh / Cymreig 24.53%
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio 3 dweud 5.66%
Irish { Gwyddelig 0.00%
Gypsy or Irish Traveller / Sipsi neu Deithiwr Gwyddelig 0.00%

Total

Where ‘Other’ was selected ‘Mixed English and Welsh' was specified.

Answer Choices Responses
White / Black Caribbean - Gwyn / Du Caribiaidd 0.00%
White / Black African - Gwyn / Du Affricanaidd 0.00%
Other/ Arall 0.00%
White / Asian - Gwyn fAsiaidd 0.00%
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud 100.00%

Total

Cultural background — Mixed

Religion and belief

Page 74

o
L



Answer Choices Responses

Buddhist / Bwdhydd 0.00%
Christian / Cristion 52.24%
Other / Arall 16.42%
Hindu / Hindw 0.00%
Jewish / Iddew 0.00%
Muslim / Mwslim 0.00%
Sikh / Sikh 0.00%
Atheism / Anffyddiaeth 13.43%
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidic a dweud 17.91%
Where ‘Other’ was selected ‘Christo-Pagan’ and ... | have no religion’ was specified.

Equality Impact Assessment Statistics

Protected Characteristic (PC) Number of proposals impacting on people with PC’s

Age Older people 16 /younger people 9

Disability 18

GR 6

Race 10

Religion and Belief 2

Marriage and Civil Partnership 0

Pregnancy and maternity 1

Sex 3

Sexual orientation 3

Welsh language 3

Poverty 4 (need to clarify which groups most likely to experience
poverty)

Next steps

The feedback received will be considered by the Council's Scrutiny Committees in January.

Open to the public the meetings will be held on:

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Thursday 22 January 2015 at 10am
Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee Friday 23 January 2015 at 10am

Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee Friday 23 January 2015 at 2pm

Social & Healthcare Overview & Scrutiny Committee Monday 26 January 2015 at 10am
Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee Monday 26 January 2015 at 2pm

The proposals will be considered for final approval at a meeting of Flintshire County Council
on Tuesday 17 February 2015.

11

Page 75



Page 76



Agenda Iltem 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY., 17 FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (ORGANISATIONAL

CHANGE), CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 AND
INDICATIVE FUNDING TO 2018/19

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 The purpose of the report is to set out proposals for the Council Fund
Capital Programme for 2015/16 (with indicative funding estimates for
future years).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council plans on a 4 year capital programme timescale. Each year,
the Council sets its capital programme for the coming year and provides
an indication of the estimated level of resources available and has
historically shown the potential allocation to service areas in future years.

2.02 Indicative amounts for 2015/16 were shown in the Capital programme
2014/15 report which was agreed by Council on 18t February 2014.

2.03 A meeting hosted by Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee was held on 30t January to enable all Members to consider
the 2015/16 capital programme. Members raised various comments and
questions, responses were provided and a summary of these are in
Appendix 3.

3.00 CAPITAL STRATEGY

3.01 Flintshire, along with all Councils, has experienced significant pressure
on its capital programme in recent years. This results from reduced
funding available through the annual financial settlement from Welsh
Government (WG) and the impact the current austerity measures and
related financial climate continues to have on the Councils ability to
generate capital receipts.

Page 77



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

Furthermore, as WG seeks to manage its own budgets, the specific
grants available to Councils for capital investment in particular services
have become more limited. For example, the initial funding proposal for
the 21st Century Schools programme was; half unsupported (prudential)
borrowing and the remaining half from WG specific capital grant. The
WG half is now a mixture of grant and further Council borrowing with the
WG providing revenue funding to support principal repayments and
interest on the debt.

Flintshire has to achieve revenue efficiencies of circa £50m over the next
three years and pressure on capital resources comes at the same time as
these revenue pressures and is set to continue until at least the end of
the decade. The combination of the two means that it is more important
than ever that the Council’'s revenue and capital service delivery and
financial planning are fully integrated.

In approving the 2014/15 Capital Programme Members endorsed a more
prudent approach to setting the capital budget, particularly in relation to
the recognition of capital receipts (Sections 5.02.2 to 5.02.6 of the
Council Fund Capital Programme 2014/15 report to Cabinet on 18"
February, 2014 refer). This led to a reduced core programme in 2014/15
and in proposing the budget for 2015/16 this approach has been
replicated again.

Against this backdrop it is important to note that the Council sets its core
capital programme and puts in place funding to meet urgent needs for
2015/16 to enable the resources to be in place to:-

e Support emerging requirements for change flowing from the
Council’s current business planning process;

e Support key service needs e.g. schools maintenance;

e Support investment which enables change and service flexibility
e.g. ICT networks; and

e Provide funding for property related costs e.g. Health & Safety
measures, as well as measures to improve accessibility to our
properties for those with disabilities.

In addition to the work and position detailed above the Council is
currently developing its Capital Strategy and integrated Asset
Management Plan. The document will set out clearly the overall
approach to capital management, alternative sources of funding and the
effective delivery of its capital programmes of work in the future which are
likely to move from the current core programme approach to one which is
business case derived. This approach to future capital programme
delivery will form one of the strands of an overall approach which will be
set out within the Medium Term Financial Plan and will also assist and
support a more structured and focussed delivery of the capital budget.

Page 78



4.00 FUNDING SHORTFALL OF APPROVED SCHEMES

4.01 The final 2013/14 outturn of approved schemes was a shortfall carried
into financial year 2014/15 of £1.578m, as a direct result of receipts in
previous years not being achieved or not achieving their anticipated
levels. The aim, when setting the 2014/15 programme, was to focus on
and eradicate this shortfall in order to place the capital programme on a
sound footing going into 2015/16. This was to be achieved by:-

¢ the reduction in the core programme described in paragraph 3.03,
and

e capital receipts generated in-year.
The projection (to date) is that this aim will be achieved.

5.00 FUNDING THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

5.01 The capital programme includes the following parts which are funded as
shown below:-

(a) A core capital programme resourced by:-

e The funding mechanisms within the WG financial settlement
(general capital grant and supported borrowing where WG
recognise the cost of this level of borrowing through funding in
the revenue financial settlement in the Revenue Support
Grant); and

e Capital receipts from the sale of Council assets in accordance
with the disposal programme.

The Council has discretion to allocate both of these resources as it
determines to meet its local priorities and needs.

(b) Capital schemes funded from specific grants which are for specific
purposes as directed by WG or other grant providers;

(c) WG supported borrowing through the Local Government
Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) for the 21st Century Schools (WG
element); and

(d) Locally determined unsupported (prudential) borrowing, the costs

of which are met from the Council’'s revenue budget without
support from WG.

Page 79



6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The total projected (to date) core funding available over the 4 year period
2015/16 to 2018/19, by way of the sources in 5.01 (a) above, is shown in
the table below and amounts to £27.472m.

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE FUNDING 2015/16 - 2018119

201516 201617 201718 2018119 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Financing (Excluding Specific Grants)
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB)1 4210 4210 4210 4270 17.080
General Capital Grant (GCG) ! 2598 2598 2598 2598 10.392
Total 6366 6868  6.868  6.868 21412

1 As per 1516 Final Settlement.

This shows that the total projected (to date) resources available in
2015/16 to fund the core capital programme are £6.868m.

Funding

The basis for the estimates of funding levels are as follows:-

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) and General Capital
Grant (GCG)

The final financial settlement received from WG on 10t December 2014
indicated a total of £6.868m, £4.270m through USB and £2.598m via
GCG for 2015/16. This has been assumed to be consistent throughout
the reporting period.

The total is £0.004m less than the 2015/16 provisional financial
settlement reported to Cabinet on 16" December 2014.

Capital Receipts

The issue of capital receipts continues to be problematic and is
negatively impacted upon by the current economic climate which leads to
lower than anticipated disposal values in the current market. It is
therefore difficult to predict with certainty when disposals will be effected
and the funds realised to support the capital programme.

Page 80



6.06

6.07

6.08

6.09

6.10

As a consequence of this continued position it is considered to be
imprudent to set capital budgets where the funding may not be realised.
In setting the 2014/15 Capital Programme a budget with a minimal target
was set which the Council could be confident in achieving and would
address the shortfall described in Section 4 above (£1.578m). Any
additional receipt over and above this target figure would be allocated in
2015/16, placing the Capital Programme on a more secure footing during
difficult economic times.

The current projection for capital receipts in 2014/15 is sufficient to meet
2014/15 core capital expenditure, though receipts actually received to
date are minimal. Given past experience and the legal complexities that
can occur in generating a capital receipt; the recommendation is to
assume no receipts from 2014/15 are available to fund the 2015/16 core
programme.

Further, it is therefore recommended that the 2015/16 core capital
programme budget be set based without reliance on any capital receipts
generated in 2015/16.

For information the Council is currently estimating a level of anticipated
capital receipts in the order of £2.800m for financial year 2015/16,
however, and for the reasons stated above, the delivery of these receipts
is subject to negative market forces and legal complexities and at this
stage in the budget setting process the delivery of this level of receipts
should be treated with some caution.

It is of course possible that receipts generated in 2014/15 will exceed
those needed to fund core capital expenditure. Any receipts generated
over and above anticipated need during the remainder of 2014/15 could
either be:-

e Allocated to the 2015/16 programme in year through quarterly
budget monitoring reports to fund the core capital programme or
works arising from corporate priorities; or

e Allocated for use in future years.

Allocation of the available funding

As indicated in 6.02, the total amount available to fund the core capital
programme in 2015/16 is £6.868m.

A review of the core schemes has been carried out and the resulting
recommended allocations for 2015/16 are summarised in the table below,
with a more detailed breakdown in Appendix 1. The allocations total
£6.535m.

Page 81



6.11

6.12

CORE ALLOCATIONS BY PORTFOLIO
£m

Chief Executives 0.020
People & Resources 0.075
Governance 0.170
Education & Youth 2.035
Community & Enterprise 2.265
Planing & Environment 0.290
Transport & Streetscene 0.860
Organisational Change 0.820
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 6.535

Detailed programmes for future years will be drawn up in the light of
actual levels of receipts becoming known.

The recommended allocations above result in a balance of £0.333m of
core funding unallocated. This is a prudent position moving into the new
financial year and provides a degree of protection to the core programme
to deal with any issues which may arise in the delivery of those
programmes.

The intention is to consider the emerging requirements for capital funding
from the business plans to enable organisational change and deliver the
necessary revenue efficiencies over the medium term.

It is recommended that unallocated funding, along with any surplus
capital receipts realised in 2014/15 (if any, and over and above
requirements set out in 6.07 above), be allocated to capital schemes
arising from business plans. This would be subject to Portfolios
submitting a sound business case and with the approval of Cabinet at a
later date.

Current requirements under assessment at this stage include; investment
in schools in support of school modernisation and repair programmes,
investment to facilitate Community Asset Transfers (CAT’s) and the
installation of income generating energy installation facilities.

Page 82



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

ESTIMATED TOTAL COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The total projected funding available (including the core programme) over
the 4 year period 2015/16 to 2018/19, by way of the sources in 5.01 (a) to
(d) above, is shown in the table below and amounts to £82.719m.

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE TOTAL FUNDING 2015/16 -2018/19

2015116 2016117 2017118 201819 Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Funding (Total)

General Funding

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) ! 4270 4270 4270 4270 17.080
General Capital Grant (GCG) ! 2.598 2.598 2.598 2598 10.392

Sub Total 6.868 6.868 6.868 6.868 | 27.472

Specific Funding

Specific Capital Grants 19.959 4.250 0.504 24713
Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 20.290 4637 0.443 25.370
Local Govt Borrowing Initiative - 21st C Schools 3.575 1.589 5.164
Sub Total 43.824 10476 0.947 0.000 55.247
Total Funding Available 50.692 17.344 7815 6.868 82.719

1 As per 15/16 Final Settlement.

This shows that the total resources available in 2015/16 to fund the
capital programme are £50.692m.

Appendix 2 sets out the estimated total capital programme for 2015/16,
taking account of all funding sources referred to in Section 5. These are
detailed below.

The core allocations, as funded by those sources referred to in Section 5,
can be found in the column ‘General’.

Specific allocations can be found in the column ‘Specific’. In 2015/16 this
adds further investment of £43.824m (See 7.06 to 7.09 below).

Specific grants amount to £19.959m, the majority of which is 21st Century
Schools (£19.122m). The amounts included are based on historical
allocations and information available at the time of writing the report, any
subsequent variation in the level of individual grants will be dealt with by
amendments in subsequent budget setting reports, or by amending the
budget in monitoring reports as necessary in year (2015/16). These
allocations are for specific time durations hence the variation in amount
year on year.

Page 83



7.07

7.08

7.09

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

Unsupported (prudential) borrowing of £20.290m relates to Flintshire’s
element of the 215t Century Schools programme.

Welsh Government Local Government Borrowing Initiation (LGBI) funding
mechanism for 215t Century Schools comprises an element of LGBI and
specific capital grant. This equates to £22.697m for Flintshire in 2015/16
(£3.575m LGBI, £19.122m specific grant).

The funding for 2015/16 includes £42.907m related to 21st Century
Schools. Whilst preliminary expenditure on the programme has taken
place in 2013/14 and 2014/15, the profile is for significant expenditure to
commence from 2015/16 to deliver on the £64m of investment in
Flintshire schools under the 21t Century programme which is funded
equally by Flintshire and WG.

CONSULTATION

A meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee
was held on 30th January 2015, at which the capital programme
proposals as set out in this paper were considered. The scrutiny meeting
was open to all Members of the Council and the feedback from the
meeting is incorporated at Appendix 3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is invited to recommended to Council on 17t February:

Approval of the allocation of funding to the core capital programme in
2015/16, as shown in Appendix 1 (and note the indicative funding
available for future years).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific anti-poverty
impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific environmental
impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific equality
impacts.

Page 84



14.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

14.01  None directly as a result of this report.

15.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

15.01  All Members through Overview & Scrutiny.

16.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

16.01  Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 30" January
2015.

17.00 APPENDICES

17.01  Appendix 1 - Core Capital Programme Schemes 2015/16
Appendix 2 - Total Capital Programme 2015/16
Appendix 3 - Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:  Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1

2015/16
Estimate
£m

SUMMARY

CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020
PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075
GOVERNANCE 0.170
EDUCATION & YOUTH 2.035
SOCIAL CARE 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.265
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.290
TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 6.535
FINANCING

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4.270
General Capital Grant 2.598
(Unallocated - Headroom) / Under Financing (0.333)
TOTAL - FINANCING 6.535

Page 87




CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2015/16
Estimate
£m
CHIEF EXECUTIVES
Clwyd Theatr Cymru
General Provision 0.020
TOTAL - CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020
PEOPLE & RESOURCES
Corporate Finance
General Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075
TOTAL - PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075
GOVERNANCE
ICT and Customer Services
General ICT Infrastructure 0.170
TOTAL - GOVERNANCE 0.170
EDUCATION & YOUTH
Education - General
Various School Building Works 1.700
Various DD Act - Individual Pupils 0.250
Various Furniture and Equipment 0.045
Primary Schools
Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040
TOTAL - EDUCATION & YOUTH 2.035

Page 88




CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2015/16
Estimate
£m

SOCIAL CARE
Social Care

General Capital Works 0.000

TOTAL - SOCIAL CARE 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE
Grants

Various Private Sector Renewal & Improvements 1.730

Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.155
Flintshire Connects

Various Flintshire Connects 0.250
Regeneration

Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.130

TOTAL - COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.265
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT
Energy Services

Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100
Engineering

Various Land Drainage Works 0.045

Various Coast Protection Works 0.070
Townscape Heritage Initiative

Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.075

TOTAL - PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.290

Page 89




CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2015/16

Estimate
£m
TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE
Highways
Various Highways Infrastructure 0.520
Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100
Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120
Various Structural Maintenance 0.120
TOTAL - TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2
Administrative Buildings
Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.175
Various Asbestos Removal 0.070
Various Legionella Works 0.070
Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055
Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100
Various Corporate Property Maintenance 0.350
TOTAL - ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND || 6.535 |

Page 90



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments . General | Specific
£m £m £m

SUMMARY
CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020 0.020 0.000
PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075 0.075 0.000
GOVERNANCE 0.170 0.170 0.000
EDUCATION & YOUTH 45.022 2035 42987
SOCIAL CARE 0.000 0.000 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.841 2.265 0.576
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.551 0.290 0.261
TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860 0.860 0.000
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820 0.820 0.000
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 50.359 6.535 43.824
FINANCING
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4.270 4.270
General Capital Grant 2.598 2.598
Capital Receipts
Specific Capital Grants 19.959 19.959
Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 20.290 20.290
LGBI - 21st Century Schools 3.575 3.575
(Unallocated - Headroom) / Under Financing (O.333)| (0.333) 0.000
TOTAL - FINANCING 50.359 6.535 43.824

Page 91



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments | General = Specific
£m £m £m

CHIEF EXECUTIVES
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

General Provision 0.020 0.020

TOTAL - CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020 0.020 0.000
PEOPLE & RESOURCES
Corporate Finance

General Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075 0.075

TOTAL - PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075 0.075 0.000
GOVERNANCE
ICT and Customer Services

General ICT Infrastructure 0.170 0.170

TOTAL - GOVERNANCE 0.170 0.170 0.000
EDUCATION & YOUTH
Education - General

Various School Building Works 1.700 1.700

Various DD Act - Individual Pupils 0.250 0.250

Various Furniture and Equipment 0.045 0.045
Primary Schools

Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040 0.040
School Modernisation

Shotton Taliesin Junior/Shotton Infant 0.080 0.080

Various 21st Century Schools 42907 42907

TOTAL - EDUCATION & YOUTH 45.022 | 2.035 | 42.987

Page 92



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments | General | Specific
£m £m £m

SOCIAL CARE
Social Care

General Capital Works 0.000 0.000

TOTAL - SOCIAL CARE 0.000 0.000 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE
Grants

Various Private Sector Renewal & Improvements 1.878 1.730 0.148

Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.433 0.155 0.278
Flintshire Connects

Various Flintshire Connects 0.250 0.250
Regeneration

Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.130 0.130
Travellers' Sites

Queensferry  Riverside Caravan Site 0.150 0.150

TOTAL - COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.841 2.265 0.576
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT
Energy Services

Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100 0.100
Engineering

Various Land Drainage Works 0.045 0.045

Various Coast Protection Works 0.070 0.070
Townscape Heritage Initiative

Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.309 0.075 0.234
Ranger Services

Connahs Quay Wepre Park Development 0.027 0.027

TOTAL - PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.551 0.290 0.261

Page 93



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments | General = Specific
£m £m £m

TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE
Highways

Various Highways Infrastructure 0.520 0.520

Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100 0.100

Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120 0.120

Various Structural Maintenance 0.120 0.120

TOTAL - TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860 0.860 0.000
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2
Administrative Buildings

Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.175 0.175

Various Asbestos Removal 0.070 0.070

Various Legionella Works 0.070 0.070

Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055 0.055

Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100 0.100

Various Corporate Property Maintenance 0.350 0.350

TOTAL - ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820 0.820 0.000

TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND | | 50359 6535| 43.824 |

Page 94



G6 obed

APPENDIX 3

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Corporate Resources — Council Fund Capital Programme

No.

Comments and Questions:

Responses:

1.0

School Repair & Maintenance

The repairs allocation is £1.700m. How does this
compare with the rate of deterioration in our school
buildings?

It is accepted that the £1.700m is insufficient to redress
the level of outstanding repair and maintenance.

Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny have requested
further information as to how this can be addressed,
including the use of Prudential Borrowing.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 17™ FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE)

CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: HRA REVENUE ACCOUNT 2015/16 & CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present for approval the draft HRA Budget for 2015/16, and HRA
Business Plan developed for the introduction of self-financing in April
2015.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The UK Government and the Welsh Government have reached an
agreement to change the financing arrangements for council housing
in Wales from April 2015. A new rent policy has also been introduced
which Flintshire is required to implement from April 2015. This sets the
context for the proposed rent increase and for the requirement to start
introducing charging for services.

2.02 Welsh Local Authorities have long argued for this change; which to
date, has seen a negative subsidy system in operation which has
required all eleven stock owning councils across Wales to make a
total annual payment of £73m (in Flintshire’s case c£6m) of rental
income to Welsh Government and on to the UK Treasury. On the
introduction of self financing this will cease;

2.03 The new arrangements negotiated by Welsh Government will see the
annual subsidy payment replaced by a one off payment of c£920m.
The eleven councils are required to take out loans from the PWLB
which equate to £40m per annum in interest charges.

2.04 In addition to this, a total borrowing cap of £1.85b has been set for all
eleven councils. This includes the borrowing needed to meet the
settlement figure referred to above; existing HRA borrowing; planned
borrowing to meet WHQS, and a small amount to start a new build
programme.

2.05 The legislative framework to enable this change is contained in the

Housing (Wales) Act 2014, which came into effect from 17th
September. This act contains a duty to make the settlement payment;

Page 97



2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

2.11

2.12

and in the UK Government — Wales Bill , which is currently at report
stage, and will set the all Wales limit of indebtedness and those for
individual Local Authorities’.

Welsh Government has also set a requirement for all providers of
social housing to reach the Welsh Housing Quality Standard by 2020.
This will require some prudential borrowing in Flintshire’s case.

The council has an aspiration to build council housing to help meet
unmet need for social housing and self- financing is providing an
opportunity to take this forward in the next few years.

The detail on the distribution of the borrowing limits across the eleven
councils is a Welsh Government decision. WG established an officer
Steering Group and a number of work streams to take forward this
work and make recommendations to the Minister. A consultation
paper on the detailed options to implement self financing was issued
by Welsh Government in May this year with a return date of July.
Flintshire’s response to this was supported by Housing Scrutiny
Committee and agreed by Cabinet prior to submission.

In summary, (although figures cannot be defined explicitly at this
stage), Flintshire’s borrowing requirements and/or limits for borrowing
will be (approximately) as follows :-

Existing HRA borrowing- £25m
Borrowing to achieve settlement- £92m
Borrowing for WHQS- £25m

Borrowing for new build- £14.5m

The initial borrowing of c£92m for buy out will result in a basket of
loans of varying lengths in accordance with the Councils treasury
Management Strategy. External advice has been sought and the
recommendation is that the council continues to operate a single debt
pool approach, providing maximum flexibility.

Work is well underway to prepare for self financing. A HRA project
group has been established for some time; this includes the Leader,
Deputy Leader, Cabinet member for Housing, Chief Executive, Chief
Officer, Finance and Asset Management colleagues. Housing Scrutiny
Committee has taken a strong interest in this work. An elected
member and tenant workshop was held in January to discuss self
financing.

At its November 2014 meeting, subject to a risk assessment, Cabinet
gave delegated authority for the Leader of the Council with advice and
guidance from the Chief Officer Governance and Corporate Finance
Manager to enter into a Voluntary Agreement in January 2015, to
enable the introduction of self financing for the HRA from 1st April
2015. This was delayed on the advice of Welsh Government in early

Page 98



2.13

3.00
3.01

3.02

January. Interest rates had reduced considerably since the first
proposals were developed with Treasury to confirm the detail of the
Buy out arrangements and Local Authorities and Welsh Government
wanted to see whether they could adjust the original agreement to
provide greater certainty to Local Authorities around interest rate
variations, making the buy out payment more certain. These
discussions have been positive but are not yet finalised. The figures
quoted in this report are close to what the final figures are likely to be
and demonstrate the positive benefit that self financing will provide.
Subject to a final risk assessment it is expected that the Leader will be
able to sign the voluntary agreement towards the end of February.

The HRA will benefit from circa £0.5m additional revenue in year 1
and this should grow in future years. This will provide additional
resource for investment in tenants homes and will support
achievement of the WHQS by 2020, (whilst minimising prudential
borrowing). In addition the borrowing thresholds set will allow a
council house building programme (of circa 200 homes over five
years), to commence in early 2016 following the completion of the
SHARP tender process.

CONSIDERATIONS

The HRA has to have both short and long term financial planning in
place. The short term (more detailed) planning shows how the WHQS
standard can be achieved, Choices document promises kept, and
new council housing commissioned. The longer term plan shows a
viable account with surplus income over expenditure needs. This
presents opportunities to do more to improve service delivery;
provides reassurance that once achieved, the WHQS standard can be
maintained, and could provide further capital funding for new build (
subject to borrowing limits).

The strategic context for this year's HRA budget setting includes the
following:

e The introduction of self- financing and the need to implement a
treasury management strategy to meet the councils new and
ongoing borrowing requirements

e Delivering a prudent plan for income- ensuring that rents are
affordable in a local context, and phasing in service charging
for new tenants

e Setting a balanced budget with 3.1% surplus revenue over
expenditure

e Continued drive to ensure all service costs are efficient and that
value for money can be achieved.

e Maximisation of revenue efficiencies to minimise the borrowing
required to meet WHQS by 2020.

e Review of WHQS investment strategy to meet tenant and
elected member expectation and the new achievable deadline
of 2020

Page 99



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

e Planning for the delivery of new build council housing in 2016

Rent increase

Councils are required to implement the new Welsh Government rent
policy from April 2015. Target rent bands are set for each landlord
based on a consistent set of principles and a common methodology
across Wales for both local Authorities and Housing Associations.
Landlord rents will be based on locality, size quality and type of
dwelling. Rents will be higher for houses and bungalows compared to
flats and maisonettes. This framework will be fixed until 2018/19.
There is flexibility for each landlord to set the rent band at target, 5%
below or 5% above. Cabinet decided to set Flintshire rents at target to
support tenant affordability.

Where a landlords weekly rent is lower than the rent band, rents are
set at the September CPI figure plus 1.5% plus up to £2 per week, to
work towards rent convergence. Where rents are above target (this
applies to circa 1000 Flintshire homes), then the rent increase will be
inflation (1.2%) plus 1.5% up to minus £2 until the weekly rent falls
within the target rent band. The September 2014 figure was 1.2%.
This means an average Flintshire rent increase of 2.7% plus or minus
up to £2 for 2015/16. Approximately 67% tenants are in receipt of full
or partial Housing Benefit.

The business plan attached to this report describes the average rent
currently payable and the target rent for each property type. Some
tenancies could take 7 years to achieve the target rent.

Capital programme

The WHQS and Asset investment programme for 2015/16 has been
set at a total of £20.3m. This includes provision for internal work
streams, external enveloping works, fire risk works, DDA, Asbestos,
off gas and energy efficiency works. Cabinet has approved the Asset
investment plan to achieve the WHQS by 2020 and this budget will
ensure that the council meets the commitments in that plan to achieve
the standard by 2020.

In addition £0.9m has been budgeted to commence the council house
building programme.

Attached to this report for Cabinet approval: -

The 3 year HRA business plan — Appendix A

30 year revenue and capital account.- Appendix B

Efficiencies and service investment proposals —Appendix C
WHQS programme to achieve the standard in 2020.- Appendix
D

Page 100



4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to approve and recommend to the Council:-

The proposed HRA budget for 2015/16 as set out in the Business plan
at Appendix A, with the 30 year financial assumptions in Appendix B
and service efficiency and investment proposals in Appendix ¢

The level of rents for 2015/16 as set out in the business plan with
target rents applied for new tenancies and the introduction of service
charges for new tenancies.

The proposed HRA Capital programme for 2015/16 as set out in
Appendix D

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The HRA is a ring fenced budget. This HRA budget and business plan
demonstrates that the council can achieve the WHQS by 2020, can
meet service improvement plans and commitments and with
prudential borrowing can commence a council house building
programme in 2016.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Self-financing in the HRA will provide additional revenue to improve
property standards and to meet service improvement objectives. The
council has agreed a Rent Policy which will see rents at benchmark
levels, rather than taking the opportunity to set at 5% per cent above
the benchmark. This decision was taken to safeguard affordability for
tenants.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Stock investment delivery plans will enhance the appearance of the
environment and will contribute toward the council’s CO2 reduction
targets.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

All households will benefit from the Councils WHQS programme. The
impact of the investment planning and efficiencies is being modelled
for wvarious customer groups to ensure that there is no
disproportionate impact on any groups with protected characteristics.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Additional staff will be required to deliver an accelerated WHQS
programme. The funding for these posts is provided for in the WHQS

Page 101



10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00
12.01
12.02
12.03
12.04

programme.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

The proposed rent increase will be discussed with the Tenants
Federation at their February meeting.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Detailed consultation has been undertaken with tenants and elected
members to inform the preparation of the revised WHQS investment
programme.

APPENDICES

HRA Business Plan- Appendix A

30 year HRA Revenue and Capital Account- Appendix B
Efficiencies and service investment proposals — Appendix C
WHQS programme- Appendix D

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

Contact Officer: Clare Budden
Telephone: 01352 703800
Email: clare.budden@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 102


mailto:clare.budden@flintshire

FLINTSHIRE
HOUSING REVENUE

ACCOUNT:

BUSINESS PLAN

2015 - 2018

Page 103



INTRODUCTION

The HRA funds the landlord function of the council for 7200 homes. This includes
repairs and maintenance, including upgrading properties and environmental
improvements, neighbourhood management including resolving anti-social behaviour

and estate caretaking, income collection and customer involvement.

Self financing is being introduced for the Councils Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
from April 2015. This will replace the current negative subsidy arrangements,
whereby c£6m of tenants rent is paid to Central Government in Westminster
annually. The HRA will remain a ring-fenced account; and self financing is
expected to provide additional revenue to deliver improved services and will provide

more local accountability to tenants.

The new arrangements, which will apply to the 11 stock retaining councils, will see
the annual subsidy payment replaced by a one off payment of c£920m. Each of the
councils is required to take out loans from the PWLB to fund this payment, and
these must cumulatively provide £40m per annum in interest charges. As interest
rates fluctuate and borrowing must take place on 2" April, it is not possible at this
stage to model the actual impact from a Flintshire perspective. As at the beginning

of February 2015 Flintshire’s settlement figure is expected to be circa £92m.

In addition to borrowing to fund the buy out, a Wales wide borrowing cap has been
set of £1.85b. This figure will include all existing borrowing, which from an all Wales
perspective is circa £460m (£25m for Flintshire), borrowing to meet WHQS which is
£358m for all Wales (£25m for Flintshire) the settlement figure of £920m; then
leaving £112m for other priorities such as new build. Flintshire’s negotiated share of

the new build figure is £14.5m.

Page 104



BACKGROUND

This report sets out budget proposals for the three year period 2015/2018. Value for
money principles have been adopted to maximise resources for stock investment,

service improvement and new build.
This plan identifies recent service change and efficiencies and future plans.

It does, as with any business plan, make some financial assumptions, and therefore
any aspects which are adopted will need to be kept under review to ensure that

assumptions reflect actual costs, performance and risks on an annual basis.

To date rents have been pooled meaning that service costs are charged out equally
to all tenants irrespective of service recipient. The council is required by Welsh
Government to de-pool rents and introduce charging for “services”. The expectation

from Welsh Government is that this will be phased in from 2016 at the latest.

2012 HOUSING BALLOT - CHOICES DOCUMENT

In 2012, the council balloted its tenants on the option for ‘stock transfer’. This
process involved making commitments to tenants on service quality and
performance, should tenants opt to stay with the council or move to an alternative
landlord. 71% of tenants used their vote, with 88% choosing Flintshire County

Council to remain as their landlord.

This plan and budget proposals once approved will provide sufficient resources to
ensure that all promises made to tenants in the Choices document can be
delivered. At the time of the ballot a 5 year stock improvement programme was
promised which would provide full kitchen and heating replacement schemes with
limited work streams for other property fixtures. At this stage the full WHQS
standard could not be delivered until 2038.

Since that time, following detailed cost and investment analysis work, robust
efficiency plans and improved performance (coupled with relatively low levels of
borrowing), the investment programme has been accelerated and full achievement
of the standard can be delivered by 2020.

Page 105



RESOURCES FOR 2015/16

Rents

The new Welsh Government Rent policy will be implemented for local authorities
from April 2015 following exit from the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system.
The target rent bands for each landlord are based on a consistent set of principles
and a common methodology across Wales that applies equally to both local
authority and housing associations. Landlord rents are based on locality, size,
quality and type of dwelling. The policy prescribes that rents should have a higher
value for houses and bungalows compared to those for flats and maisonettes and

rents should have a higher value for larger dwellings.

The rent policy sets out the total target rent band for each landlord and landlords will
be required to work towards and ultimately achieve average weekly rent levels that
fall within the scope of those bands. The banding can be set at 5% above or below

the target rent.

Where a landlord’s weekly rent is higher than the target rent band, the landlord is
expected to increase its rents more slowly (inflation minus £2) until the average
weekly rent falls within the target rent band. Where a landlord’s weekly rent is lower
than the target rent band, transitional protection will apply to tenants. In any year a
landlord will not be permitted to increase the rent for any individual tenant by more
than £2 per week in addition to the agreed average annual rate of rent increases for
the sector as a whole. The inflation indices to be used for uplifting rents each year
will be based on CPI at the previous September and a real increase percentage of
1.5% will be applied to the inflation indices. This will be fixed until 2018/19.

CPI for Sept 2014 is 1.2% plus 1.5% giving rent inflation for 2015/16 of 2.7%.
Anticipated Rental (including voids rent loss) and other income for the three year
period 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 are shown in the table below:

Year Net Rental Other Income Total Income
Income

2015 -2016 £28,365,000 £ 1,033,000 £ 29,398,000

2016 — 2017 £29,685,000 £ 1,270,000 £ 30,955,000

2017 - 2018 £30,959,000 £ 1,547,000 £ 32,506,000

Page 106



Rent Charges

2015/16
£'s No.
Target Rents Properties Average Equal to /
Transitional Above Below

Target Rent Rent Variance Target Rent | Target Rent

G2house 689 84.91 77.79 - 7.12 54 635
G3House 3201 93.40 82.97 - 1043 60 3141
G4house 117 101.89 90.12 - 177 0 117
G5house 10 110.38 95.19 - 1519 0 10
G6house 4 110.38 98.52 - 11.86 0 4
G1Flat 178 71.64 71.39 - 0.25 101 77
G2Flat 279 79.32 74.95 - 4.37 23 256
G3Flat 61 87.00 82.00 - 5.00 0 61
G1bungalow 11 76.42 72.59 - 3.83 1 10
G2bungalow 1 84.91 80.34 - 4.57 0 1
G3bungalow 1 93.40 96.72 3.32 1 0
G2maisonette 9 76.82 76.82 - 9 0
G3maisonette 1 84.50 77.75 - 6.75 0 1
S1house 1 76.42 72.07 - 4.34 0 1
S2house 2 84.91 7715 - 7.75 0 2
S3house 15 93.40 86.76 - 6.64 2 13
S1Flat 504 71.64 71.15 - 0.49 370 134
S2Flat 341 79.32 78.44 - 0.88 210 131
S3Flat 2 87.00 85.46 - 1.54 1 1
S1bungalow 1138 76.42 70.76 - 5.65 130 1008
S2bungalow 619 84.91 76.07 - 8.83 21 598
S3bungalow 26 93.40 90.00 - 3.40 9 17
7210 | £ 85.97 £ 78.46 -£7.51 992 6218

The above chart shows the transitional rents chargeable to Flintshire tenants under

the new rents policy from 2015/16 and how they compare to target rents.

The

average rent chargeable for 2015/16 is £78.46 some £7.51 below the weekly target

rent under the new policy. There are currently 992 (13.8%) tenancies at target rent.

G = General Need

S = Sheltered

Page 107




The number equates to the number of bedrooms the property has for example a

G3house is a general need 3 bed house.

Empty Properties

Void rent loss is currently at 1.38% of rental income. The business plan assumes

void rent loss of 1.30%.
Service Charges

Flintshire Council currently pools rents and service charges, and is required to start
the process of disaggregating service charges from rents. Some tenants receive
additional services, over and above the service that is provided through rent
payments. This tends to apply to those living in blocks of flats, or in schemes with
communal/shared facilities. De pooling involves separating out these costs and

charging them as a service charge to those who receive the service.

It is recognized that the costs for providing some current services are not value for
money and the quality of some services will need to be improved and costs
reduced. With the exception of services provided for the benefit of individuals, the
service charges described are all currently “housing benefit eligible”. At the
beginning of this financial year 67% of tenants were in receipt of full or partial

housing benefit.

It is proposed that charges would be introduced on a phased basis for existing
tenants over the three years from 2016 leaving a full year to review, consult and
improve services. Charging will be introduced fully for new tenancies from April
2015.

The HRA currently funds services to the value of £0.700m per annum (excluding

Administration costs). Service charging will be phased in as follows:
Year 1 (2015/16) New tenants service charges

Year 2 (2016/17) As above and Aerials, individual gardens, hedges and communal

cleaning services

Year 3 (2017/18) As above and Launqala?gg %@r services



Year 4 (2018/19) As above and Caretaking and Communal garden services

The estimated cost recovery based on current service costs for 2015/16 is £0.030m.

Expenditure

Staff and associated costs

The business plan includes 219.2 established Positions (FTE) within the Housing
Revenue Account in 2015/16 a reduction of 7.3 FTE’s on 2014/15. 73% of these

are direct service posts and 27% are back office and management.
Housing Asset Management

Housing Asset Management (HAM) includes Responsive repairs, voids, WHQS and
cyclical works and Disabled adaptations. Total FTE’s for HAM assumed in the plan
are 150.4 a reduction of 3.0 FTE’s on 2014/15. The revenue budget for 2015/16 is
£8.398m and includes £0.207m of savings targets compared to 2014/15.

Total Housing Asset management and support costs for 2015/16 are £1.153m
(E160 per tenancy a reduction of £3 on 2014/15) and total repair and
maintenance expenditure costs are £7.245m (£1,005 per tenancy a reduction
of £33 on 2014/15)

Tenancy Management

Tenancy Management (TM) includes Rents, Anti Social Behaviour, Tenant
participation and Tenancy management services. Total FTE’s assumed in the plan
are 35.6; a reduction of 3.5 on 2014/15. The budget for 2015/16 is £1.573m and
includes £0.301m of savings targets compared to 2014/15.

Total Tenancy management support costs for 2015/16 are £0.266m (£37 per
tenancy a reduction of £18 on 2014/15) and Tenancy management frontline
costs are £1.308m (£180 per tenancy a reduction of £24 on 2014/15).

Estate Services

Estate Services (ES) includes all costs associated with service charges and
landlord costs for communal buildings. Total FTE’s assumed in the plan for ES are

8.6, an increase of 0.5 Fte’s on 2014/1|€_$).a'ggsisof§r a service charge officer post to



enable implementation of the service charge programme. The budget for 2015/16
is £1.024m.

The total cost for estate services equates to £142 per tenancy in 2015/16.

Support Services

Support Services include Finance and cash collection, |.T, member services, HR
and Training, Legal, Insurance, Buildings, admin and Corporate management costs.
The budget for 2015/16 is £2.280m and includes £0.355m of savings targets
compared to 2014/15.

Total support services costs are £316 per tenancy a reduction of £43 per
tenancy.

Capital Financing

The HRA self financing requires that FCC borrows the settlement amount from PWLB

at the beginning of 2015/16. The current estimated figure for Flintshire is £92m.

The borrowing strategy for 2015/16 is not to commit to long term borrowing too early, to
wait until it is clear from capital expenditure plans and reserves that long term
borrowing is needed. The HRAS settlement amount will be borrowed on the 2nd April
as required, but with £10m being borrowed for 1 year, providing some flexibility in
FCCs loan portfolio. When the loan matures in 2016/17 it can be refinanced on a short

or long term basis from the PWLB or from the wider market.

Capital financing costs for 2015/16 are estimated at £5.6m a reduction of £0.5m which
is the anticipated saving associated with leaving the HRA subsidy system. This figure
is likely to be fluid until self financing is concluded and will be monitored and revised as

necessary.

Expenditure over the same period is forecasted as follows:

Year Management Repairs Capital Total

Costs Financing Expenditure
2015/16 £4,877,000 £8,398,000 £5,621,000 £18,896,000
2016/17 £4,936,000 £8,201,000 £7,847,000 £20,984,000
2017/18 £4,950,000 £8,364,000 £8,355,000 £21,669,000
Service Management Service Cost Total cost

cost pe per tenancy per
tenancyj:’age 110 tenancy




Housing Asset £160 £1,005 £1,165
Management

Estate Services £0 £142 £142
Tenancy Management £37 £180 £218
Support Services £316 £0 £316
Debt Financing £759 £0 £759
Total Cost £1,272 £1,327 £2,600

The capital programme for 2015/16 is £21.2m of which the majority is allocated to
achieving the Welsh Housing Quality Standard.

Council House Build Programme

Self financing will provide the HRA with enough borrowing headroom to start a build
programme of new Council homes. It is anticipated that 200 homes could be built over
5 years if these are all built on HRA land, and costs are controlled closely. A full
procurement exercise is underway and the developer should be appointed by May
2015, with the first start on site in early 2016.

The proposed mix for the first Council house development in Chapel St Flint includes:

14 2 bed houses
8 3 bed houses
6 1 bed apartments
2 2 bed apartments.

Total 30 Council homes

A further 20 homes will also be started at the same time in other sites across the

county.

A Task and Finish group has been established, with representation from tenants
and elected members to agree the Flintshire House standard. Key priorities have
been identified which are, energy efficiency, sufficient storage space and adequate
room sizes for family living, lifetime home elements which are practical and cost
effective to deliver so making properties fit for purpose for a range of needs across

residents lives;

Business plan headroom of £14.5m has been identified for the programme at the
moment but this could be extended if further efficiencies are identified and

delivered.

Page 111




BRIEF SUMMARY OF RECENT SERVICE CHANGES / EFFICIENCIES

ALREADY ESTABLISHED

Delivering the Choices Document promises

Since the positive ballot result for the future ownership of the council housing stock, the
council has focussed on delivering the promises made to tenants in the Choices
document. These included both service improvements and stock investment. A number

of the successes are detailed below;

e Appointed two Tenant Liaison Officers to involve customers in the delivery of
improvements in their homes, and appointed a Customer Involvement Assistant

on a temporary basis as a trial.

e A dedicated Anti-Social Behaviour Team of three officers has been created. This

has improved the service to those suffering anti-social behaviour considerably.

e Face to face customer service has been improved through the opening of three

Flintshire Connects Centres in Holywell, Flint and Connahs Quay.

e Creation of a Financial Inclusion and Tenancy Support Team to support tenants

struggling with debt and maintain their tenancies

e Community hubs developed to deliver support services to older tenants in a

number of areas throughout the County

e Creation of Apprenticeships and Local Jobs through the Welsh Housing Quality
Standard delivery programme

Staffing Costs

Senior Management Costs have reduced significantly over the last three years: At
this stage there were four Senior Managers and 50% Head of service costs
associated with leading and managing the HRA. From early 2015 this has now

reduced to 1 senior Manager and 30% of the cost of the Chief Officer.

Team Staffing Costs: Housing Asset Management has recently restructured to

reduce staffing costs creating savin&.s of £174.0k and Neighbourhood Housing

age 112



Management are currently re-structuring and have supported voluntary
redundancies, flexible retirements, and applications for full time staff to reduce
hours. The proposed re-structure and associated salary savings are addressed later

in this report.

Lean Reviews

Lean reviews on all areas of the service led by a team of internal staff, and involving
customers trained in the process has been carried out in order to improve
performance, and reduce cost. For example, a review of the collection of ‘Former
Tenant Arrears’ was completed and has increased collection from £56.7k in
2011/12 to £117.3k in 2013/14.

A further example of how lean has been used to generate more efficient ways of
working is the introduction of appointments and reminders reducing the incidents of

failed appointments and is creating ongoing efficiencies.
Closure of Depot

Housing Asset Management has delivered savings in operational costs of £95.6k by

closing an outdated depot.
Outsourcing Stores

Housing Asset Management has delivered savings of £101.2k by outsourcing stores

to an external provider.
Multi-Skilling

Enhancing trades’ staff multi-skilling has brought about ongoing efficiencies by

reducing the need for multiple appointments and associated costs to repairs.
Fleet Review

The completion of the fleet review has resulted in efficiencies of £81.8k

Gas Servicing

The introduction of compressed working hours (8 day fortnight) has meant that the

service can be extended from 08:00 — 18:00 resulting in greater performance and

Page 113



lower risk to the council of expired gas safety certificates. The introduction of

warrants for forced entry access has reduced the costs of legal cases.

WHQS Programme Out-turns

2012/13 No. planned No. delivered
Heating 600 1100
upgrades
Kitchen 922 1100
replacements
Smoke 884 2400
detectors
Bathroom 56 62
replacements
201314 No. planned No. delivered
Heating 600 977
upgrades
Kitchen 922 1118
replacements
Smoke 884 804
detectors
Bathroom 0 200
replacements
I.T system- Anti- Social Behaviour Case Mana%ement

Page 11




The introduction of the React System from a paper-based system will enable costs
of cases to be tracked to ensure value for money (2014-15 is the first benchmarking
year) and has improved performance by enabling effective case management and

performance management.

Housing News Magazine

The number of editions of the publication “Housing News” has been reduced from 4
to 2 and less costly options have been selected in respect of paper choice. This has

reduced costs by £7k per year.
Voids Performance

The performance for all Void properties in 2013-14 was an average of 42 days
compared to 47 days for 2012-13. Letting days for normal Voids was just 33 days in
Q2 2014/15. This means that average rent loss for void properties now equates to

1.35% of the rent debit, a consistent reduction.
Rent arrears

Despite the introduction of benefit changes in April 2013 and a subsequent
reduction in Housing Benefit to the HRA of circa £800k it has been possible to
maintain performance in this area through a proactive approach to affordability and
debt management. The council has also out-performed the national average in its

ability to transfer customers to the smaller properties that they have requested.

Co-location of Area Housing Teams

The co-location of the three area housing teams along with the ASB Team, Income
Team and Customer Involvement, has enabled the Connah’s Quay and Mold offices
to close. The Neighbourhood Teams were one of the first to pilot agile and the new
flexible working system. This has enabled a reduction in office space and a greater

flexibility for both staff and customers, with appointments being offered later than

previously with no additional costs to thpa?dgoil5



New proposals for efficiencies and service improvement

This plan provides additional efficiencies of c£1.2m by year 3. The principles

underpinning the efficiencies are as follows:

e Joint Procurement

e Realising and releasing capacity

e Undertaking work for internal and external partners
e Improved performance

e Increased customer satisfaction.

FUTURE FORECASTING & DEMAND

e The demand for social housing is nationally outstripping supply, so there is
minimal risk to the HRA not having sufficient demand for its properties in
general terms. However, the design and location of some properties has

resulted in low demand which incurs costs for the council through rent loss.

e Sheltered bedsits can be unpopular, and the introduction of welfare reform
has significantly reduced demand for upper floor 2 bedroom flats. Similarly
the location of some sheltered properties impacts adversely on demand and
therefore consideration may need to be given in the long term to the re-
designation of some units of accommodation to general needs. Particularly in
some areas where ‘single-person general need’ accommodation is in short
supply, and pressures are faced by the council fund to find temporary
accommodation for vulnerable homeless single people. These issues are

addressed in the Asset Management Strategy.

e WHQS must be achieved by 2020/2021 requiring an investment of £107m
however it can be assumed that this additional investment will have a
positive impact on the demand for repairs, and the scale of investment
needed post 2020/21. Completion of the works will gradually (from April
2015), release capacity for the DLO workforce to undertake capital work

streams.

Page 116



WHAT THE FUTURE SERVICE WILL LOOK LIKE AND WHAT NEEDS TO
CHANGE:

Further improved productivity and performance

Technology and support systems utilized to full potential

Introduction of more customer self-serve options

Improved management of housing stock to protect WHQS investment
Longer operating hours (8am to 6pm)

Inspections carried out by trades staff

“Right First Time” approach, including a considerable increase in repairs jobs
being completed on the first visit and routine housing enquiries being
resolved at the first point of contact through the Contact Centre or Connects.
Majority of repairs undertaken through appointment and scheduling system
Streamlined processes to manage absence, capability, and disciplinary
issues.

Increased capital works to deliver WHQS

Improved Business Intelligence from IT System

More automated workflows through Civica and Capita System

Increased internal collaboration and joint procurement

Consideration of the opportunities and benefits for external collaboration

RISK MANAGEMENT

A risk management plan has been developed for the WHQS programme and this is

regularly monitored by both scrutiny committee and the Cabinet. Reports have also

been considered on progress of the Choices Document promises by Scrutiny

Committee and by regular reporting to tenants conferences and the Tenants

Federation.

A revised risk assessment process is under development for the council and this will

be applied to this business plan before April 15t to include new key strategic risks as

identified below:

e Self financing
¢ MRA funding commitment

e Council house building programme

Page 117



CONCLUSION

This plan is written at a time of significant change for council housing finance across
Wales. There are positive opportunities ahead to provide good quality housing
services; local homes maintained to a high standard and new council homes built to
meet local housing need.

Page 118



Flintshire County Council - Base Model Business Plan Assumptions

Revenue ogerating Account - 2015 to 2044

Income Expenditure Net Operating Balance Available Capital Funding Capital Programme
Housing
Net Rent Other Total Tenancy Estate Asset Support Debt Total Net Operating Prudential Capital Total Capital WHQS Capital SHARP
Year Year Income Income Income Mgmnt | Services | Mgmnt Costs Charges Expenses Expenditure |Balance B/F CERA Balance C/F CERA MRA Borrowing Receipts Funds Programme programme Shortfall
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1{ 2015.16 (28,365) (1,033) |30y 1,573 1,024 8,398 2,280 5,621 18,896 (10,502) (946) 10,787 (661) 10,787 5,200 5,400 21,387 20,298 900 (189)
2| 2016.17 (29,685) (1,270) (30,955) 1,601 1,044 8,201 2,291 7,847 20,984 (9,971) (661) 9,897 (734) 9,897 5,200 10,500 25,597 21,589 4,017 9
3| 2017.18 (30,959) (1,547) (32,506) 1,632 1,065 8,364 2,253 8,355 21,669 (10,837) (734) 10,813 (758) 10,813 5,200 12,400 28,413 23,004 5,517 107
4| 2018.19 (32,192) (1,839) (34,031) 1,664 1,086 8,531 2,296 8,902 22,479 (11,552) (758) 11,524 (787) 11,524 5,200 8,900 25,624 20,214 5,682 272
5| 2019.20 (33,366) (1,877) (35,243) 1,697 1,108 8,700 2,341 9,006 22,851 (12,392) (787) 12,379 (800) 12,379 5,200 - 17,579 17,217 0 (362)
6| 2020.21 (35,103) (1,898) (37,001) 1,730 1,130 8,874 2,387 8,810 22,932 (14,069) (800) 14,066 (803) 14,066 5,200 3,000 22,266 19,518 0 (2,748)
7| 2021.22 (36,332) (1,928) (38,260) 1,765 1,153 9,051 2,435 8,727 23,132 (15,128) (803) 15,121 (810) 15,121 5,200 - 20,321 22,739 0 2,418
8| 2022.23 (37,604) (1,959) (39,562) 1,800 1,176 9,233 2,484 8,531 23,223 (16,339) (810) 16,336 (813) 16,336 5,200 - 21,536 17,351 0 (4,185)
9| 2023.24 (38,736) (1,990) (40,726) 1,836 1,199 9,417 2,534 8,310 23,296 (17,430) (813) 17,427 (815) 17,427 5,200 - 22,627 17,871 0 (4,756)
10| 2024.25 (39,782) (2,022) (41,804) 1,873 1,223 9,605 2,584 8,086 23,372 (18,432) (815) 18,429 (818) 18,429 5,200 - 23,629 18,407 0 (5,222)
11| 2025.26 (41,643) (2,064) (43,707) 1,911 1,248 9,798 2,636 7,871 23,463 (20,245) (818) 20,241 (821) 20,241 5,200 - 25,441 18,959 0 (6,482)
12| 2026.27 (41,959) (2,089) (44,048) 1,949 1,272 9,994 2,689 7,669 23,572 (20,476) (821) 20,472 (825) 20,472 5,200 - 25,672 19,528 0 (6,144)
13| 2027.28 (43,092) (2,123) (45,215) 1,988 1,298 10,193 2,742 7,434 23,656 (21,559) (825) 21,556 (828) 21,556 5,200 - 26,756 20,114 0 (6,642)
14| 2028.29 (44,255) (2,158) (46,414) 2,028 1,324 10,397 2,797 7,203 23,749 (22,665) (828) 22,662 (831) 22,662 5,200 - 27,862 20,717 0 (7,144)
15| 2029.30 (45,450) (2,195) (47,645) 2,068 1,350 10,605 2,853 6,975 23,852 (23,793) (831) 23,790 (835) 23,790 5,200 - 28,990 21,339 0 (7,651)
16| 2030.31 (46,678) (2,232) (48,909) 2,109 1,377 10,817 2,910 6,749 23,963 (24,946) (835) 24,942 (839) 24,942 5,200 - 30,142 21,979 0 (8,163)
17| 2031.32 (48,861) (2,281) (51,142) 2,152 1,405 11,034 2,969 6,540 24,099 (27,043) (839) 27,038 (843) 27,038 5,200 - 32,238 22,639 0 (9,600)
18| 2032.33 (49,232) (2,309) (51,541) 2,195 1,433 11,254 3,028 6,307 24,217 (27,324) (843) 27,320 (848) 27,320 5,200 - 32,520 23,318 0 (9,202)
19| 2033.34 (50,561) (2,348) (52,910) 2,239 1,462 11,479 3,088 6,083 24,351 (28,559) (848) 28,554 (852) 28,554 5,200 - 33,754 24,017 0 (9,737)
20| 2034.35 (51,927) (2,389) (54,316) 2,283 1,491 11,709 3,150 5,889 24,523 (29,793) (852) 29,787 (858) 29,787 5,200 - 34,987 24,738 0 (10,249)
21| 2035.36 (53,329) (2,431) (55,760) 2,329 1,521 11,943 3,213 5,440 24,447 (31,313) (858) 31,316 (856) 31,316 5,200 - 36,516 25,480 0 (11,036)
22| 2036.37 (54,768) (2,474) (57,242) 2,376 1,551 12,182 3,277 5,121 24,507 (32,736) (856) 32,733 (858) 32,733 5,200 - 37,933 26,244 0 (11,689)
23| 2037.38 (57,330) (2,532) (59,862) 2,423 1,582 12,426 3,343 4,779 24,553 (35,309) (858) 35,307 (859) 35,307 5,200 - 40,507 27,032 0 (13,475)
24| 2038.39 (57,766) (2,563) (60,329) 2,472 1,614 12,674 3,410 4,539 24,709 (35,620) (859) 35,615 (865) 35,615 5,200 - 40,815 27,843 0 (12,972)
25| 2039.40 (59,326) (2,609) (61,935) 2,521 1,646 12,928 3,478 4,483 25,056 (36,878) (865) 36,866 (877) 36,866 5,200 - 42,066 28,678 0 (13,388)
26| 2040.41 (60,927) (2,656) (63,584) 2,571 1,679 13,186 3,548 4,314 25,298 (38,286) (877) 38,277 (885) 38,277 5,200 - 43,477 29,538 0 (13,939)
27| 2041.42 (62,572) (2,705) (65,277) 2,623 1,713 13,450 3,619 4,146 25,550 (39,727) (885) 39,718 (894) 39,718 5,200 - 44,918 30,424 0 (14,494)
28| 2042.43 (64,262) (2,755) (67,016) 2,675 1,747 13,719 3,691 3,897 25,729 (41,287) (894) 41,281 (901) 41,281 5,200 - 46,481 31,337 0 (15,144)
29 pmgl13.44 (67,268) (2,822) (70,090) 2,729 1,782 13,993 3,765 3,765 26,034 (44,056) (901) 44,045 (911) 44,045 5,200 - 49,245 32,277 0 (16,968)
30] ¥h4.45 (70,389) (2,891) (73,280) 2,783 1,817 14,273 3,840 3,635 26,349 (46,931) (911) 46,920 (922) 46,920 5,201 - 52,121 33,246 0 (18,876)
«Q
D
=
©

Flintshire HRA Business Plan Financial model 201516 FINAL 110215 (Appendix B)

11/02/2015 15:42




HRA Business Planning - Appendix C

(322,877)

(797,655)

(1,007,676)

02T obed

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

LOW

LOW

MEDIUM

Fire Alarm Testing in-house

Mobile working performance and productivity

Remove Tenant Incentive Budget and replace
with urgent cases budget

Reduced expenditure on rent credits on
tenancy commencement.

Savings on the stores contract

(45,000)

150,000

20,000

27,000

(45,000)

20,000

27,000

(56,000)

(45,000)

24,555

20,000

27,000

(56,000)

Proposal for Estate Caretakers to carry out
function in place of contractors.

Void programme of works incorporating a
phased move from subcontractors in year 1
to a team of 6 trades staff in years 2 and 3 as
a result of increased productivity allowing for
the redeployment of resource.

Currently have a budget of £35000 to assist
tenants with downsizing.

Prospective tenants are now provisionally
allocated properties well in advance of the
tenancy start date so there is a reduced need
to provide rent free weeks at the start of the
tenancy

This could be achieved through a joint
contract with Wrexham or as part of a re-
tendered service.




T2T obed

14|MEDIUM

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

24(Low

Introduce a tree management policy

Reduced Tenant Group Funding

Housing Management Restructure

Reduce external conference events for tenant
groups

Increase insurance excess

One year IT post ended

Reduce bad debt provision

(18,000)

(116,801)

(46,849)

(20,000)

(18,000)

(116,801)

(46,849)

(30,358)

(20,000)

(18,000)

(2,750)

(116,801)

(46,849)

(30,358)

(20,000)

Essential tree works only on trees in tenants
gardens. Medium risk as may increase H&S
issues

10% reduction on tenant group funding.

Assumptions made about salary grades as
JEQs vet to be assessed.

A reduction in the funding for external
conferences from £7650 to £4k.

Insurance excess can be increased to reduce
cost of insurance. Medium risk as savings
could be offset by number of claims.

One year IT project post for Job scheduling
and service charges.

Budget realignment

Total

(753,675)

(1,094,913)

(1,177,105)




30 YEARS COST PROJECTION -WHQS AND OTHER CAPITAL WORKS

WHQS

3.00%

4.50%|

107,573,324|

Eco
Stock Funding/Non WWENEC] Other Total
Condition Trad. Internal Envelope External Off Gas  Environmental DDA/Smoke Empty Reform Contingency/Ur Flintshire Non WHQS WHQS  Capital Capital
Survey Properties Works Works Fire Risk works Cost Works Asbestos Alarms Properties  Remodelling gents WHQS Total Regen Total P.U P.U P.U
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
2015.16 2,800,000 8,391,450 3,914,950 500,000 475,000| 1,100,000 0 350,000 50,000 500,000 100,000 446,442 669,663 19,297,505 1,000,000 900,000 1,900,000 2,676 264 2,940 7,210
2016.17 550,000| 11,952,550| 2,581,150 150,000 475,000 750,000 950,000 350,000 50,000 750,000 100,000 520,761 781,142 19,960,603 1,030,000 4,017,000 5,047,000 2,768 700 3,552 7,210
2017.18 700,000 9,853,450| 5,834,900 150,000 475,000 500,000 950,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 547,901 821,851 20,683,101 1,060,900 5,516,680 6,577,580 2,861 910 3,945 7,230
2018.19 0 6,825,000| 7,051,850 150,000 475,000 0 950,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 478,556 717,833 17,498,239 1,092,727 5,682,180 6,774,907 2,407 932 3,562 7,270
2019.20 0 2,662,500| 7,286,600 150,000 475,000 0 1,900,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 389,223 583,835 14,297,158 1,125,509 0 1,125,509 1,956 154 2,355 7,310
2020.21 0 662,500| 10,718,750 150,000 475,000 0 1,900,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 432,188 648,281 15,836,719 1,159,274 1,159,274 2,161 158 2,663 7,330
2021.22| 11,728,000 2,123,550( 1,967,800 150,000 350,000 500,000 489,581 734,371 18,043,301 1,194,052 1,194,052 2,462 163 3,102 7,330
2022.23| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,229,874 1,229,874 1,788 168 2,367 7,330
2023.24| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,266,770 1,266,770 1,788 173 2,438 7,330
2024.25| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,304,773 1,304,773 1,788 178 2,511 7,330
2025.26| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,343,916 1,343,916 1,788 183 2,587 7,330
2026.27| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,384,234 1,384,234 1,788 189 2,664 7,330
2027.28| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,425,761 1,425,761 1,788 195 2,744 7,330
2028.29| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,468,534 1,468,534 1,788 200 2,826 7,330
2029.30| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,512,590 1,512,590 1,788 206 2,911 7,330
2030.31| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,557,967 1,557,967 1,788 213 2,999 7,330
2031.32| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,604,706 1,604,706 1,788 219 3,088 7,330
2032.33| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,652,848 1,652,848 1,788 225 3,181 7,330
2033.34| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,702,433 1,702,433 1,788 232 3,277 7,330
2034.35| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,753,506 1,753,506 1,788 239 3,375 7,330
2035.36| 11,728,000 500,001 351,840 527,760 13,107,601 1,806,111 1,806,111 1,788 246 3,476 7,330
2036.37| 11,728,000 500,002 351,840 527,760 13,107,602 1,860,295 1,860,295 1,788 254 3,580 7,330
2037.38| 11,728,000 500,003 351,840 527,760 13,107,603 1,916,103 1,916,103 1,788 261 3,688 7,330
2038.39| 11,728,000 500,004 351,840 527,760 13,107,604 1,973,587 1,973,587 1,788 269 3,798 7,330
2039.40| 11,728,000 500,005 351,840 527,760 13,107,605 2,032,794 2,032,794 1,788 277 3,912 7,330
2040.41| 11,728,000 500,006 351,840 527,760 13,107,606 2,093,778 2,093,778 1,788 286 4,030 7,330
2041.42| 11,728,000 500,007 351,840 527,760 13,107,607 2,156,591 2,156,591 1,788 294 4,151 7,330
2042.43| 11,728,000 500,008 351,840 527,760 13,107,608 2,221,289 2,221,289 1,788 303 4,275 7,330
2043.44| 11,728,000 500,009 351,840 527,760 13,107,609 2,287,928 2,287,928 1,788 312 4,403 7,330
2044.45| 11,728,000 500,010 351,840 527,760 13,107,610 2,356,566 2,356,566 1,788 321 4,536 7,330

2cT obed




Agenda Item 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present to Members the draft Treasury Management Strategy for
2015/16 for recommendation to Council.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have
due regard to both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of
Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice) and Welsh Government
guidance on Local Authority Investments.

2.02 The Council has adopted The CIPFA Code of Practice which requires:-

o The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management
Policy Statement which states the Council’s policies, objectives
and approach to risk management of its treasury management
activities.

. The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules,
stating how those policies and objectives will be achieved and
prescribing how those activities will be managed and controlled.

o The Council to receive reports on its treasury management
policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an
annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year
review and an annual report after its close, in the form prescribed
in its TMPs.

o Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined.
The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and
practices to the Cabinet, and for the execution and administration
of treasury management decisions to the Corporate Finance
Manager, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy

Page 123



2.03

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

statement and TMPs and, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional
Practice on Treasury Management.

o A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury Management

Policy, Strategy and Practices. The Council has nominated the
Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny
of the treasury management function. The Audit Committee has
previously agreed to include treasury management as a standing
item on each quarterly agenda to receive an update.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was
run by Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Management advisors on the
morning of 215t January. The aim of the workshop was to aid Members’
understanding of the Treasury Management Strategy.

CONSIDERATIONS

The 2015/16 Treasury Management Strategy is attached in Appendix 1
for review and discussion. The Strategy is updated and reported
annually to Members in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice
and the Welsh Government guidance.

The Treasury Management Strategy details the approach that the
Council will take for investing and borrowing over the next year,
including the budgetary implications of the planned investment and
borrowing strategy and a number of treasury management indicators
that the CIPFA Code requires.

The contents and layout of the 2015/16 Strategy have not materially
changed from that of the 2014/15 Strategy.

Changes made and matters needing to be brought to Members
attention are summarised below along with the supporting rationale:-

. Section 4 — Local context.

This section summarises the anticipated treasury position in
2015/16. A new graph called the liability benchmark has been
included (Table 4) which shows the net requirement for
borrowing after considering resources available from reserves
and working capital over the next 50 years. Treasury
Management activity in 2015/16 will change and will focus more
on borrowing and less on investments than in recent years.

o Section 5 — Housing Revenue Account; Subsidy Reform and
introduction of self financing.

Preparations continue to be made for the abolition of the

Housing Revenue Account Subsidy (HRAS) system in Wales
and the introduction of ‘Self Financing’ for the Housing Revenue

Page 124



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

Account on 31%t March 2015. The treasury impact will be to
increase the Council’s debt position. Section 5 of the report
provides further information.

. Section 6 — Investment Strategy.

Changes have been made to the format of the Investment
criteria and limits detailed in table 5. The changes are necessary
to ensure that the Council’s exposure to credit risk is minimised.
This is as a consequence of the recently introduced legislation
(commonly referred to as ‘bail-in’) to reform procedures should
financial institutions fail in the future. The reforms end potential
support available from the government and require investors /
creditors classed as unsecured bondholders (such as Councils)
to be bailed-in to secure the future financial stability in the event
of a default.

. Section 7 — Borrowing Strategy.

Changes have been made to the planned borrowing strategy in
2015/16 from that of 2014/15 which can be seen in Section 7 —
Borrowing Strategy. In 2014/15 the strategy was to create short
term revenue savings by not undertaking any new borrowing. In
2015/16 the Council will need to borrow to fund the capital
programme.

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 28" January 2015 Members
reviewed the draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16.

Investments and borrowing requirements were discussed at length
during the meeting, with no amendments made to the draft report.

On 18t March 2013 the Council approved the current Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury Management Practices with both
documents covering 3 financial years, 2013 to 2016. It was agreed that
these documents would not require annual approval by Members,
unless any significant changes was required. No changes need to be
made to the Policy, and only minor changes need to be made to the
Practices simply to bring them in line with changes approved to the
Strategy.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Cabinet approves and recommends to the Council the
Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

Page 125



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas - Finance Manager,
Technical Accounting

Telephone: 01352 702289

Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 126



Slry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

-y

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY

2015/16

Page 127

APPENDIX 1



Section

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

CONTENTS

Introduction

Economic Context

Current Treasury Portfolio

Local Context

Housing Revenue Account Subsidy Reform
Investment Strategy

Borrowing Strategy

Policy on the use of Financial Derivatives
Treasury Management Indicators

Other Matters

APPENDIX A — Debt Maturity Profile

Page 128

12

15

15

17

19



Treasury Management Strategy Report 2015/16

The Council is recommended to:
e approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16
e approve the Treasury Management Indicators for 2015/16

1.0 Introduction

In April 2012 the Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
2011 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve a
treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year.

In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised guidance on local
authority investments in March 2010 that requires the Council to approve an
investment strategy before the start of each financial year.

This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance.

The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are central to the
Council's treasury management strategy as the Council has borrowed and
invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks
including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest
rates.

2.0 Economic Context (including Interest Rate Forecast — as provided by
Arlingclose Ltd, November 2014).

Economic background: There is momentum in the UK economy, with a
continued period of growth through domestically-driven activity and strong
household consumption. There are signs that growth is becoming more
balanced. The greater contribution from business investment should support
continued, albeit slower, expansion of GDP. However, inflationary pressure is
benign and is likely to remain low in the short-term. There have been large falls
in unemployment but levels of part-time working, self-employment and
underemployment are significant and nominal earnings growth remains weak
and below inflation.

The MPC's focus is on both the degree of spare capacity in the economy and
the rate at which this will be used up, factors prompting some debate on the
Committee. Despite two MPC members having voted for a 0.25% increase in
rates at each of the meetings August 2014 onwards, some Committee
members have become more concerned that the economic outlook is less
optimistic than at the time of the August Inflation Report.

Credit outlook: The transposition of two European Union directives into UK
legislation in the coming months will place the burden of rescuing failing EU
banks disproportionately onto unsecured local authority investors. The Bank
Recovery and Resolution Directive promotes the interests of individual and

1
Page 129




small businesses covered by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme
and similar European schemes, while the recast Deposit Guarantee Schemes
Directive includes large companies into these schemes. The combined effect
of these two changes is to leave public authorities and financial organisations
(including pension funds) as the only senior creditors likely to incur losses in a
failing bank after July 2015.

The continued global economic recovery has led to a general improvement in
credit conditions since last year. This is evidenced by a fall in the credit default
swap spreads of banks and companies around the world. However, due to the
above legislative changes, the credit risk associated with making unsecured
bank deposits will increase relative to the risk of other investment options
available to the Authority.

Interest rate forecast: The Authority’s treasury management advisor
Arlingclose forecasts the first rise in official interest rates in August 2015 and a
gradual pace of increases thereafter, with the average for 2015/16 being around
0.75%. Arlingclose believes the normalised level of the Bank Rate post-crisis
to range between 2.5% and 3.5%. The risk to the upside (i.e. interest rates
being higher) is weighted more towards the end of the forecast horizon. On the
downside, Eurozone weakness and the threat of deflation have increased the
risks to the durability of UK growth. If the negative indicators from the Eurozone
become more entrenched, the Bank of England will likely defer rate rises to
later in the year. Arlingclose projects gilt yields on an upward path in the
medium term, taking the forecast average 20 year PWLB loan rate for 2015/16
to 2.8%.

Table 1: Interest rate forecast

Bank | 3 month | 12 month 20 year 50 year

Rate LIBID LIBID PWLB rate | PWLB rate
Q1 2015 0.50 0.60 1.00 2.55 2.65
Q2 2015 0.50 0.75 1.05 2.65 2.70
Q3 2015 0.75 0.90 1.20 2.75 2.80
Q4 2015 0.75 1.05 1.35 2.85 2.90
Q1 2016 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.95 3.00
Q2 2016 1.00 1.35 1.65 3.00 3.05
Q3 2016 1.25 1.50 1.80 3.05 3.10
Q4 2016 1.25 1.60 1.95 3.10 3.15
Q1 2017 1.50 1.70 2.10 3.15 3.20
Q2 2017 1.50 1.80 2.20 3.20 3.25
Q3 2017 1.75 1.90 2.30 3.25 3.30
Q4 2017 1.75 2.00 2.40 3.30 3.55

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new
investments will be made at an average rate of 0.65%, and that new long-term
loans will be borrowed at a weighted average rate of 3.15%.

2
Page 130



3.0 Current Treasury Portfolio
The Council’s treasury portfolio as at 31t December 2014 was as follows:
Table 2: Current Treasury Portfolio

Principal £Em | Interest rate %

Investments:
Call accounts 5.0 0.35
Money market funds 15.6 0.44
Short-term deposits 31.8 0.62
Long-term deposits - -
Total Investments 52.40 0.55
Borrowing:
Short-term loans - -
Long-term PWLB loans (fixed) 143.16 5.86
Long-term PWLB loans (variable) 10.00 0.55
Long-term market loans (LOBOS) 18.95 4.53
Total Borrowing 172.11 5.42
Net Borrowing 119.71

4.0 Local Context

Forecast changes in the sums in section 3 are shown in the balance sheet

analysis in the table below.

Table 3: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast

(called the Liability Benchmark)

31.3.14 | 31.3.15 31.3.16 31.3.17 31.3.18
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m
Counf:ll Fund Capital .Flnancmg 154 164 186 190 188
Requirement (Borrowing only)
Housing Revenue Account
Capital Financing Requirement 25 24 122 130 140
(Borrowing only)
Capital I':lnancmg Requirement 179 188 308 320 308
(Borrowing only)
Less: Current borrowing -172 -172 -172 -172 -172
Funding Required 7 16 136 148 156
Less: Usable reserves -60 -43 -25 -21 -19
Less: Working capital 4 4 5 5 5
Investments / 49 23
New borrowing -116 -132 -142

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are

3
Page 131




the underlying resources available for investment. The Authority’s current
strategy is to maintain borrowing below their underlying levels, sometimes
known as internal borrowing.

Table 3 shows the Authority’s CFR increasing steadily until 2015/16, this is
linked with the capital programme which increases sharply in 2015/16 due to
the 215 century schools building programme and the payment required to exit
the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system (described in more detail in
section 5). The level of reserves the Authority has is expected to fall in 2014/15
following the implementation of the Single Status Agreement. The combination
of the increase in capital expenditure and a reduction in reserves, results in:

e an expected reduction in investments in 2014/15 and 2015/186,
e asignificant projected new borrowing requirement in 2015/16 and further
new borrowing required in 2016/17 and 2017/18.

The graph in table 4 shows the Council’s anticipated liability benchmark over
the next 50 years, being the net requirement for borrowing after considering
resources available from reserves and working capital. The steep rise in the
liability benchmark in 2015/16 corresponds with the need to borrow to fund the
increase in capital expenditure described above. The strategy in 2015/16 and
over the medium term is to ensure that any new borrowing undertaken does not
exceed the liability benchmark and cause the council to borrow more than it
needs.

Table 4: Liability Benchmark - Flintshire County Council (January 2015)

\ s Borrowing Borrowing CFR ~ --eeeeeeee Liability Benchmark \

350,000,000 -

300,000,000

250,000,000

200,000,000

150,000,000

100,000,000

50,000,000

The impact of the above will result in the focus of treasury management
activity changing in 2015/16. In recent years attention will have been
concentrated on investments, which will now switch to borrowing.

4
Page 132



Budget implications

The budget for investment income in 2015/16 is £130k, based on an average
investment portfolio of £20m at an average interest rate of 0.65%. The total
budget for loan interest paid in 2015/16 is £12.6m, based on an average debt
portfolio of £276.5m at a weighted average interest rate of 4.53%. If levels of
investments, borrowing and interest rates differ from those forecast,
performance against budget will be correspondingly different.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — Introduction of Self Financing and
Subsidy Reform

Agreement has been reached between the UK Government and the Welsh
Government to change the financing arrangements for council housing in Wales
from April 2015. Currently a negative subsidy system is in operation which
requires Flintshire to make annual payments of cE6m in negative subsidy to
Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury, along with the other 11 stock
retaining authorities in Wales.

The agreement is expected to generate revenue savings allowing the Council
to increase its investment in existing stock, and support the delivery of
additional supply of housing. It will also provide more local accountability to
tenants.

Introduction of self financing will end the negative subsidy system and annual
payments. The subsidy payments will be replaced with interest payments on
PWLB loans that the Council must borrow to exit the subsidy system. The
PWLB loans, called the settlement payment (a one-off lump sum payment), will
be paid to Welsh Government (WG) and on to UK Treasury.

WG have established an officer Steering Group and a number of work streams
to undertake the considerable amount of work involved to exit the subsidy
system by the 315t March 2015, which Flintshire has been contributing to. Good
progress has been made to date, but the work continues.

The settlement payment will be set with reference to PWLB interest rates on
31st March 2015 and therefore cannot be confirmed at this point in time. The
current projection for Flintshire is £92m, based on the latest interest rate
forecast. Atthis value the estimated annual revenue savings are £0.5m. These
figures will change up until 315t March and will be monitored and revised as
necessary.

The sharp increase in the HRA capital financing requirement from 2015/16
onwards in table 3 above, is due to the estimated £92m settlement payment
and an estimated planned programme of £28.3m capital expenditure over 3
years to improve existing stock and to start building new council houses.

5
Page 133



Investment Strateqy

The Council holds surplus funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the
Council’s investment balance has ranged between £45.2 and £80.9 million.

Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Council to invest its
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its
investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Council’s
objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between
risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk
of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

Strateqy

Given the increasing risk and continued low returns from short-term unsecured
bank investments, the Authority aims to further diversify into more secure asset
classes during 2015/16. This is especially the case for any longer-term
investment made. The majority of the Authorities surplus cash is currently
invested in short-term unsecured bank deposits and money market funds. This
diversification will therefore represent a change in strategy over the coming
year.

Investment criteria and limits

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparties in the
following table, subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

6
Page 134



Table 5: Investment criteria and limits

(This table should be read in conjunction with the notes that follow it)

Minimum Banks Banks Government | Corporates | Registered
Credit Rating | Unsecured | Secured Providers
UK £ Unlimited
Government 50 years
AAA
£4m £7m £7m £4m
AA+ 5 years 5 years 25 years 5 years
£4m
4 years 4 years 15 years 4 years
AA- £4m £7m £7m £4m
3 years 3 years 10 years 3 years
A £4m E7m £4m
+
2 years 2 years 2 years
A £4m £7m £7m £4m £4m
1 year 1 year 5 years 1 year 5 years
A- £4m £7/m £4m
6 months 6 months 6 months
Pooled
Funds £7m per fund
BBB- The Council is restricted to overnight deposits at its’ own current
account bank with a limit of £5m where the banks lowest credit rating
is BBB+, BBB or BBB- (or equivalent)
Unrated Local £4m
Authorities 2 years
Unrated The Council may invest in any other unrated organisation, subject to:
Other e an external credit assessment and specific advice from the
Authority’s treasury management adviser (£1m each / 1 year limit)
e a further policy framework for investing with any other
organisations being developed(£100k each / 5 year limit)
Credit Ratin

Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest published long-
term credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s. Where available,
the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is
used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used.

Banks Unsecured

Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with
banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. These
investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator

7
Page 135



determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. Unsecured investment with
banks rated BBB+, BBB or BBB- are restricted to overnight deposits at the
Authority’s current account bank.

Banks Secured

Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other collateralised
arrangements with banks and building societies. These investments are
secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the unlikely
event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in. Where there
is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the
investment is secured has a credit rating, the highest of the collateral credit
rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time
limits. The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will
not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Government

Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments, regional
and local authorities and multilateral development banks. These investments
are not subject to bail-in, and there is an insignificant risk of insolvency.
Investments with the UK Central Government may be made in unlimited
amounts for up to 50 years.

Corporates

Loans, bonds and commercial papers issued by companies other than banks
and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but are
exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent. Loans to unrated
companies will only be made as part of a diversified pool in order to spread the
risk widely.

Registered Providers

Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the assets of
Registered Providers of Social Housing, formerly known as Housing
Associations. These bodies are tightly regulated by the Welsh Government or
Homes and Communities Agency and, as providers of public services, they
retain a high likelihood of receiving government support if needed. The Council
will consider investing with unrated Registered Providers with adequate credit
safeguards, subject to receiving independent advice.

Pooled Funds

Shares in diversified investment vehicles consisting of any of the above
investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the
advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the
services of a professional fund manager in return for a fee. Money Market
Funds that offer same-day liquidity and aim for a constant net asset value will
be used as an alternative to instant access bank accounts, while pooled funds
whose value changes with market prices and/or have a notice period will be
used for longer investment periods.

8
Page 136



Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term,
but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Authority to diversify
into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the
underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date,
but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and
continued suitability in meeting the Authority’s investment objectives will be
monitored regularly.

Other Organisations

The Authority may also invest cash with other organisations, for example by
making loans to small businesses. Because of the higher perceived risk of
unrated businesses, such investments may provide considerably higher rates
of return. They will however only be made following a favourable external credit
assessment and on the specific advice of the Authority’s treasury management
adviser.

Foreign countries

Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold an AAA or AA+
/ Aal sovereign credit rating from all three major credit rating agencies, and to
a maximum of £10 million per foreign country. Investments in countries whose
lowest sovereign rating is not AAA will be limited to one year’s duration. No
country limit will apply to investments in the UK, irrespective of the sovereign
credit rating.

Risk assessment and credit ratings

The Council uses long-term credit ratings from the three main rating agencies
Fitch Ratings Ltd, Moody’s Investors Service Inc and Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services LLC to assess the risk of investment default. The lowest
available credit rating will be used to determine credit quality.

Long-term ratings are expressed on a scale from AAA (the highest quality)
through to D (indicating default). Ratings of BBB- and above are described as
investment grade, while ratings of BB+ and below are described as speculative
grade. The Council’s credit rating criteria are set to ensure that it is unlikely
that the Council will hold speculative grade investments, despite the possibility
of repeated downgrades.

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers,
who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then:

e no new investments will be made,

e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be,
and

e full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”)

9
Page 137



so that it is likely to fall below the above criteria, then no further investments will
be made in that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This
policy will not apply to negative outlooks.

Other information on the security of investments

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors
of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available
information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it invests,
including credit default swap prices, financial statements and reports in the
quality financial press. No investments will be made with an organisation if
there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may meet
the above criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all
organisations, as in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances,
the Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit
guality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the
required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with
prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient
commercial organisations of “high credit quality” are available to invest the
Council’'s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK
Government, via the Debt Management Office for example, or with other local
authorities. This will cause a reduction in the level of investment income
earned, but will protect the principal sum invested.

Specified investments

The WG Guidance defines specified investments as those:

denominated in pound sterling,

due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement,

not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and

invested with one of:
o the UK Government,
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

The Council defines ‘high credit quality’ organisations as those having a credit
rating of A- or higher that are, domiciled in the UK, or a foreign country with a
sovereign rating of AA+ or higher. For money market funds and other pooled
funds “high credit quality” is defined as those having a credit rating of [A-] or
higher.

Non-Specified Investments

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed
as non-specified. The Council does not intend to make any investments in
foreign currencies. Non- specified investments will therefore be limited to long
term investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from
the date of arrangement; those that are defined as capital expenditure, such as

10
Page 138



money market funds and other pooled funds; and investments with bodies and
schemes not meeting the definition on high credit quality. Limits on non-
specified investments are shown in the table below.

Table 6: Non-Specified Investment Limits

Cash Limit
Total long-term investments £10m
Total shares in pooled funds £30m
Total investments without credit ratings or rated below A- £10m
(not including pooled funds)
Total non-specified investments £50m

Liquidity management

The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software to determine the
maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed. The forecast is
compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and payments
over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to borrow on
unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term
investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium term financial plan
and cash flow forecast.

Planned investment strateqgy for 2015/16

The UK implemented the ‘bail-in’ provisions on 15t January 2015 ending
government support potentially available should a bank fail in the future.
Investors / creditors classed as senior unsecured bondholders will be bailed-in
to secure the future financial stability of a bank in the event of a default.

There is a risk that following the withdrawal of potential government support,
the credit rating agencies will downgrade the credit ratings of some institutions
on Flintshire’s counterparty list to BBB+, below A- which is the minimum rating
required by the Treasury Management Strategy.

To mitigate this risk, the Council will:

¢ Not invest in any financial institution rated below A-, with the exception
of overnight deposits with the Council’s current account.

e Reduce the amount of unsecured investments made.

e Seek to invest in alternative, secure financial instruments such as UK
Government Treasury Bills and investments secured on a bank or
building societies assets, such as covered bonds, that are exempt from
bail-in in the unlikely event of insolvency.

e Continue to diversify the portfolio of investments, subject to cash flow
requirements as outlined in the following paragraphs

Treasury management staff will continue to seek out investments that meet the
criteria detailed within this strategy whilst having full regard for the Council’s
cash flow requirements, in particular the expectancy to meet outstanding single
status and equal pay obligations during the 2015/16 financial year.

11
Page 139



The cash flow forecast will be used to divide surplus funds into three categories:

e Short-term — cash required to meet known cash outflows in the next
month, plus a contingency to cover unexpected cash flows over the
same period.

e Medium-term — cash required to manage the annual seasonal cash
flow cycle, including amounts to cover forecast shortages, planned
uses of reserves, and a longer-term contingency.

e Long-term — cash not required to meet cash flows, and used primarily
to generate investment income.

Short-term funds are required to meet cash flows occurring in the next month
or so, and the preservation of capital and liquidity is therefore of paramount
importance. Generating investment returns is of limited concern here, although
it should not be ignored. Instant access money market funds and bank deposit
accounts will be the main methods used to manage short-term cash.

Medium-term funds which may be required in the next one to twelve months
will be managed concentrating on security, with less importance attached to
liquidity but a slightly higher emphasis on yield. The majority of investments in
this period will be in the form of fixed term deposits with banks and building
societies. A wide spread of counterparties and maturity dates will be maintained
to maximise the diversification of credit and interest rate risks.

Cash that is not required to meet any liquidity need can be invested for the
longer term with a greater emphasis on achieving returns that will support
spending on local authority services. Security remains important, as any losses
from defaults will impact on the total return, but fluctuations in price and even
occasional losses can be managed over the long term within a diversified
portfolio. Liquidity is of lesser concern, although it should still be possible to
sell investments, with due notice, if large spending commitments arise
unexpectedly. A wider range of instruments, including structured deposits,
certificates of deposit, gilts and corporate bonds will be used to diversify the
portfolio.

Borrowing Strateqy

The Council currently holds £172.11m of long-term loans, as part of its strategy
for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet forecast in
section 4 shows that the Council will need to undertake significant new long
term borrowing during 2015/16.

The Council’'s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and
achieving cost certainty over the period for which the funds are required. The
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change is a
secondary objective.

The Council’s capital expenditure plans will be monitored throughout 2015/16

to inform and confirm the Council’s long term borrowing need (figures in section
4 are an estimate). This is to ensure that the Council does not commit to long

12
Page 140



term borrowing too early and borrow unnecessarily which will be costly. The
use of short-term borrowing will assist with such. This will be balanced against
securing low long term interest rates currently being forecast.

Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local
government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address the
key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the
debt portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-
term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either use
internal resources, or to borrow short-term instead. By doing so, the Council is
able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite forgone investment income) and
reduce overall treasury risk. Credit risk as a result of the bail-in legislation has
increased as referred to in section 6 the planned borrowing strategy helps to
mitigate the increased risk.

Whilst such a strategy is most likely to be beneficial over the next 2-3 years as
official interest rates remain low, it is unlikely to be sustained in the medium-
term. The benefits of internal borrowing will be monitored regularly against the
potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years
when long-term borrowing costs are forecast to rise. Arlingclose will assist the
Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis.

In addition, the Council may borrow for short periods of time (normally for up to
one month) to cover unexpected cash flow shortages.

Sources of borrowing

The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be:

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

UK local authorities

any institution approved for investments above

any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

UK public and private sector pension funds (except the Clwyd Pension
Fund)

capital market bond investors

e Local Capital Finance Company and other special purpose companies
created to enable joint local authority bond issues.

In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not
borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities:

. operating and finance leases
. hire purchase

. Private Finance Initiative

. sale and leaseback

LGA Bond Agency (Municipal Bond Agency)

The LGA Bond Agency is a Local Capital Finance Company established in 2014
by the Local Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB. It plans
to issue bonds on the capital markets and lend the proceeds to local authorities.

13
Page 141



This will be a more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for three
reasons: borrowing authorities may be required to provide bond investors with
a joint and several guarantee over the very small risk that other local authority
borrowers default on their loans; there will be a lead time of several months
between committing to borrow and knowing the interest rate payable; and up to
5% of the loan proceeds will be withheld from the Authority and used to bolster
the Agency’s capital strength instead. Any decision to borrow from the Agency
will therefore be the subject of a separate report to Cabinet.

LOBOs

The Authority holds £18.95m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option)
loans where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest
rate as set dates, following which the Authority has the option to either accept
the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost. All of these LOBOS
have options during 2015/16, and although the Authority understands that
lenders are unlikely to exercise their options in the current low interest rate
environment, there remains an element of refinancing risk. The Authority will
take the option to repay LOBO loans at no cost if it has the opportunity to do
so.

Short-term and Variable Rate loans

These loans leave the Authority exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate
rises and are therefore subject to the limit on the net exposure to variable
interest rates in the treasury management indicators in section 9.

Debt Rescheduling

The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a
premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current
interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature
redemption terms. The Authority may take advantage of this and replace some
loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is
expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk.

Planned borrowing strateqy for 2015/16

The Corporate Finance Manager will:

e Manage the Council's debt maturity profile, i.e. to leave no one future year
with a high level of repayments that could cause problems in re-borrowing
with the limits stated in this Strategy Statement. Appendix A analyses the
debt portfolio of the Council, as at 31st December, 2014.

e Effect any borrowing that maybe required in 2015/16 at the cheapest cost
commensurate with future risk based on interest rate forecasts.

e Monitor and review the level of variable interest rate loans in order to take

greater advantage of interest rate movements, within the limits stated in this
Strategy.

14
Page 142



e Continue to monitor options for debt-restructuring and debt re-payment.

The Corporate Finance Manager will monitor the interest rate market and adopt
a pragmatic approach to any changing circumstances, reporting any decisions
and actions taken under delegated powers to Cabinet via the Audit Committee.

The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from
the Public Works Loan Board, but it continues to investigate other sources of
finance, such as bond issues and bank loans, that may be available at more
favourable rates.

Loans that present additional risk to the authority, such as lender's option
borrower’s option (LOBO) loans and variable rate loans will be restricted to the
limit on the net exposure to variable interest rates in the treasury management
indicators in section 9.

8.0 Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives
In the absence of any legislative power, the Council’s policy is not to enter into
standalone financial derivatives transactions such as swaps, forwards, futures
and options. Derivatives embedded into loans and investments may be used,
and the risks that they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury
risk management strategy.
9.0 Treasury Management Indicators
The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators. The Council is asked to approve the
following indicators:
Interest rate exposures
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The
upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as an
amount of net principal borrowed will be:
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures £330m £350m £360m
Upper limit on variable interest rate £60m £70m £80m
exposures

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is
fixed for the whole financial year. Instruments that mature during the financial
year are classed as variable rate.

15
Page 143




Maturity structure of borrowing

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The
upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be:

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 10%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 10%
24 months and within five years 0% 30%
Five years and within 10 years 0% 50%
10 years and above 0% 100%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on
the total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be:

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Limit on total principal invested beyond year end

£10m

£10m

£10m

Any long term investments carried forward from previous years will be included

in each years limit.

Borrowing limits

The Council is being asked to approve these Prudential Indicators as part of

the Capital Programme report.
completeness.

However they are repeated here for

2015/16 | 2016/17 2017/18
Operational boundary — borrowing £304.1m | £321.1m | £333.1m
Operational boundary — other long-term liabilities | £10.1m £10.1m £10.1m
Operational boundary — TOTAL £314.2m | £331.2m | £343.2m
Authorised limit — borrowing £324.1m | £341.1m | £353.1m
Authorised limit — other long-term liabilities £20.1m £20.1m £20.1m
Authorised limit — TOTAL £344.2m | £361.2m | £373.2m

10.0 Other Matters

The WG Investment Guidance requires the Council to note the following three
matters each year as part of the investment strategy:

Treasury Management Advisers

The Council’s treasury management adviser, Arlingclose continues to provide
advice and information on the Council’s investment and borrowing activities,
although responsibility for final decision making remains with the Council and
its officers. The services received include:

16
Page 144



e advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports,
e advice on investment decisions,

¢ notification of credit ratings and changes,

e other information on credit quality,

advice on debt management decisions,

accounting advice,

reports on treasury performance,

forecasts of interest rates, and

training courses.

The quality of this service is controlled by Financial Procedure Rules

Investment training

The needs of the Council’s treasury management staff for training in investment
management are assessed as part of the staff appraisal process, and
additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff change.

Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Arlingclose and CIPFA. Relevant staff are also encouraged to study
professional qualifications from CIPFA and other appropriate organisations.

Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need

The Authority may, from time to time, borrow in advance of need, where this is
expected to provide the best long term value for money. Since amounts
borrowed will be invested until spent, the Authority is aware that it will be
exposed to the risk of loss of the borrowed sums, and the risk that investment
and borrowing interest rates may change in the intervening period. These
risks will be managed as part of the Authority’s overall management of its
treasury risks.

The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit of
£344.2 million. The maximum period between borrowing and expenditure is
expected to be two years, although the Authority is not required to link
particular loans with particular items of expenditure.

Other Options Considered

The WG Investment Guidance and the CIPFA Code of Practice do not prescribe
any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to adopt. The
Corporate Finance Manager, believes that the above strategy represents an
appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some
alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are
listed in the following table.

17
Page 145



Alternative

Impact on income and
expenditure

Impact on risk
management

Invest in a narrower range of
counterparties and/or for shorter
periods.

Interest income will be lower

Reduced risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for longer
periods.

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Borrow additional sums at long-
term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise;
this is unlikely to be offset by
higher investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term fixed
rates

Debt interest costs will
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly offset by
rising investment income in
the medium term, but long
term costs will be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing if debt
rescheduling costs weren’t
prohibitive

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be less certain

18
Page 146




APPENDIX A — DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

Debt Maturity Profile

£m 45

10

© N ©
R R SEIRC R RS (RS
S S P

19
Page 147




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (EDUCATION AND YOUTH)

SUBJECT: QUEENSFERRY CAMPUS PROJECT - PAUSE &
REVIEW

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To inform Cabinet of the results of the pause and review for the
Queensferry Campus project and to make recommendations on the
capital business case and next steps.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The pause and review of the Queensferry Campus project was held due
to concern around resilience of the critical data required to support
submission of the capital business case to Welsh Government (WG) for
funding through the 21st Century Schools programme. The Council
made a policy commitment to develop a business case for a 3-16 school
and replacement campus for John Summers. The business case has to
meet a number of tests if it is proceed and the latest data brought into
question the viability of the project.

2.02 Admissions to John Summers High School fell to 50 (less than 2 forms
of entry) (projection was 71) in 2014 with larger year groups (73 for Y11)
leaving the school with compounding budgeting issues, given that
school budgets are to a large extent determined by a multiplier of pupil
numbers. Through the 2015 admissions process the school have 73 first
choice preferences. The governors predicted that they would have an
intake of 94 pupils. In Flintshire, as in any other Council, such a low
intake would be reason enough to review the school’s position, noting
the pattern of parental preferences for school admissions and availability
of alternative places within the area.

2.03 The 2010 and updated 2015 School Modernisation policy both state that
admissions to secondary schools should be at four form entry (120
students per admission year group) or 600 places in total for the 11-16
age range. Such numbers are required for a school to be able to sustain
the curriculum breadth required under the Learning and Skills Measure.

2.04 The basis for the original case for capital investment was that by 2019

there would be three forms of entry and, with the proposed Northern
Gateway development, this would increase the school population to an

Page 149



2.05

2.06

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

eventual four form entry school of around 600 places.

The Welsh Minister raised concern over the projected school numbers in
his correspondence confirming statutory proposals dated 13t August
2014.

National benchmarking data confirms that Flintshire has 2113 unfilled
places within the secondary sector. This remains above the Ministerial
and local target of 10% (source: ADEW Planning of school places
National benchmarking data September 2014). This means that
resources are being diverted from direct support for teaching and
learning to the upkeep of buildings and administration within the County.

CONSIDERATIONS

A series of meetings have been held between officers and the
Governors of Queensferry Primary School and John Summers High
School. A representative group of Governors was also formed to test the
resilience of data and to consider whether other information was
available that may support a capital business case submission.

The Council presented the representative group of Governors the
following data available as Background Document A:

John Summers High — Pupil Projections (September 2014)
John Summers High — Transfer Rates into year 7 (2012 & 2013)
Flintshire Primary schools: LA statistics (September 2013)
Northern Gateway housing yield forecasts

Birth data — Queensferry, Shotton & Sealand 2007-2019
Average Transfer into year 7 2013/12

Birth Trends in SPPA areas using birth data (2005-2012)

The methodology underpinning the information (in Background
Document B) was also shared and considered.

The Representative Group of Governors provided their own projections
(in Background Document C) in response. The Group’s projections are
based largely on an assumption that the school will attract 80% of all
pupils from their nearest primary schools. This would mean that a high
proportion of families would choose places at John Summers High
School in preference to existing choices within the local area.
Additionally, differing assumptions are made over the yield of pupils
gained from the proposed Northern Gateway development (in
Background Document D)

Figures provided by the Group vary significantly from the Council’s. The
Council’'s data on transfer rates is based on actual ‘real time’
movements from primary to secondary over a two year period is as
follows:-

Page 150



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

2013/14 AVERAGE TRANSFER INTO YEAR 7

School Name Percentage % transfer
Queensferry 64%
Sealand 82%

Shotton St Ethelwolds | 55%
Shotton Ty Fynnon 37%

Average 60%

No evidence can be found to support the case of the Group that 80%
transfer rates are achievable given historical data. Up to date birth data
has also been taken into account; this highlights a downward trend in
birth rates both nationally and in Flintshire, a trend which will further
reduce projected numbers.

If the housing development sites within the Northern Gateway were to
be developed to the maximum capacity of 1325 homes (source: outline
planning permission) and, in applying the housing yield formula (0.174
per home for secondary) the total ‘yield’ of secondary school age child
numbers eligible for admission to John Summers would be 231. If this
full cohort of children were assumed to be admitted to John Summers
the school population would still only be in the region of 536 pupils
(2016/17 projected number 305 + 231 max housing yield) when all of
these projections are combined.

Appendix 1 sets out that the Northern Gateway will be developed over a
period of time from 2016/17. The pace of the housing developments will
be constrained by the pace of infrastructure development, the plans of
the site owners/developers, the housing market, current economic
climate and other factors which are unpredictable. The final housing
dwelling numbers are likely to be well within the maximum referred to in
3.08 above, and will be constructed over a number of years. Therefore,
any new cohort of children eligible for admission will be low in number in
the early years ahead. These are maximum numbers which do not take
into account parental preference for alternative school choices.

The representative group of governors felt strongly that the project
should not be judged on data alone. They were keen to ensure that
other factors should be considered including that the school is in a prime
location as the gateway to North Wales and could be at the heart of
regenerating an area of deprivation.

The group identified that the school has key strengths in meeting the
needs of vulnerable learners and a community with high levels of social
deprivation. The school has a high percentage of free schools meals.
Data from mylocalschool.com records this at 31.9% over a 3 year
average in 2014, which is the highest percentage amongst Flintshire’s
secondary schools.

Page 151



3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

4.00

4.01

The inclusive nature of the school is positively acknowledged.
Successful inclusive practice is also evident at other local schools.
Current performance information indicates that other nearby schools are
getting better overall outcomes for learners, including those who are
eligible for free school meals. Data outcomes in the recently published
national school categorisation model were amongst the lowest in Wales.

Finally, the group also requested that a capital business case be
submitted to the Welsh Government for them to make a decision, rather
than the County Council. Cabinet is advised that it would not be
justifiable for the County Council to submit a capital case based on
inaccurate or less than resilient information in the knowledge that it will
fail to meet the 21st Century Schools Programme criteria.

The Welsh Minister approved earlier proposals for the Queensferry
Campus in August 2014. The Minister’'s letter states that approval was
conditional upon a business case approval through the 21st Century
schools programme by 315t March 2015. This means that the statutory
proposals lapse as of that date unless such a case is in place and
approved.

Current and projected pupil numbers at the school mean that it is
imperative to review as a matter of urgency the secondary provision at
John Summers High School. Any new proposals would have to be
administered under the new School Organisation Code (July 2013) and
would be determined by the Welsh Minister.

The Governing Body has expressed the view that they wished to avoid
prolonged period of uncertainty for the school and the community. The
Local Authority would want to continue to work with the Governing Body
and wider community to meet this aim. Appendix 2 sets out a model
timeline for the development and consideration of options and
proposals. This process involving all parts of the school community will
take between 6 and 12 months. Implementation of any proposal would
be phased over the following years in order to safeguard curriculum
continuity for examination year groups.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That on the basis that the data analysis does not support the
continuation through to a Full Business Case for capital funding Cabinet
is recommended to:

(i) not proceed with the Full Business Case;
(ii) open a period of formal consultation with key stakeholders for the

area on how best to secure resilient sustainable high quality education
in the area for future report to Cabinet.

Page 152



5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

9.02

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The current value of the Queenferry Campus project is £18,264,000 in
an overall programme of £64,200,000.

The decoupling of this project from the wider programme will have
implications for financial profiling at local and national level.

Welsh Government officials have indicated that they are willing to work
with the Authority, However, it is incumbent on the Authority to officially
confirm its position to Welsh Government.

The Authority still has an in-principle agreement on the original funding
envelope of £64m for Band A projects. However, any future proposals
would require submission of new business case/s to Welsh Government
for approval.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

School Modernisation is a key strategy in addressing the gap in
achievement in some school communities due to poverty. Options will
need to be informed by provision and outcomes in overcoming the
impact of poverty.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

The environmental impact of educational provision is consistently
improved through school modernisation projects. Environmental impacts
are analysed, reported and considered as part of school organisational
decisions.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

There are no equalities implications arising directly from this report. School
organisation proposals are assessed for their positive impact in relation to
overcoming the impact of poverty and promoting better outcomes for all.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There is no direct personnel impact in respect of a decision on the proposed
capital project.

In terms of any proposed future options for education provision in the area,
personnel implications would be considered as part of the review work.
Reorganisations of schools impacts in various ways on the personnel employed.
Whenever there is an impact on the workforce of school modernisation
proposals, Flintshire County Council policies related to personnel matters
together with the National Teachers Pay and Conditions documents and adhered
to in order to minimise any negative effect. No change takes place without
workforce consultation and engagement.

Page 153



10.00

10.01

10.02

10.03

11.00

11.01

11.02

12.00

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

No further consultation required in respect of the pause and review of
the capital project.

In terms of developing and evaluating future educational models for the
area, work will be undertaken with the secondary headteachers in the
area, John Summers and a representative Group of Governors John
Summers High school.

Formal Consultation will be required with key stakeholders, including
dedicated approaches with children and young people, employees,
governors and parents/ carers, in accordance with the School Standards
and Organisation Act 2013, this will involve Key stakeholders. Progress
and authorisation to proceed will be sought from the County Council's
Cabinet at key stages in the process at Appendix 2.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

A total of 10 meetings with Local Members, Headteachers, Governors,
representative group of governors & the Programme Board where held
between 14" October 2014 and 7t January 2015.

The meetings informed key stakeholders of the rationale for the pause
and review. They involved presentation of data, challenge and debate.
The last meetings concluded with reporting on the recommendations to
be made to the Cabinet on next steps. Correspondence is recorded in
Background Document E.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Northern Gateway Planning Information
Appendix 2 — Statutory Process Flowchart

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

The background documents have been placed into the members library,
as follows:-

Background Document A — Local Authority Data Pack

Background Document B — Representative Governors Group Data Pack
Background Document C — Representative Governing Group Minutes
Background Document D - correspondence received between 14t Oct —
7t Jan 2015

Background Document E— correspondence received post 7t Jan 2015

Page 154



Contact Officer: Damian Hughes
Telephone: 01352 704135
Email: Damian.hughes@Flintshire.gov.uk

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Residential Development Potential and Planning Status of the Northern
Gateway Mixed Use Development Site

Context

The Northern Gateway mixed use site is allocated for development in the adopted
Flintshire Unitary Development Plan. Amongst the mix of uses sought by the UDP,
there is an expectation that “at least” 650 homes will be built as part of the overall

development. The site is also a key part of the Enterprise Zone designated in this

area, whose primary goal is to deliver around 7,000 new jobs for the area.

The site is within two commercial ownerships and notwithstanding the need to
develop the site sustainably as a whole, the two owners (Praxis and Pochin
Goodman) have separately planned for development of their respective parts of the
site. Both have outline planning permission and are now required to submit more
detailed proposals to secure permissions for each phase of the development of their
sites.

The Northern Gateway site also requires significant infrastructure investment in
relation to improvements to the existing Dee flood protection defences, as well as
significant internal road infrastructure to open up the site and connect it to the
existing local and national highway network. Welsh Government are funding both
elements of infrastructure provision with the flood defence works underway at
present, and the road works planned to begin within 12 months, taking up to 5 years
to complete.

Scale of Residential Development proposed/permitted and timeline

Praxis were granted outline planning permission for the northern part of the site in
April 2012. As part of their application they have indicated an intention to build up to
725 homes phased over an 8 year period to begin 12 months after permission is
granted. The subsequent approval of their master plan and development brief by the
Council in November 2013 confirmed this quantum of residential development. Given
that no residential reserved matters applications have yet been submitted or
approved, this phasing plan has yet to commence.

Pochin Goodman were granted outline consent in April 2014 for the southern part of
the site in their ownership. As part of their proposal they stated an intention to deliver
“approximately 600 dwellings at a rate of 50 completions per year over 12 years”.
However in granting that outline consent, due to concerns about the capacity of the
existing access to their site off Welsh Road, Pochin Goodman were limited to a
maximum development of 290 homes as part of the outline permission granted by
the Council, from this access. The permission allows a further 70 dwellings off a
separate access off Farm Road. To achieve the 600 units originally sought they
would have to apply again to justify the additional housing, and also will need to
submit and have approved reserved matters applications to allow residential
development to commence at the rate they specified.

Page 157



Both developments are also dependant on the road infrastructure being commenced,
and ultimately, the maximum quantum of residential development will be constrained
by the implications for infrastructure, physical and environmental factors.

Summary Timelines

1.

Flood Defence Works — on site now, completion mid 2015

2. Road infrastructure — submit planning application within next 6 months;

commence first phase within 6 months of consent given; therefore
commencement February 2016 with a 5 year development programme —
completion spring 2021.

Praxis residential development — No detailed planning permissions as at
February 2015; propose to develop 725 dwellings over 8 year phasing plan.
Assuming commencement of residential mid 2016; completion of all residential as
per phasing plan would be 2024.

. Pochin Goodmans residential development — No detailed planning permission as

at February 2015; proposal to develop 600 dwellings over 12 years is presently
capped to a maximum of 360 (290+70) dwellings. If commenced in 2016, notional
completion of the maximum 600 dwellings sought (if eventually permitted) would
be 2028 based on the developers stated completion rate.

Notes

There are no other significant residential development proposals in this area
contained within the UDP. This plan expires at the end of 2015 and whilst work in
underway on a replacement LDP, this will not be adopted until 2018/19 at the
earliest.

Page 158



Appendix 2

lllustrative flow chart for statutory proposals

Step 1

Approve consultation on changes to a school/s.

4

Step 2

At the start of the consultation period proposers (Local Authority) must
provide consultees with a consultation document and give them at least
42 days in which to respond, with at least 20 of these being school days. If
the LA considers it appropriate, meetings are held with stakeholders
during the consultation period.

\4

Step 3

Consultation comments are collated and summarised by LA. This
summary together with the LA’s own responses to the comments is
published in a consultation report within three months of the end of the
consultation period.

A\ 4

Step 4

LA decides whether to proceed with changes within 6 months of the end
of the consultation period. If decision is to proceed, Step 5 is taken. If a
new option emerges during consultation which the LA wishes to consider,
then Steps 1-3 are repeated.

\4

L/schoolmodernisation/elibrary/statutory proposals and proceEe@iggatJeara chart for statutory proposals

MONTHS

0




Step 5

Statutory notice is published providing a 28 day notice period for
objections. The notice must be published on a school day and with 15
school days (not including the day of publication) in the notice period.

A\ 4

Step 6

If objections are received, LA must publish an objection report providing a
summary of the objections and their responses to them within 28 days of
the end of the objection period.

A\ 4

Step 7b

The LA must send to the Welsh Ministers within 35 days of the end of the
objection period the objections and the objection report. The Welsh
Ministers will normally determine proposals within 16 weeks of the end of
objection period.

4

Step 8

If proposals receive approval or the LA determines to implement them,
they should be implemented in accordance with the date given in the
statutory notice, or any subsequent modified date.

Months

L/schoolmodernisation/elibrary/statutory proposals anJ?ragg/illsﬁaQ/e flow chart for statutory proposals




Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 17™ FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION - 2015/16 POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present proposals for the setting of a prudent Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) for the repayment of debt in 2015/16, as required
under the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (‘the 2008 Regulations’).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Local Authorities are required each year to set aside some of their
revenue resources as provision for the repayment of debt ie. a
provision in respect of capital expenditure funded from borrowing or
credit arrangements.

2.02 Regulation 22 of the 2008 Regulations requires an authority to each
year make an amount of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) which it
considers to be ‘prudent’, but the regulation does not itself define
‘prudent provision’. However, the Welsh Government (WG) has
provided guidance which makes recommendations to authorities on
the interpretation of the term; the guidance was last updated in April
2010.

2.03  Authorities are required to prepare an annual statement of their policy
on making MRP, which mirrors the existing requirements on the
prudential borrowing limit and investment policy.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Meaning of ‘Prudent Provision’

3.01.1 The WG guidance provides for a number of options for making
‘prudent provision’. It explains that provision for the debt which funded
the acquisition of an asset should be made over a period bearing
some relation to that over which the asset continues to provide a
service.

Page 161



3.02

3.02.1

3.02.2

3.02.3

3.02.4

Options for Prudent Provision
Option 1 — Regulatory Method

For capital expenditure funded from borrowing which is supported by
Revenue Support Grant (RSG), authorities may continue to use the
formula specified in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 2003 (the regulations which
preceded the 2008 Regulations), since the RSG is calculated on that
basis, i.e. authorities are able to calculate MRP exactly as if the 2003
Regulations were still in force.

Formula for calculation is to multiply the adjusted Capital Financing
Requirement at the end of the preceding financial year less adjustment
A by 4%.

(Adjustment A is a fixed value determined by changes to statutory
regulations referred to above).

Option 2 — Capital Financing Requirement Method

This is a technically simpler alternative to option 1 and may also be
used in relation to supported borrowing. While still based on the
concept of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which is easily
derived from the balance sheet, it avoids the complexities of the
formula in Regulation 22. However, for most authorities it will probably
result in a higher level of provision (and subsequent impact on service
budgets) than Option 1, as it would for Flintshire County Council.

Formula for calculation is to multiply the adjusted Capital Financing
Requirement at the end of the preceding financial year by 4%.

Option 3 — Asset Life Method

For capital expenditure funded from debt under the Prudential system
for which no Government support is being given and is therefore self-
financed, there are two options. Option 3 is to make provision in equal
instalments over the estimated life of the asset for which debt is
undertaken. This is a possibly simpler alternative to the use of
depreciation accounting (Option 4), though it has some similarities to
that approach.

Option 4 — Depreciation Method
Alternatively, for debt under the Prudential system for which no WG
support is being given, Option 4 may be used. This means making

MRP in accordance with the standard rules for depreciation
accounting.

Page 162



3.03

3.03.1

3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

3.05

3.05.1

3.05.2

3.05.3

Conditions for using the options

The intention is that Options 1 and 2 should be used only for WG
supported borrowing. Options 3 and 4 should be used in relation to all
capital expenditure which is to be financed by unsupported borrowing
or credit arrangements.

Practical Considerations

The useful life of an asset will vary depending on the class of asset
concerned; a vehicle or ICT equipment may be financed over 5 years
whereas a new school over 50 years. Judgements about the useful
life will need to be made on an individual basis as expenditure is
incurred.

Large capital projects may take a number of years to complete, for
example the 21st Century Schools building programme. In this
instance the MRP is incurred in the year after the asset has become
operational, rather than during the construction phase.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — Introduction of Self Financing

Currently the MRP for the repayment of debt within the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) is governed by the ‘Item 8 Determination’ set
by Welsh Ministers. It is calculated by multiplying the adjusted HRA
Capital Financing Requirement at the end of the preceding financial
year by 2%.

As a result of the planned voluntary exit from the HRA negative
subsidy system in Wales on 31st March 2015, and the introduction of
self financing, the Item 8 Determination governing the HRA’s MRP has
changed.

From 1st April 2015 the calculation of the HRA MRP will be similar to
the Council Fund as set out in section 3.02 with the following
modifications:

e Options 1 and 2 - the percentage applied is 4% for the Council
Fund and 2% for the HRA.

e Options 1 and 2 can be used in relation to capital expenditure

incurred before 13t April 2021. After 15t April 2021 only options
3 and 4 maybe used.

Page 163



4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members approve and recommend to the County Council on 17
February 2015 for Council Fund:-

Option 1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of the
MRP in 2015/16 for all capital expenditure funded from
supported borrowing; this represents a continuation of the
approved and adopted policy for 2014/15.

Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the
MRP in 2015/16 for all capital expenditure funded from
unsupported (prudential) borrowing; this represents a
continuation of the approved and adopted policy for 2014/15.

That members approve and recommend to the County Council on 17
February 2015 for the HRA:-

Option 2 (Capital Financing Requirement Method) be used for
the calculation of the HRA’s MRP in 2015/16 for all HRA capital
expenditure funded by debt. This represents a continuation of
how the calculation has been carried out in 2014/15, all though
the governing regulations have changed for 2015/16.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2015/16 revenue budgets provide for the MRP as follows:

Council Fund capital expenditure funded by supported
borrowing, on the basis of Option 1 - Regulatory Method
calculation.

Council Fund capital expenditure funded by unsupported
(prudential) borrowing, on the basis of Option 3 — Asset Life
Method calculation.

HRA capital expenditure funded by borrowing, on the basis of
Option 2 — Capital Financing Requirement Method calculation.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 164



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers: Various Welsh Government papers
Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accountancy
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



1.00

1.01

1.02

2.00

2.01

Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: §R)EVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2014/15 (MONTH

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide Members with the latest revenue budget monitoring information for
2014/15 for the Council Fund and Housing Revenue Account based on actual
income and expenditure as at month 8 and projected forward to year-end based on
the most up to date information available.

INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2 Executive Summary

Section 3 Council Fund Latest In Year Forecast

Section 4 Inflation

Section 5 Monitoring Budget Assumptions & Risks

Section 6 Unearmarked Reserves

Section 7 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Appendix 1 | Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 7
Appendix 2 | Council Fund Variance Summary

Appendix 3 | Efficiencies Summary

Appendix 4 | Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves
Appendix 5 | HRA Variance Summary

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 8 is as follows:
Council Fund

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £1.014m lower than budget.
e Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2015 of £3.955m

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.324m less than budget.
e Projected closing balance as at 31 March 2015 of £1.490m

Page 167



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

COUNCIL FUND LATEST FORECAST

The table below shows the projected position by portfolio which reflects the
Council’s new Operating Model which came into effect on 1 June 2014.

As previously reported, following the implementation of the Single Status agreement
in June 2014, extensive work has been undertaken to rebase all workforce budgets
to reflect the actual new costs arising from the new pay and grading structure. This
work is now substantially complete and revised workforce budgets have now been
allocated to portfolio areas to meet the costs of their workforce establishment (base
pay, allowances and vacancies). The outcome of this work is now reflected in the
figures below, though there are some outstanding queries which may result in minor
adjustments in future periods.

The table below shows projected in year expenditure to be £1.014m less than
budget.

In-Year Over/
(Under) spend
TOTAL EXPENDITURE | Original | Revised | Projected
AND INCOME Budget | Budget | Outturn Month | Month
7 8
£m £m £m £m £m
Social Services 59.889 | 58.946 59.142 | 0.090 0.196
Community & Enterprise 14.368 | 13.271 12.366 | (0.521) | (0.905)
Streetscene &
Transportation 28.381 29.753 29.988 | 0.311 0.235
Planning & Environment 6.394 5.346 5.215| (0.121) | (0.131)
Education & Youth 97.167 | 96.154 96.207 | (0.045) | 0.053
People & Resources 5.395 4.836 4.870 | 0.038 0.034
Governance 8.821 8.366 8.549 | 0.297 0.183
Organisational Change 9.738 9.827 10.074 | 0.076 0.247
Chief Executive 2.160 3.227 3.152 | (0.078) | (0.075)
Central & Corporate
Finance 22.863 | 25.450 24.599 | (0.868) | (0.851)
Total 255.176 | 255.176 | 254.162 | (0.821) | (1.014)

The reasons for all movements from Month 7 are summarised in appendix 1 with
the projected variances occurring for the year to date summarised within appendix
2.

Significant Budget Movement Between month 6 to month 7

Changes in revised budget over month 7 relate to adjustments relating to the single

Page 168



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

status rebasing exercise. Although this work is substantially complete there are still
some outstanding queries which will require subsequent adjustments to portfolio
budgets.

Programme of Efficiencies
Corporate and Functional Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget contains £8.8m of specific efficiencies comprising Corporate
Value for Money (VFM) on Procurement and Back to Basics of £1.3m and specific
Functional VFM efficiencies of £7.5m.

The table below summarises the latest position for the achievement of these
specific efficiency programmes and now includes a projected under achievement of
the VFM efficiency relating to the Review of Administrative Support.

The analysis shows that it is currently projected that £7.574m (86%) will be
achieved resulting in a net underachievement of £1.266m. Details for the current
year efficiencies currently projected to not be achieved in full are shown in appendix
3.

Value of | Value of
Status of Efficiency Budgeted | Projected | (Under) Over

Efficiency | Efficiency | Achievement

£m £m £m

Already Achieved 1.643 1.643 0.000
Expected to be Achieved in Full 4.829 4.829 0.000
Achievable in Part 1.318 1.102 (0.216)
Not Achievable 1.050 0.000 (1.050)
Total 8.840 7.574 (1.266)

Workforce Efficiencies

The 2014/15 budget also contains £3.1m of Workforce Efficiencies and following
the conclusion of the work in relation to the second phase of the voluntary
redundancy programme and the organisational work on vacancies there is still an in
— year amount to find of £0.520m. The month 7 report advised that the effect of this
and the corporate admin review was £1.623m which was offset by reduced
investment costs of £1.002m and the financial impact is included in the projected
outturn within central and corporate.

Page 169



4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

INFLATION

Included within the 2014/15 budget are provisions for pay (£1.316m), targeted price
inflation (£0.590m), non-standard inflation (£0.670m) and income (£0.151m).

The amounts for non-standard inflation (NSI) (Fuel, Energy and Food) are held
centrally and allocated out to portfolio areas only where a funding need is
evidenced. All allocations of NSI have now been made to departments where there
has been an evidenced need and this has resulted in an underspend of £0.054m on
the amount required for fuel, and an underspend of £0.015m on the amount
required for food.

MONITORING BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS AND RISKS

Existing risks

Out of County Placements — the risk is the volatility in demand and the
impacts on service costs which cannot be predicted. Service fluctuations are
being accommodated within the combined budgets of the Social Services
and Education Chief Officer portfolios in-year. Status: stable/amber risk

Former Euticals Site — the risks are the significant cost options for the
decommissioning, decontamination and clearance of the former chemical
site in Sandycroft and the cost burden for the Council (noting that
negotiations with Welsh Government are ongoing). Monthly costs for ongoing
security and maintenance of the site are in the region of £0.030m and are
accumulating within the financial year. Status: unstable/red risk

Schools ICT Infrastructure — the risk is the loss of schools income from
buying into the service due to a planned change to delivery of ICT in schools.
The new service model is at an advanced stage of planning with the full
involvement of schools and is to be adopted shortly with a good degree of
confidence. Status: stable/amber risk

Winter Maintenance — the risk is the additional cost of managing the
highways network should we experience a severe winter. At a mid point in
the season the winter can be classed as an average one which should mean
that the budget provision is sufficient, noting that a ring-fenced reserve is
held to draw upon should the situation deteriorate. Status: stable/amber risk

Single Status — the risk is the possible unintended impacts on workforce
establishment budgets as a consequence of the re-basing of the total
corporate budget for employees following the introduction of Single Status.
This complex rebasing exercise is nearing completion with no adverse
impacts at this stage, however, the exercise is not yet complete. Status:
stable/amber risk.

Workforce Efficiencies — the risk is the under achievements of workforce
financial efficiency targets. As reported to Cabinet in January the exercise to

Page 170



5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

review and readjust the targets, and build in the implications into the 2014/15
budget and the 2015/16 draft budget has been completed. The risk remains
open as the 2015/16 budget is only in draft form at this stage. Status:
stable/green risk

Council Tax — the risk is the volatility of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme
and collection rates as it is customer demand and compliance led. A budget
under-spend reported under Community Enterprise in appendix 2 and is
based on current usage patterns. These patterns could change and impact
negatively on the in-year and 2015/16 budgets. Status: stable/amber risk

Changes to previously reported risks (closed)

Design Fee Income — the risk is the potential loss of income included within
the Design Consultancy business plan income projections. The actual impact
of this risk is now being reported within appendix 1 of this report under the
Organisational Change portfolio and has been mitigated.

Deprivation of Liberty Assessments (DolLs) — the risk is the additional
responsibilities upon Local Authorities and the costs in meeting them. The
estimated cost associated with this risk was £0.270m as reported in month 2.
This has been included in the 2015/16 budget as a pressure and the risk has
been mitigated.

Professional Support (Leaving Care) — the risk is an increase in demand for
services as an ongoing impact of the Southwark case. An estimated cost of
£0.120m was reported in month 2 and actual expenditure in the month 7
report. The costs have been met within existing resources and the risk has
been mitigated.

Single Persons Discount (SPD) Review — the risk is the outcome of a review
which took place during October where it was predicted the number of SPD
claims would be reduced. A reduction of 4% in single persons discount
claims was predicted to be achieved as a result of the review — generating a
£0.200m efficiency. The review has now been completed and an actual
reduction of £0.270m is being reported under the Community Enterprise
portfolio in appendix 2 of this report. The risk has been mitigated.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15 July 2014 showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2014 (above the base level of £5.834m) of
£5.328m.

This position reflected a contribution of £0.745m made from reserves as part of an
accounting adjustment for termination benefits arising from the workforce
efficiencies for the Senior Management Phase 1 programme. As budget provision
was made within the 2014/15 budget for this, this has now been transferred back
into reserves in the current financial year.

Page 171



6.03

6.04

6.05

6.06

7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

Section 6.05 of the 2014/15 budget report outlined the investment strategy required
to fund one off costs and transitional funding for efficiencies that could not be found
in full in 2014/15. This identified a potential £3.7m available to fund these from the
contingency reserve as well as utilising the Single Status/Equal Pay Reserve.

Currently it is estimated that £2.5m will be required from the Contingency Reserve
to fund the one off costs in 2014/15.

The Month 2 Monitoring report to Cabinet on 15" July also advised members of an
allocation of £0.696 from the contingency reserve to fund investment costs
approved under delegated powers.

Taking into account all of the above and the current projected outturn at month 8,

the projected balance on the contingency reserve at 31 March 2015 is £3.955m.
This is summarised in Appendix 4.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 18t February 2014 the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
budget for 2014/15 of £29.886m. The budget provided for a closing balance of
£0.956m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of
ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2013/14 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 15 July 2014 showed a closing
balance at the end of 2013/14 of £1.662m.

The position at Month 8 is reporting an overall projected underspend of £0.324m
and a projected closing balance at month 8 of £1.490m, which at 4.96% of total
expenditure satisfies the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

Appendix 5 details the reasons for significant variances.

RECOMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to :-

a) Note the overall report.
b) Note the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 31st March 2015
(paragraph 6.06)

Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue Account
(paragraph 7.03)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 — 7.00 of the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Page 172



10.01 The financial implications are set out in Sections 3.00 — 7.00 of the report.

11.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

11.01 None

12.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

12.01 None

13.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

13.01 None

14.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

14.01 None

15.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

15.01 None

16.00 APPENDICES

16.01 Council Fund — Movement in Variances from Month 4 — Appendix 1
Council Fund — Budget variances — Appendix 2
Council Fund — Efficiencies not fully achieved — Appendix 3
Council Fund — Movements on unearmarked reserves — Appendix 4
Housing Revenue Account Variances — Appendix 5

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 173



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2014/15
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Budget Monitoring (Month 8)
Summary of Movement from Month 7

Sir y Fflint
"'F}im&bjre

Page 175

£m £m

Month 7
Portfolios 0.047
Central and Corporate Finance (0.868)
Variance as per Cabinet Report {0.821)
Month 8
Portfolios (0.163)
Central and Corporate Finance (0.851)
Variance as per Directorate Returns (1.014)
Change Requiring Explanation (0.193)
Social Services

Services For Adults

Disability Services (Resources & Regulated Services) -Increase in projected Joint Funding contribution (0.135)

from Local Health Board (-£0.050m). One service user is ceasing to be charged to this service (-

£0.059m). Increase in Local Health Board income (-£0.029m) and income from returned Direct

Payment funds (-£0.007m). Plus net impact of movements in other minor variances of +£0.010m.

Intake and Reablement (First Contact) - Correction to reflect workforce costs funded by grant. 0.089

Intake and Reablement (Resources & Regulated Services) - Movement of -£0.287m pay costs (0.273)

following Single Status budget realignment adjusted in error at Month 7, offset by movement within

supplies and services of £0.036m due to utilities and catering charges. Plus net impact of movements

in other minor variances of -£0.012m.

Mental Health (Residential and Domiciliary Service) - +0.098m impact of 1 new high cost placement, 0.157

plus net impact of movements in other minor variances of +£0.059m.

Disability Services (Disability Services) - Increase in projected expenditure through two new clients 0.215

being charged to service.

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults 0.019

Subtotal: Services For Adults 0.072

Development & Resources

Charging Policy Income - Income charging policy cap increased from £50 to £55 per week. (0.053)

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m 0.014

Subtotal: Development & Resources (0.039)

Services For Children

Professional Support - Movement due to +£0.015 commitment to Agency costs (Field work). Plus net

impact of movements in other minor variances of +£0.025m. 0.040

Family Placement - Cost reductions in relation to Foster Care placements. (0.073)

Out of County Placements - Projected overspend based on current 2014/15 packages and clients for

which there is an adverse impact of £0.106m due to new clients 0.106

Subtotal: Services For Children 0.073

Total: Social Services 0.106



Appendix 1

Community & Enterprise

Customer & Housing Services
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m 0.006

Subtotal: Customer & Housing Services 0.006

Supporting Services
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m 0.004

Subtotal: Supporting Services 0.004

Regeneration
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m (0.018)

Subtotal: Regeneration (0.018)

Revenues & Benefits

e Underspend on Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) (0.022)
e Surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund - this surplus has increased by £0.270m due to the completion
of the Single Person Discount Review. The balance of the increase in the surplus of £0.087m is due to (0.357)
additional Council Tax collection.
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m 0.001
Subtotal: Revenues & Benefits (0.378)

Customer Services

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m 0.002
Subtotal: Customer Services 0.002
Totai: Community & Enterprise (0.384)

Page 176



Streetscene & Transportation Portfolio

Streetscene
e Highways Maintenance & Street Lighting - commitment challenge
e Waste Disposal/Collection - anticipated reduction in agency staff to year end
e Fleet Operations & Logistics - transfer in of fuel allocation requirements
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Subtotal: Streetscene

Highways Strategy & Traffic Services
e Use of Portfolio Balance in Streetworks to assist with income shortfall

e QOther minor changes of less than £0.025m
Subtotal: Highways Strategy & Traffic Services

School Transport
e Other minor changes of less than £0.0256m

Subtotal: School Transport

Total: Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment Portfolio

Planning
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Subtotal: Planning

Public Protection
e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m
Subtotal: Public Protection

Highways/Energy
* Energy Services - reduction on Repair & Maintenance commitments/Equipment Rental

e Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Subtotal: Energy Services and Highways/Public Rights of Way

Total: Planning & Environment

Page 177

Appendix 1

(0.009)
(0.025)
(0.032)
(0.002)
(0.068)
(0.020)
(0.001)
(0.021)
0.013
0.013
(0.076)
(0.002)
(0.002)
0.007
0.007
(0.013)
(0.002)
(0.015)
(0.010)



Education & Youth

Secondary, 14-19 & Continuing Education
Secondary Schools - Minor variances
Subtotal: Secondary, 14-19 & Continuing Education

Inclusion Services

Inclusion & Behaviour Support - minor variances
Out of County - 3 new placements

Subtotal: inclusion Services

Access {School Planning & Provision)
School Planning - minor variances
School Provision - minor variances

Subtotal: Access (School Planning & Provision)

Youth Services (minor variances of less than £0.025m)

Adult & Community Education - Minor Variances
Youth Justice Service - Minor Variances

Subtotal: Youth Services

Commissioning & Performance
Management
Business Support - Minor variances

Subtotal: Commissioning & Performance
School Management & Information

Regional Capita One
Subtotal: School Management & Information

Total: Education & Youth

People & Resources

HR & OD
Minor changes of less
Subtotal: HR & OD

Corporate Finance
Minor changes of less

Subtotal: Corporate Finance

Total: People & Resources

Page 178

Appendix 1

0.009
0.009
(0.005)
0.116
0.111
0.035
(0.024)
0.011
0.007
0.002
0.009
(0.007)
(0.019)
(0.026)
(0.016)
(0.016)
0.098
(0.003)
{0.003)
(0.001)
(0.001)
{0.004)



Appendix 1

Governance

Procurement
Software costs have been incorrectly showing as a budget pressure. Funding had been earmarked for

° the software costs in 2014/15 which is now being reflected. (0.060)
Subtotal: Procurement (0.060)
Support Services

® Projected postage costs have reduced. (0.032)
Subtotal: Support Services (0.032)
Minor variances of less than £0.025m

e Legal Services (0.005)

e Democratic Services (0.021)

o Internal Audit (0.001)

e Information Communication Technology 0.005
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m (0.022)
Total: Governance (0.114)

Organisational Change

Minor variances of less than £0.025m

e Public Libraries & Arts, Culture & Events 0.019

® Museums Service (0.003)

e County Archives (0.002)

e Valuations & Estates (0.004)

e Engineering Services 0.002

e Facilities (0.024)
Total minor variances of less than £0.025m {0.012)
Property Design & Consultancy
The projected outturn for Property Design & Consultancy now includes the loss of income (£0.400m)

¢ relating to John Summers High School this has been partially offset by additional income and reduced 0.183
costs (£0.217m). This has previously been flagged as a risk
Subtotal: Property Design & Consuitancy 0.183
Total: Organisational Change 0.171

Page 179



Chief Executive

e Whilst net movement showing is only minor a decrease in the underspend occurred for £0.042m due to
vacancy costs transferring to workforce efficiencies, this is counterbalanced by an increased
underspend on the Policy Unit by £0.038m. An increase in the underspend of £0.001m is due to minor

variances.

Total: Chief Executive

Central & Corporate Finance

e Pension Fund Contributions - estimated additional requirement for 2014/15

® Strike Deductions - to Housing Revenue Account
® Non Domestic Rate Revaluations and Review of Balance Sheet codes - windfall income

Total: Central & Corporate Finance

Total Changes

Page 180

Appendix 1

0.003
0.003
0.105
0.009
(0.097)
0.017
(0.193)



"901AI9s 0} pabieys

(seoinag Anjigesiq)

‘MOIADJ Japun doay] Buiaqg sjuaifo mau om} ybnouy) ainypuadxa pajoalosd ul aseadou| (G500 0220 0012 0£8°'L saoineg Aligesiq
‘Wy60°03
Jo puadsiano payoafoid |10} Y} JO WGQQ'0F 404 SIUNODIJ. SiY | (seo1nu9g ANjigesiq)
‘sjuawded Joa.ip jo 10adsal ul sjaiapuad Aq papiaold sjuawsabuele saoineg AJljigesia
"MaIAaI Japun dady) Hoddns ay} jo 1502 ay} 0} anp Ajulew s| puadsiaao pajoaloud ay| (1600 60°0 5190 1250 pue uoysuei}
‘sabieyd Buuaies uo Ajuiew - (WE90°03)
sa0ineg B saiddng pue s)s0o sajyn Auiew - (wggp'03) s1s0d
sasiwald uo spuadsiano Aq }as)jo ale spuadsiapun asay] "S}S0D
Ked uo w0 03F- Jo puadsiapun pajosfoid e osje si a19y) "W 20'03F Jo (Juswis|geay
pun4 aie) ajeIpaluialu| ay} WoJj awodul Jueib JJo-auo mau ‘wey L 03 Q ayelu|)
10 suonnquuoDd Juald paseasdul Bulaq ‘wggez 03 4o awodu| [euolippe $901M9G palejnbay
‘M3IABI Japun doay] 0} ANp SI YoIym ‘w/z1'03 Jo puadsiapun 1au aie) [BluapIsay|6l0'0 (g0z'0) 06v'S €69°'G Y S92IN0SAY
‘WEEN 0F- 18U € [B]0) SSoUBLIBA JOUIW
LByl ‘Buisinu a1y Buipn(out 186pnQg aA0qe aWOodUl Ul SSSBaIoU; JaYuUny
snid Jasyo awoou| pajeja Aadoid Jo [9AS] By} Ul 9seasdul WEZE 03
- B S3pN[OUI YoIym ‘2D [BIlUSpPISAI UO WEGS 0F- o puads Japun
pajoaloid e Aq josyjo Buiaq s| puadsiano pajoalosd yuesyubis ay )
‘Bljuawap yum ajdoad jo siaquinu Buiseaiou; pue pssu
10 Auxajdwoo pasesaioul ‘ajijoid oneioowsap Buibueyd ay} ‘yuswa|qess (senieso) swea}
1sed |nyssaoons Buimo)|of 821A18S 3y} 0} Bujuinlal syusid Buipn|ous AjesoT - synpy
‘M3IAD) JBpun daay] aJen Aeyiwog uiyim wg L6 03 Jo puadsiono pajoaloid e s| aiayl jgze 0 vZe0 LIS VL 18L1L 10} S92INIBG [BI100S
S9OIAIBG |B]00S
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
puoiy
pasinbay uonoy asuesep Jofep jo asnen jseq] aosuepep uinpno | jebpng CLITNETS
souepep payosfoid| pesiaey

¢ Xiptaddy

ALJVNANS - 8 HLNOW

SE0UBLEA puny [;oUNcy
BULONUO 19bpng

Page 181



“uawubijeas Jo6pnq snielg
"M3IASS pUE Jojuow o} anuuod |sjbuls 1sod Bumoljos oljojod o} pelesoje sbuiaes 16png Buiyels|(26zZ0) (1zc0) 000°0 120 jonuon Aouesep
‘WZ00"03- 12U € 0} JUNOWE SIJUEBLIEA JOUIW JBYlo snolieA “(iys)
"M3IABI PUB JOJUOW 0} SNUIUOY [WOdU| DHD 40} JUSWHWWOD paseasou] Ag pasuanjjul puads Japun|(950°0) (950°0) 19620 2680 yjleaH pooo
yoam Jjad G633 0) yeam Jad 0G3F woly des abieyd wnwixew awoou|
“MOIAS] PUE JOJIUCLL O} SNUNUOD[BY} JO [BAD| BY} Ul JusWUIDA0S) YslopA Aq aseasoul ue jo 1oedw||(GEZ 0) (sez0) [(gog'L) [€i5°1L) - S90INIBG ssauisng
(e1e60.1668€)
"Juaiinoal Sa0UBlEBA S)NpY
aq 0} paoadxa 10U INg M3IABI 0} SnuRUOD "Sa0uUBLeA Joulw snoleA [(SZ1'0) (2000) I|89¢€°S G/E°G 10} S90IMDS JAYI0
. (CLITVELS
sunod Jo uosud woyy Mo:oc oSNSIJy BOUBISANS
Ao ot et 5 geor o)
1 8NP AUNEION [BRUSY ol 1op A ‘G1/71.0Z 0} sebexoed aieo juaLno spapayl(seL0)  [(sero)  [6z10  pie0 jo6png disuaioy
(CRILVEIS
asnsi|\ 2ouBISqNS
"W/00°03+ Jau B 0} junowe SadUBUBA 2 YljeaH [euapy)
Jouiw Jaylo snouep ‘Wzl 03 buijelo) abexoed mau jeuolyppe ao1nes Aueljpiwoq
*MaIABI Jopun doay apis Buoje sabexoed Aeioiwo(g pue [ejuapisay ul sabueyo [(8zo'o) (6210 £€6°0 +08°0 pue |eiuapisoy
(seoineg Ayjgesiq)
‘MaIAa] Jopun daa) ‘G 1/¥L0Z 10} sabexoed aied juanind sjosay (151 0) (151°0) 96€°0 105°0 1ebpng oisusio
‘w9003
- 19U € |2)0} SeoUBLIBA JOUIW JBY)0) W/ 00 03F- sebesoed juawAed joainQ
WI0Jy SpUNy pauin}as pue Wz 03- pJeoq yieay [eso| wolj swodul
paseauou| woiy pajyauaq poddng Asejoiwoq {1Sad “Woso'03- pieog
yljeaH |eo07 wodj uoinguiuod Buipun4 yuior pajoalosd ul aseasou)
"WEGO 03~ Jo ainypuadxa ul uoonpail ‘ioag juspuadapu|
aieD paseyoind buia Alunwwod o) pabieyd aq o} pasead ualn
‘ajep o) ainypuadxa (seo1nuag Aljgesiq)
10 MaIAS] [2o1}112 BumOo||0) SJUSLIHWILLOD Ul UoIIdNpal 0} anp saoinag paje|nbay
"MaIAB] Japun deay)| wgl | 03- Jo puads Japun J0joag Juapuadapu) - Buia] papoddns gl|(68L0)  [(bZE0)  [8LLSL  [2r09L ' S90iN0SaY
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
wuon wnpnQ | 1ebpng
paiinbay uopoy asueuep Jolepy Jo asne) ise asueuep adjAleg
souepEA pajosfoid| pasirney

Z Xipuaddy

AJdVNANS - 8 HINOW

S@OUBLEA punj [1oUN0)
BULIOHUO 196png

Page 182



060°0 9610 ZrL'6S  |9¥6°8S SJIAIBS |e190S [ej0L
(e1ebaibbe)
UETI LY S9OUBLBA UBIP|IYD
aq 0} pajoadxa Jou Jng MaIARI 0} aNUNUCD *S9OUBLIBA JOUIW SNOLBA|EZ0°0 5200 £¥SL 8161 10} S82IMDS JAYI0
*S1S00 (soo1n19g s,uaip|iyn)
"MB3IARI Japun daay) palejas Juawabpn( yemyinog 0} anp asealoul wgsQ 03 puadsian0|850°0 9500 8510 2010 Hoddng g uonuanaid
(s@o10u9g s,UBIPIYD)
‘sabesjoed aieo - sjuawsaoe|d
‘maInal Japun daay|| G1/710Z xa|dwod Jo Jaquinu paseasdul uo paseq puadsiano wzez 0319510 2920 069°¢ L TA AN Auno) Jo 1IN0

‘wggoQ 0F 1ou B 0} JUNOWE SSJUBLIBA JOUILL JOYJ0 SNOLBA

"sajouabunuoo [eisuab Jsuiebe Buiaes e Aq 1as)jo ale sainssaid
asayl (SaID) seoag Ajjigesiq pajeibajul s,uaipiiyd Joy weeL 03 o (seowuag suaip|iyd)
‘mainal Japun deay| sjuswAed joalip paseasoul 0} Ajurew anp si puadsiono pajaloid siyl |$91 0 020 89¢€°S ¥91°G Hoddng |euoissajoid

‘SJaJed ay}

‘s910UaIDIYe d|qissad| 10} souemolje Bulobuo ue Joeaye A|geLeAul Ydiym Siapio diysueplenc)

pue Bujuueld aininy Wioul ||IM puB PaIBPISUCD |e1oadg pue aouapISay Jo} SJaPIO UNOI Jo Jjagquinu Buiseaoul ay}
Bulag si yoiym Jo awoono ay} uayeuapun 0] anp Os[e S| SIY} JO Led 321AI9s 3y} ulyim sjuawase|d aseo is)soy (seo1nuag s uaipiiyo)
U9ag sey Wea| Juswade|d Ajlwe ay) Jo malnal i 1O JagWINU By} Ui 9SB8.0U| UB JO }NSai B S| puadsiano wooz 03 94l.|€22°0 00Z'0 lzve leze Juswaoe|d Allwe4
(e1e60.1668)
"JUS1indai SOOUBLIEA S82IN0SaY
3q 0} pajoadxa Jou JNg M3IA3I 0} BNUHRUOD ‘SOUBLIEBA JOUIW SNOUBA [£20°0 $¥90°0 869°L v€9°L 9 yuswdojaaa( 42Yl0

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Yuon
pasnbay uopoy asueuep Jofep jo asnen jseq JJuBUBA uinyno | jebpng LIV EETS
souepEA pajoafoid| pasinay

¢ XIpUaday

AJVNANS - 8 HINOW

S8DUBLEA pun} |IPUNCY

BUNGHUGH 1o6png

Page 183



ssudisjug

(1zgo) [(soe'0) |99tz  [LizEl 3 Ayunwwo) [ejoL
(W0 03) SoduBLEA JOUIW JBYJ0 0) ANP SAINSSAid "dWOodU|
"MBIABI pUB JOJIUOW 0} BNURUOYD abieyoas uone|suel] YsiapA paonpal 0} anp ainssaid wg Lo 03|61L0°0 1200 9190 S6S°0 S92IAJaS JAWOISND
‘SgouUBLIBA Joulw 0} anp Aouade (wz L0 03) Jeak ayy ul
iaje| abueyd 0) J9algns ag ued pue de|oA S| BaIE SIY} Uo puadsiapun
ay] "uonisod Jualnd uo paseq awaydg uoljonNpay el (1ounod
ay} Joj uoisiaoid pajabpng ayy uo (wg9z 03) puadsiapun pajoafoid
‘(ma1Aay JUNoIsiq uosiad 3|Bulg ay) Jo uoys|dwod ay) 0} anp Jd i
W/ Gg 03 woij paseaoul sey snidins siy}) wiy19°03F Jo pun4 Uoiloalod
*MBIABJ PUB JOJIUOW 0} anuljuod Xe| [1ouno) ay) uo snjdins pajedioiue ue o} anp puadsiapun|(805 0) (988°0) 29001 8v6°0l sjijauag @ SONUIATY
‘W00 0F JO SEOUBLIBA JOUIW JBYIO "PIO Ul SHi0M
11BN US[OM AQ paleqadexa ‘awodul JO SSO| pue S)S0d [BAOWA)
*"MOIADJ pUB JO}JuoW 0} ANUUOD 81SEM Paseaioul 0} anp SI9Y}JEW Ul WSZO 03 40 [[BlHoys pajewns|#€0°0 9100 0820 920 uonesauabay
"S3OUBLIBA JOUILL JBY]0 0} anp
puadsiano (W0 03) "1oBIU0D pamaual Jasw 0} }a6pnq jualdiynsul
0} anp 1oBijuoy douBUBIURIN By} uo (WG L0 03) puadsiano pajoaloid
*M3IAS] PUB Jojluow 0} 3NURU0D 'S1s00 obeo|iw 1suiebe (wg Lo 03) puadsiano pajosloid (800 00 8910 9Zv'0 a|doa Buiuoddng
‘saoueueA
Jouiw Jayjo o} anp puadsisno (WGQO'03F) BWOoouUl pund uolusAald
ssojowoH pue suoposfoid uonepowwoose ggg JO  UolEeneAd
-a1 B Buipnjoul uolepowwWosdy ssafswoH uo (WgzL'03) puadsiapun
pajewnsy "wHH 9yl woly pund |uno) ayl o} abieyoas poddns Sa0INBS
*MBIAS] PUE JOJIUOW 0} BNUAUOY [JO [9A8| Jamo| B 0) anp inddo 0} pajoaloid st (wgzp 03) puadsiano uy|(y0L°0) (860°0) or6°0 8c0°L BuisnoH B Jawojsn)
aspdisjug
9 Aunwwon
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
{uo
pasmnbay uonoy asuepep lofep jo asne) iseq asuelep uinyno | jebpng CLITVETS
souBLEA pejosfoi ] pasiney

Z Xipuaddy

AYVYINNNS - 8 HINOW

S@0UBNEA punj JIounon
BUONUOH 19Bpng

Page 184



uopepodsues ]

Leo GET0 886'6C |€G.'6C '3 suadsjesns jejoL

‘sgoueleA ayebijw S9OUBLIBA

0] Jdwa)e 0} SJUBWHWILIOD ||B M3IA3J 0} 8NURUOY) ‘SaouUBMBA JOUIN|E60°0 8500 lvZ 6l 68161 12Y)0 jo ajebaibby
Jeak [eioueuly Aq palebiiw Jayuny aq Ajjnjadoy |im *S9INSO[0
aoueleA 0s uonoalip aAlNsod e ul Buiaow osje si|  peol B (saluedwod Aujin Aq Jiedal jo spiepue)s Buinosdwi uo paseq)

aWooU| "g pPoLdd Je asuejeg O1j0fU0d Y023 10 asn saoljou Ajjeuad paxid 1o} awodul Jo s[9Ad| pajedidue uey) Jamo|2e00 1000 1200 ¥10°0 sylomieans
*S[oAd] 10elluoD Buisealdap uo paseq paonpal

91/510¢ 40} s|esodoid Buiuue|d ssauisng Jo ped Juawwwod ainyipuadx3g ‘siojesadQ sng o) sjuswied Apisqns sng|(9+0°0) (ev0°0) AR L€ L uoljepodsuel }
*aininy ay) oju 109 Huiobuo aebijiw odeaQ

0} 91/5102 u! paubljeal aq 0) sjebpng Jodag Iwey||y 8 UoISIA0d AjUndag / WIB|Y JO 1503 Aunsag IMQ Jybiuy|¥E0°0 0v0°0 1S6°L L6l ABejesg @ ssauisng
-‘Buisealou; auuo) Jad 1S02 3y} 0} 8NP W 2003 JO |esodsip a1sepn
po04 J0 1SOD pasealou| "Jojoejucd ajeAud e yum Buimaual way) 0}
anp wggzo 03 Jo BuisnoH wouy swoou| a)SeA\ Spel] JO SSOT "W/ZL 03

‘pPajily @q [m sisod ay) asIMIBYI0 ‘SSIDUBIBA uoisinoid 90iA19s AlRSSa03U BY) UR)UIBLU 0) SSIDUBDEA JO Jaquinu uo1j99]|0D SISBM

anowsal |m 91/510g slesodoud Buluueld ssauisng| ybiy o} anp jpuuosiad Aouaby JO 8Sn pue aWIPOAO JO SIS0D [BUOHIPPY[861 0 €10 Wil 892/ 2 |esodsiq a)sep

uonepodsuel)

19 8ueds}elS

(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
L winyng | 19Bpng
paJsinbay uopoy asuepep Jolepy Jo asne) jseq JduelBA aJLeg
souepEA pajosfoid| pesiaay

Z Xipuaddy

AIYYNANS - 8 HLNOW

S80UBNEA pUNy IOUN0Y
BULGHUGH 1obBpng

Page 185



jusuwiuoAug

(izro)  [(ker0)  |sies ave'S 8 Bujuueld |ejoL

yed abejusH

‘@oueleA ON|(000°0 0000 €120 €420 B fajle pleyusaln

"JuaLINoal S3DUBLEA

2q 0} pajoadxa Jou JNg M3IASI 0} aNUNU0D -aouenep Jouln|(Loo0)  |(€0070) sze0 8220 18410 jo ajebaibby
‘JuUaLINdaI

2q 0} Pajoadxa Jou Inq M3IASI 0} BNURUOD "8sea.ou| JYBi|s Ul pa)|nsal sey SHJOM JOJOBJIUOD gNg [BUONIPPY (L LO'0 1100 68€°0 8.€0 Aepn Jo swbry olland

(uonesauas

Ayouyos|3

pue sajis |iiypue

'sauibug 'S1S00 |ejuay Juawdinb3g pue asueusjuley B siieday Buionpal paso[o Suipnjour)

SEC) 10} S|9A37] UOIJBIBUSL) SWOIU| JOHUOW Ul |nySS800NS uaaq sey abuajieyd Juawwwod Jayun) g pouad 1v{800°0 (s00°0) G500 0900 saoinag ABiaug

‘Buniojuow ‘g)ep 0} sbuiaes Ye)s jo aaisn|oul aouewIoNad B

196pnq Aed Ajyjuow jo Led se pamairal aq |[IM uonejuswsajdwi snyeys a|buig Buimoljos paredo|le yebpng Aouedsea (150 0) (¥s0°0) S0 6250 voddng yuswabeuepy

"9DIAJ0S B} SS0JoB

abus|jeyo Jusw)wWod ulejuieW 0) BNUHRUOD "ssoueuen JouIN|(8100)  |(L100)  |EbP ysv'e uopoajoId dlignd
‘paJojiuow
Kj@so[o aq ||m sjaAa| awoou)| 984 Buluue)d ‘paroadxa uey) awooul 994 Buluueld Jo sjaas| Jaybiy panunuon|(290°0) [(690°0) {sSE’L vyl Buuueld
JUBWIUOIIAUT
»» Bujuueld
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
wuon wnpnQ | 19bpng
paiinbay uopoy aouelep Jofepy Jo asne’) ise | asueuep ELITY TS
eouBLEA pajosfold| pasiaey

AIVNIANNS - 8 HLNOW

S30UBLEA puny |;ouUNoy

¢ xipusddy BuUIo) oW 186png

Page 186



yInox

(sv00) _|eso'0 L0296 |vS1'96 % uogeanpg jejoL
20IM9g
Aieiqrq jooyos
‘doueleA ON|000°0 0000 S00°0 S00°0 S3[BM JSE3 YHON
uonewLlolu| g
"M31ARJ 0] BNURUOD "aoueleA JoUuIN|(z00'0)  [(8L0°0)  [LSL0 6910 Juswabeueyy |00Ydg
‘saoueleA Joujw Jayjo snid ‘suonduosqgns jo ayeydn jo Buuayybi i aouewWIOpad
*M3IABJ 0} BNURUOD ‘Jjels |ooyos yym pajeloosse s)soo [eba) [eulaixa ul uollonpay|(520°0) (1so0'0) |glLe0 ¥9€°0 g Bujuolssiwwon
*M3IA3J 0} BNUIUOY ‘sjosjuoo ainypuadxa paseasou|((Z100)  |(800°0) 8lLL 98l S32IABS YINOA
"MBIABI ) BnuUUOY 'S0UBLIBA JOUIN|000°0 0000 cel’o ceLo sjooyog Anjuag isig
(uoisinold g Buuueld
"MBIABI ) BnuuoY "aoueleA JoulN|(200°0)  |600°0 0140 1040 |00Yog) sS800Y
)GEF Jayuny e pajeald sjualo g jo Hoddns | 0} | u) aseatou) ue siy}
0) uonippe u| ‘JaquanopN Buunp paai@sal asem Juswesde|d Buibisws
ue pue sjuawaoe|d mau g 186png siy) pajoaye AjasiaApe 1aqojo0
‘anuiuod [m Buuoyuow pajelaq “leak| ul sjuswadeld AJunod Jo INO mau g “suonoaloid o) abueyd jueoubis
ay) Jnoybnouy) abueyd Aew syuswaoe|d uoneosnp3y e 9)ew ueod juswaoejd jeuonippe auo pue }abpng ajye|oa e si siyi [(600°0) 2010 LEL FAL RAR S82IAJOG UOISN|oUY
uoneonp3 Buinuguo)
"MBIA8BI 0} anuluod ‘0UBLBA JOUIN|OLO0 6100 8G/.°9¢€ 6€L°9€ ® 61- ¥| 'Alepuodsg
‘BuioBbuo st yoddns Asosiape Juawapinua Auea
1O SWSIUBYDAW AIBAIIRP 3y} JO M3IABL JBYUNS "awi) Jayoea) %01 au) uoneonp3 siesA
‘M3IA31 0} Bnuuo))| JaA0D 0) Juawspug Ale3 o) Juelb aseyd uolepuno4 J0O uoieso|ieay (0000 0000 918cy |918¢cr Aue3g g lewud
YINoA @ uoneanpy
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
il winyng | 39Bpng
paiinbay uopoy asueLeA Jofely jo asne) iseq aoueHEA RIS TS
souepEA peajoofoid| pasirey

Z Xipuaddy

AJVWNINNS - 8 HLINOW

SB0UBHEA puUnj 1oUNoy)
Bunonuol yobpng

Page 187



162°0 €81°0 6v5'8 99¢'8 8IUBUIBAOY) [€}0 |
aq 0} pajoadxa jou Jng MalAal 0} w::_Eoo ‘SaoueleA JOUIN|620°0 ¥E0°0 G86°'C 1S6°'E 121
‘Jua.unNodl juswabeuepy
2q 0} pajoadxa Jou JNQ M3IASI 0} SNURUOD ‘saoueLIRA JOUIN|120°0 12070 8810 1910 SpJooay
2q 0} pajoadxa Jou JNQ M3IASI 0} SNUIILOD ‘SaouBLIRA JOUIN|[GZ0°0 (20000) |zL2°0 6L2°0 saoineg Hoddng
aq 0} pajoadxa Jou INQ M3IASJ 0} SNURLOD ‘saoueLIe/ JOUIN| 1900 10070 €610 2610 JuawaInooid
aq 0} pajoadxa Jou INq MBIABI 0} BNUNUOD "sgouenep Joully|(2000)  |(€00°0)  |vEFO LEV0 Hpny [eusa|
aq 0} pajoadxa Jou INQ M3IASJ 0} SNURU0D ‘saouenep souiy|(600'0) l(oco0) |88l cL6’L $80IAI9G DljeIo0Waq
"(wozo'03)
‘1eak [eiouBUly SIY} J04 }S00 BuinNoal s1s09 Aouaby "(Wg|Q°'03) SooUBLBA JOUIW JaYJ0 0} anp puadsianp
uou JJo auo e s1 sabieyo pue| punose uonebi ‘sabJeyd pue| |e2o] punoJle uoieby] o) anp ainssaid wLgL'03|2LL°0 1910 ¥SL'L 1860 saolAIeg |eba
20UBUIBA0S)
S924N0S3aY
8€0°0 ¥£0°0 0.8'v 98’y g 8|doad |ejoL
"MB|ABJ 0} BNUiUOD "sgoueueA Jouly|(¢000)  }(S000)  |0L¥'2 SLy'2 @oueuid ajesodiod
"MBIAB) 0} anUuo) “SaouBlLEA J0UIN(Z¥0'0 6€0°0 0sy¢ Lev'e aoeyH
saa4nosay g sjdoad
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Wuon wnynQ | 3e6png
paiinbay uopoay aosueyep Jofepy jo esne) 1se aouepep ao|Alg
TP pejosfoid| pesiasy

¢ Xipusddy

AYVNANS - 8 HLINOW

S33UBHEA punj |IDUN0Y
Bulo) UG 186png

Page 188



abueyn

920°0 vZo v.0°0L 1286 leuopesjueBiQ |ejoL
'SOUBLIBA JOUIN| /200 £00°0 €61°1 0641 S30IAIBG saloed
‘aoueneA JOUN|¥000 9000 |(2ze'0)  |(82€0) | sediuas Buussuibug
ulyyIm awooul [euonippe pue sbulaes Aq Jasyo uaaqg sey ainssaid ay)
10 Ued -Auajsuasnp) ul jooyog Auepuodag mau ay) JO uoljRIapISUoIal
-ainssaid Bupunoal uou e s| siyj "ajqissod asaym 0} payul| awodul Jo sso| pajedionue 0} sajejal AouB)NSuoD Aoueynsuo)
Jeak-u) S}S00 9oNpal 0) UdYE) uaaq SeY Uonoy 9 ubisaqg Auadoid uo w0z 03 0 puadsiano pajoalosd ayi |8L0°0 1020 2962 1922 9 ubisaq Auadoid
‘soueLeA JOUIN|Y000  |0000  |(0L0'L)  |(0LO'M) S9lels3 B UoNENjeA
‘soueneA JOUIN|(€00°0)  [(€00°0)  |9500  |650°0 sjessy Ajunwwiod
"S@0UBLIEA JOUIW O} S3)BJaI WSO 03 "SISO JIxa
BuipioAe alojalay} mainal ay) jo Ued se ad1AIas ay} uiypm palkojdepal
uaaq A||NySSa00NS AABY OYM WES} 8y} JO Siaquiaw omj 4o} uoldajold
Ked o} selejal w1003 "AInf [nun paulewsal suonisod pajajap pauueld
8y} asneoaq ainssald 1a6pnq e se pajewsa Ajualind aiojaiay) s
Aousioye w2 03 @Yl Jo Yyeml suQ “Anf YiL pue aunr is|, usamiaq
‘pamalnal yluow auo 4o} 9|geAalyoeun sem Aoualolya pauue|d oy "malasl
Buiaq osje ale ainypuadxa Jo seale JaY)o ||| seo1nag ainsiaT] ay) jo uonejuawajdw ay) pue uohejuawajdwi sneig
‘Jusoelpe aunssaid ay} SpJEMO) SINQUIUOD [|IM SIY | a|buig usamaq Aejap ay) Aq pasneo ainssaid 0) sajejal WEZ0 03
‘Aenuer 1s| oy} uo paonpoaqul aq |m sabueyo| -ainssaud siy) qiosqe o) uondo Aiaaa Bunojdxa s| wesy ay) ybnoyye
Aue pue pamainal Bulaq ale syue| ainsie]| wW/g0 03 JO puadsiano UB SaDIAIBS 8INSIaT Joj uinno pajoafoid syl |/€00 /€00 0¥y oo 8 S90IAIBS 3INSI9T
"M81ABI 0} BNUUOD "aoueUe/ JOUIN|000°0 (z000) |sez0 1£2°0 saAlyoly Ajuno)
"MBIABI 0} BNUNUOD -aoueueA Joun((100°0)  [(PO0'0)  [8S0°0 2900 2019 SWNAsN
SJuaA3]
*® i) ‘suy
"MBIARI 0} 8nuuo) “aoueleA JOUN((010'0)  |600°0 ce8’L €28l '8 SaLe.qIT 2lignd
ebueys |euopesijuebio
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Huopw
paiinbay uopoy aoueuEA Jofely jo asne) Ise asueHEA uingng | 3ebpng asjAleg
souepep pejoefoid| pesirey

T Xipuaddy

AYVIWNNS - 8 HLNOW

S80UBUEA puny [OUN0y

BUOYUO} 19bpng

Page 189



Jipne [eou0}sIY O} UOHE|aJ Ul paAladal (WZ/0°03) JO S)eqal JJo 3uo
‘uoieonp3 pue ajelodio)) usamlaq

1|ds 8y} 109)ja1 0} sjenjoe jo Juswubijeal Jo }nsad e se ‘suolingquIuo)
pun4 uoISUad Y} UIYIM WG| 03 "}J0-8U0 aJe Yolym ‘Sapod }aays
20UB[e( JO M3IASI B PUB ‘SUOCIEN|EASI 9)BY J1}SaWOo(] UON [euoilippe 0}
uonela. ul (WwZ60°03) SWodu| ||Bjpulp) @)e10dioD [BUOHIPPY JUNOIDY
anuanay BuisnoH ay) o) pajejas w00 03 JO Suononpap ayuIs
"81/2102 uibaq |m sjasse sjooyos

Amuao 1s1.Z uo YN [euoiesado awooaq SI9SSE aY) Jaye Jeak ay)
suibaq pue Jasse ay} Jo a}l] 8y Jaao peauds s) Buimoliog [enuspnid
Aq papuny sjasse uo gy "aouepinb y4d|D Yyim aoueplodoe

Ul pamataal uaaq sey Aoljod Bununoooe JyIN siuawalinbal
Bumouloq pue saasasal ainjny Jo |9A3] au) pue awwelboid Jusawisaaul
aJnny ‘aonoe.d Bununoooe Juswuoiuodde Jsassjul ‘wioyel Apisqns

vdH BuipseBbas sapuiepasun se yons siojoe) Aq psjoaye aq ued aoueul
MaIASY Japun daay siy} ‘puadsiapun pajosfold Wy Gy 03 JUSW)SaAUl pue sueo [esuad|(8ag o) (158°0) 66512 osy'se ajeiodion B [enua)
aoueu|4
ajesodio) @ |enue)
(8200)  |(sz00) |zSbE lzee seAIngex3 4o1uD [e0L
*S3OUBLIBA JOUIW O} anp s (Wgz0 03) 8oue|jeq ay |
"SJUSWHWWOD aInypuadxa JO [eAOWSL By} 0} anp SI W/g0'03 ‘papuny
elb aq mou |Im Yolym S}S0D JO Uonedo||eal B 0) anp s| puadsiapun
"M@1A81 0} BNURUOD [siy} J0 W10 03 "(W/+0°03) puadsiapun ue Bumoys si nun Aaljod 8y |(820°0) (5200) ¢SL'E 122¢ SBANO3XT JBIYD
saApnoaxg jeiyn
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
uon uan. abpn
paiinbay uopoy asuepep Jofep jo asne) iseT aJueleA Wno | 3ebpng aojnleg
eouBLEA pejoefoid| pesinay

¢ xipuaddy

AYYWNINNS - 8 HLINOW

S80UBLEA pUNy [10UN0D
BULGHUGH obpng

Page 190



(1zg'0)  [(bio's)  [29V¥Se  [921°SSZ IvioL
aoueulj sjeiodion
(8990) [(Ls80) [665'¥Z [0S¥G2 % |eqjuad [gjo1
*9)IS }JOI0ApUEBS - P} S|EOINT JaWIO}
0} uolie|as ul WQb' 03 JO SIS0 pajabpnqun ‘pajwl| sl / 4o auQ
‘WL J JO SIS0D JUBLIISaAU|
uo aouejeq pajedionue ue Ag J9SH0 S| SAI0UBIOIYS 3DJOPIOM
‘Bunoyiuow Ajyluow BujoB-up| JO JUSWSASIYOE Japun aY] "MBIAB] 82I0pIOM JOYUN) pue suonesljdde
‘awwelboid Aouepunpay Aejunjop ayl| Aouepunpay Aejunjop [euonippe ybnoiy) paasiyoe aq o} pajedionue
J0 aseyd Jayuny e uni o} ssalboid ul Mou S YJOAA ale saloualolya aininy ybnoyj S0 SARBIASIUIWPY JO MBIAS)
*as10Jaxa| 8y} Joj W' | 3 JO JusWaAaIYORIBpUN ue ypm Jayiabo) G/ ul wogs 03 (panunuos) aoueui
snje)g a|6uig Jo ped se ‘Juswubljeas }1o6png| JO JUSWIBASIYOBISPUN UE 03|38 MOU PAASIUOE SSIOUBIONS S2I0PIOAN ajelodio) B [ehUID
(w3) (w3) (w3) (w3)
Hiuow wning | jebpng
paiinbay uonoy asuepep Jolepy jo asne) jse 90UBMEA LIV ETS
eouBLEA pejoeloid| pesiney

¢ Xipuaddy

AHVANNS - 8 HLNOW

SS3UELBA puUny |1oUnoy
BUUONUO 19bpng

Page 191



Page 192



€ XIpuaddy

Jorzo

jleyol)

*9AI9Sa) BU) Woly papuny uaaq sey (Aep 9 idy)
uoneswaldwi snjelg a(buig o) anp Aejap ayL
-AINr |nun pajajap aq jou pinoo sjsod jey) Jueaw
syl Ainp jnun pajuswsajdwi aq o} a|qe jou
SEM M3IASY 301AI9S Y} 8sneoaq a|geas|yoe
aq 0} Ajayjijun s1 Aouaidiya ay) Jo YiZL/L

€200

‘syjuawabuele JaA0d pue sejol 0} sabueyn - ainsian

| ebuey) [euogesiuebip

‘Gl 0z AMenuep | Aq mainay

's816I9UAS UO SUOHEPUBLILIOTA] SYEW ||IM SBaIE

panaiyoe Bulaq Jou Aousioiye 10) UOSEIY

jou Asuaioy)3

soInag au} Jo uonadwiod o Joelgns sbuines ovLlo 2o1M8s om) ay} Jo onsoubelp Butobuo ay) - saomag uoljepodsues] R auads)eals
: : : : paje|ay shemybiH - uoyjepodsuel] g auadsiesng
‘9L/G10¢C
woly £ aseud Jo Auanijap 104 wsiueyosw { } mainas
pasodoud ay) yim Jayjebo) ‘lequaydeg ul  |0€00 Sk-yl0z : uojjepodsuel] g auadsieals
JoUIGED 0) PojUBSaId SEM MOINGY 15| BU} JO Z 1994 WO} S3I0UBIIYS JO souUeleg }98| - aUads)aaNS
pue | aseyd jo uonjejuswajdw) ay} uo podal y
‘Buizisybiry . -sasnoy Buial pspoddns ¢ Buizisiybiy
ay} jo ped se pamaiaal Buleq smainay SO €200 - S30IAMBS |eljuapisay Ajunwwo)) pasueyud - 47 S80IABS (1003
(w3) peasiyoe

uonduasaq Aouaouyyg

oljopod

1¥vd

NI 3T18VAIIHOV AON3IOI443

ay} Jo ainjn} ay} :ad Juswadunouue [eLs)siuln

uoNeID0SSY PEOoY Junil Sa|e A\ YUON - 8uaosjeans

l | oso'L | | feso L]
"91/S1.02 Ul POABIYOE o4 .
uBD [9A3] JBUM SSBSSE 0} malaal Jepun Apuaund |000°L o unses & se sesssooid / s3 E>mm___occow wmbm_h\m_mrc_ aoueul{ 8)eI0dI0)) B [BhURD
"GL/y L0 Ul paAaIyoe aq o} Aleyijun Aousioly3 1o / SSIOIUILIPY [[€ 10 MIINSY
“oefoid ay} pajiels “gnH peoy YuniL
sey sjuswsabueue Juowabeuey peoy surnil  |oso'0 S[BAA IN 2Y) UM JUSLWIBA|OAUI WOJ) J4BUSq [BIDUBUIS uonepodsuel | g auaosleans

paaaiyde Buleq Jou Aousiolye J0) UoSeay

(w3) pansiyoe
jou Aouaioy3

uonduosaq Aouaoyg

ofjopod

J19VAIIHOV LON ADNIIDIHHT

CERIETRITE]

BULOYUOH 135png

Page 193



Page 194



APPENDIX 4

Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2014

Less - Base Level (inclusive of reduction of
£0.065m agreed as part of the 2014/15
budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less — estimate required from the amount
approved as part of Investment strategy as
per budget 2014/15 report

Add — Contribution from investment costs for
termination benefits accounted for in
2013/14

Less - Amount approved under delegated
powers reported in July 2014 monitoring
report

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected non pay underspend as at
Month 8

Total projected Contingency Reserve as
at 31% March 2015

Page 195

£m £m

11.161

(5.769)

5.392

(2.500)

0.745

(0.696)

2.941

1.014

3.955



Page 196



(1800)  |(rze-0) €110 L6v°0 t[ejo)

(e)eboibbe)

"M3IAS] PUE J0JUOLL 0} SNUNUOD ‘SagueueA JoulN|2y0 0 (0£0°0) Shv'Le Siv'ie SaJuBleA JaUyl0
“Jeak ay) Jo Japujewal 8y} Jo}
Jsod au) puny o} pasn aq jjim }a6png sy}
0] payruoai ale sjsod asuQ "pajly bBuleq

*MBIABI pUB J0)JjuoW 0} aNUNU0D) 194 J0u s)sod o) anp sbBuines Aoueoep [(612°0) (sez'0) 0000 G£Z0 sBuineg Aoueoep
"18bpnq
uey) alow Yge3 Buleq uinpno sieah
Ise| e Jseoalo} 9)e syll/sbuipiing vyH
|esouab uo s)S00 asueusulel B slieday
"M3IADS DDIAIBS BU) 0] aNp 3663 Aq

"MB3IABJ pUE J0}JIUOW 0} NUNUOY) (asu 0} pajoadxa ale S)S00 82IAI8S UBples) (5800 280°0 21670 0£8°0 S82IAI8G pIojpuET]
")963F JO Swodul paosnpal e ul Buynsal
alojalay) ‘sjueus) Aq paousuadxs sanss|
JUNO2oE 0} Ul 9)E) 0} POPUSLUE JOBIUOD

*MOIASI pUB J0JIUOW 0} aNUUOY)| pue pamalnal uaaqg seY 92IAI8S UBpIeS)(G80°0 €0L°0 (1£9°0) (y£2°0) aWOooU| |elauan)
‘"9 SYHH
paonpal ue ul Buynsas ajojalay) “solpes
suyjwz | Bumes 196pnq 1e pauodal uey)
Jamo| si Juawsie |eyded ay) 1ey) saunuspl

‘M3lAB] puE J0JUoW 0) 8nuuoy uolssiwaqns Apisgns jo uoie|Nd|en000°0 (681°0) 17A°) ¥0¥'9 Apisgng
‘sajes pioA ybiy o) sanp

"M3IAS] puB Jojluow 0} 8nuluo)| pajediofue uey) Jamo| si swodul abeses [(10°0) (550°0) (892°/2) (€L222) syuay

(w3) (w3) (w3z) (w3)
paiinbay uono aosueue asne .._uuMM 3 aoueue i) 196png JIAID
iNbaYy uondy LIBA jo ) oo:m_“_m> LeA pajoaloig pasinsy IR

S xipusddy

8 pouad - yoday asueuep Jofep YHH

Page 197



Page 198



Agenda Item 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE)
SUBJECT: ggllél\!](élL TAX AND BUSINESS RATE POLICIES FOR

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  Members are asked to approve various policies for the administration of
Council Tax and Business Rates for the financial year 2015-16.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The policies required by statute to be approved each year are :-

e Council Tax Discounts on second and long term empty homes
(section 3)

e Council Tax Discretionary discounts (section 4)

¢ Business Rates Discretionary Rate Relief (section 5)

e Business Rates Discretionary Rate Relief for Small Businesses
(section 6)

3.00 COUNCIL TAX ON SECOND AND LONG TERM EMPTY HOMES

3.01  Each year the Council is required to determine what discount, if any, is
awarded to second or holiday homes (known as Prescribed Classes A or B)
and long term empty properties (known as Prescribed Class C). The
prescribed Classes are :

e C(lass A — A property which is unoccupied and furnished but
occupation is prohibited by law for over 28 days each year.

e C(lass B — A property which is unoccupied but furnished and
occupation is not prohibited by law.

e C(lass C - A property which is unoccupied and substantially
unfurnished beyond the normal exempt period

3.02  The current policy is not to award discounts to any Prescribed Class and this

applies to the whole of the County area. This is also reflected in the 2015-16
Tax Base calculation.

Page 199



4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

5.00

5.01

COUNCIL TAX DISCRETIONARY DISCOUNTS

In accordance with section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
(as amended by section 76 of the Local Government Act 2003), the Council
has a general discretion to reduce the amount of Council Tax payable,
effectively granting a local Council Tax Discretionary Discount.

In exercising these discretionary powers the Council must act reasonably
having regard to all relevant considerations and the interests of all tax payers
as the cost of awarding a Discretionary Discount would in effect be borne by
other Council Tax payers.

It is recommended that the Chief Officer for Community & Enterprise and
Cabinet Member for Corporate Management consider discretionary discounts
through the use of delegated powers only in cases of civil emergencies and
natural disasters.

BUSINESS RATES - DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF

Discretionary Rate Relief for Charitable and Non Profit Making
Organisations is currently awarded on a continual basis, subject to a
minimum of 12 months and full financial year notice if any ratepayer is
impacted by a change in policy. Current policy is determined by the
following categories :-

e Premises used for charitable purposes by organisations specifically
registered with the Charity Commission. (20% discretionary 'top up'
relief is awarded, with the exception of shops operated by national
organisations, who receive 80% Mandatory Relief only).

e Premises used by non-profit making organisations that are treated as
charities, for the reason that they bear the same characteristics as
those organisations that are registered charities. This category consists
of Community Centres, Institutes and Village Hall, other than those
occupied by Precepting Authorities. (20% 'top up' relief is awarded)

e Premises occupied by sporting clubs, societies or other organisations
used for the purpose of non profit making and used for the purpose of
recreational, social welfare etc. (100% Discretionary Relief is
awarded with the exception of golf clubs, which are awarded 50%
Discretionary Relief)

e Premises not covered by any of the above categories, occupied by
non-profit making organisations but are used for the benefit of the
community and who are assessed on an individual basis based on
their merits.(Up to 100% Discretionary Rate Relief can be awarded)

Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 amends section 47 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988 to replace the limited circumstances in which
local authorities can currently give discretionary relief with a power to grant

Page 200



5.02

5.03

5.04

5.05

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03
7.00

7.01

relief in any circumstances.

This is subject to the condition that, except in the limited circumstances
specified, the local authority may only grant relief if it would be reasonable
to do so having regard to the interests of council tax payers in its area.
However, unlike other specific types of discretionary rate relief as detailed in
section 5.01 where the Welsh Government substantially fund the cost of rate
relief, the Council will be responsible for fully funding any other
discretionary discounts granted.

In exercising these discretionary powers the Council must act reasonably
having regard to all relevant considerations and the interests of all tax payers
as the full cost of awarding a Discretionary Discount would in effect be borne
by other Council Tax payers.

It is recommended that the Chief Officer for Community & Enterprise and
Cabinet Member for Corporate Management consider any applications
received for discretionary discounts falling outside of the scope of the policy
in section 5.01 to be considered on their own merits through the use of
delegated powers using the following criteria:-

e Requests for reductions will be required in writing from the ratepayer
or their appointed agents with a full business case and documentary
evidence in support of the request

e The Council’s finances allow for a reduction to be made.

e It must be in the interest of Council Tax payers for the Council to
grant such a reduction

e All other eligible discounts/reliefs have been considered and/or
awarded to the ratepayer

DISCRETIONARY RELIEF FOR SMALL BUSINESSES

The Welsh Government Small Business Rate Relief scheme together with the
Government's recent announcement to extend rate relief on a temporary basis
up to 31.March 2016 provides rate relief, financed by Welsh Government.

The Welsh Government Small Business Rate Relief scheme contains
provision to award discretionary 'top up' relief to small businesses although
the Council is required to meet the costs in full of any 'top-up' awards.

The current policy is not to award additional discretionary 'top-up' discounts
to small businesses.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to consider continuation of the current Council Tax
and Business Rate Policies for 2015-16, as follows:-

e Not to award Council Tax discounts on any prescribed class and that
this applies to the whole of the County area (3.02).

Page 201



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

e For the Chief Officer — Community & Enterprise and Cabinet
Member for Corporate Management to consider section 13a
discretionary discounts through the use of delegated powers (4.03).

e Discretionary rate relief for as set out (5.01).

e For the Chief Office — Community & Enterprise and Cabinet Member
for Corporate Management to consider any applications for Business
Rate discretionary discounts not within the scope of the existing
policy as set out in 5.01 through the use of delegated powers (5.05).

e Not to award discretionary 'top-up' discounts to small business (6.03).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

On the basis of a continuation of existing policies, costs will be contained
within budget.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

e Local Government Finance Acts 1988 & 1992
e The Non Domestic Rating (Discretionary Relief) Regulations 1989
(as amended)

Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
Email: david.barnes@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 202



Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 - 2017/18 AND

REVISION OF 2014/15 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present proposals for setting a range of prudential indicators in accordance
with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the
Prudential Code).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Prudential Code has been developed by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code of practice to
support local authorities in determining their programmes for capital
investment in fixed assets. Local authorities are required by Regulation to
have regard to the Prudential Code when carrying out duties under Part 1 of
the Local Government Act 2003.

2.02  The framework established by the Prudential Code is intended to support local
strategic planning, local asset management planning and robust option
appraisal. The objectives of the Code are to ensure, within a clear framework,
that the capital investments plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent
and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are taken in
accordance with good professional practice.

2.03 The Prudential Code sets out the indicators that must be used, and the factors
that must be taken into account in preparing such.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 General

3.01.1 The prudential indicators required by the Prudential Code are designed to
support and record local decision making; they are not designed to be
comparative performance indicators - the use of them in this way would be
likely to be misleading and counter productive. They are considered in parallel
with the treasury management indicators required by the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral
Guidance Notes, as reported elsewhere on this agenda.

Page 205



3.01.2

3.01.3

3.01.4

3.02

3.02.1

3.02.2

The Prudential Code recognises that in making capital investment decisions,
and in reviewing the prudential indicators, the Council must have regard to the
following:

e Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority

e Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning

e Value for money, e.g. option appraisal

o Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax and Council housing rents
e Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing

e Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan

The Code does not specify how the Council should have regard to these
factors, but instead concentrates on the means by which it demonstrates that
the proposals are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Affordability is the ultimate constraint on the amount that a local authority can
spend or borrow. In practice, when making a decision to invest in a capital
asset, the authority must do more than simply determine whether it can afford
the immediate cost. In order to ensure long term affordability, decisions have
to be prudent, and in the long term sustainable. Borrowing has to be prudent
because, since future interest rates and revenue streams are uncertain, it
must involve an element of risk. Furthermore, if the Council is unable to
deliver its capital programme, or to afford the cost of running and maintaining
the new facilities, the chosen level of capital investment will not be sustainable
in the long term. Prudence and affordability are related concepts.

The Prudential Code specifies that prudential indicators are required to be
calculated for the forthcoming financial year and two subsequent financial
years, this process links in with the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — Introduction of Self Financing

Agreement has been reached between the UK Government and the Welsh
Government to change the financing arrangements for council housing in
Wales from April 2015. Currently a negative subsidy system is in operation
which requires Flintshire to make annual payments of c£6m in negative
subsidy to Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury, along with the other 11
stock retaining authorities in Wales.

The agreement is expected to generate revenue savings allowing the Council
to increase its investment in existing stock, and support the delivery of
additional supply of housing. It will also provide more local accountability to
tenants.

Page 206



3.02.3

3.02.4

3.02.5

3.03

3.03.1

3.03.2

3.03.3

3.03.4

Introduction of self financing will end the negative subsidy system and annual
payments. The subsidy payments will be replaced with interest payments on
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans that the Council must borrow to exit
the subsidy system. The PWLB loans, called the settlement payment (a one-
off lump sum payment classed as capital expenditure), will be paid to Welsh
Government (WG) and on to UK Treasury.

WG have established an officer Steering Group and a number of work
streams to undertake the considerable amount of work involved to exit the
subsidy system by the 31st March 2015, which Flintshire has been contributing
to. Good progress has been made to date, and the work continues.

The settlement payment will be set with reference to PWLB interest rates on
31st March 2015 and therefore cannot be confirmed at this point in time. The
current projection for Flintshire is £92m, based on the latest interest rate
forecast. At this value the estimated annual revenue savings are £0.5m.
These figures will change up until 315t March and will be monitored closely.

Prudential Indicators for Capital Expenditure

Based on those resources currently allocated (including specific grants, but
excluding any rephasing of expenditure from 2014/15 to future years), the
estimates of capital expenditure to be incurred in 2015/16 (and the following
two years), are as indicated in the table below.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 50.359 17.348 7.819
Housing Revenue Account 113.620 25.606 28.520
Total 163.979 42.954 36.339

This is in line with the capital programme proposals recommended to
commence in 2015/16 in the Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16 to
2018/19 report which is included elsewhere on this agenda.

The 2015/16 HRA total includes the settlement payment required to exit the
HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this report.

The capital expenditure totals essentially provide the base financial data from
which all other indicators follow.

Page 207



3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

Prudential Indicators for Affordability

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for 2015/16
based on those expenditure assumptions outlined in the Council Fund and
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget report (both included elsewhere on
this agenda), are as included in the table below; these indicators of
affordability address the revenue implications of the Council’s financial
strategy.

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TONET REVENUE STREAM
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
% % %
Council Fund 57% 5.9% 6.1%
Housing Revenue Account 20.1% 26.4% 27.0%

The Council Fund net revenue stream is the amount to be met from Welsh
Government (WG) grants and local taxpayers, and the HRA equivalent is the
amount to be met from WG grants and from rent payers. The estimate of
financing costs includes the current commitments and the proposals included
in the capital programme report.

The HRA ratio, calculated in accordance with the Prudential Code, reflects the
increase in financing costs attributable to the settlement payment required to
exit the HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this report.
The ratio does not include the revenue savings as a result of no longer paying
negative subsidy which outweigh the increase in finance costs. As a result of
this change to the system the HRA expects to save £0.500m per annum.

The Prudential code requires that the estimate of the incremental impact of
capital investment decisions as proposed in the capital budget report, over
and above capital investment decisions that have previously been taken by
the Council, are reported in terms of their impact on Band D Council Tax and
Housing Rents.

The Council Fund Capital Programme contains no new capital investment
decisions.

The HRA Capital Programme contains capital expenditure funded by
unsupported (prudential) borrowing for; the settlement payment to exit the
HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this report,
achievement of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS), and building
new Council homes. However, the revenue savings as a result of no longer
paying negative subsidy, outweighs the increase in finance costs as a result of
the capital expenditure, meaning that these investment decisions haven’t had
an increasing impact on rent levels.

Page 208



3.05

3.05.1

3.05.2

3.05.3

Prudential Indicators for Prudence

Estimates of the capital financing requirement, for 2015/16 are:

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 181.758 194.278 194.662
Housing Revenue Account 119.308 125.797 134.731
Total 301.067 320.075 329.393

The capital financing requirement measures the Council’s underlying need to
finance capital expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability
arrangements. In accordance with best professional practice, the Council
does not associate debt with particular items or type of expenditure. The
authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and has adopted
the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and
Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Council has, at any point in time, a
number of cash flows both positive and negative, and manages its treasury
position in terms of its debt and investments in accordance with its approved
Treasury Management Policy and Strategy. The Treasury Management
Policy Statement 2013 - 2016 and the Treasury Management Strategy
2015/16 appear elsewhere on this agenda following consideration by the Audit
Committee in January 2015. In day to day cash management, no distinction
can be made between revenue cash and capital cash. External debt arises as
a consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not simply
those arising from capital spending. In contrast, the capital financing
requirement reflects the Council’s underlying need to finance capital
expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability arrangements.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the
following; gross debt and the capital financing requirement, as a key indicator
of prudence.

‘In order to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that debt does not, except in the
short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding
year plus the estimates of any additional financing requirement for the current
and next two financial years’.

Page 209



3.06

3.06.1

3.06.2

3.06.3

In November 2012 CIPFA issued an amendment to the Prudential Code
changing the indicator from net debt (total borrowing and other long-term
liabilities less any investments held) to gross debt. Following reflection that
comparing the capital financing requirement to the net position i.e., net of
investments, could potentially mask a position where an authority had
borrowed other than for a capital purpose and then subsequently invested the
surplus funds.

The Corporate Finance Manager reports no difficulty in meeting this
requirement for the future period to which the prudential indicators apply. This
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and all budget
proposals.

Prudential Indicators for External Debt and Treasury Management
2014/15 Revised Indicators

The Prudential Code requires that any revisions to indicators must be
approved by the body that set them in this case, Council.

The exit from the HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this
report will require the Council to borrow to fund the settlement payment. The
borrowing arrangements will be made on 31st March 2015, in the 2014/15
financial year, and the transaction will take place 2 days later on the 2" April
2015, in the 2015/16 financial year. It is therefore necessary to ensure that
the borrowing limits for both 2014/15 and 2015/16 are sufficient to complete
the transaction.

Both the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt need to
be revised from those approved by Council at its meeting of 18" February
2014. The tables below show the original estimate and revised Indicators.

AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
201415 2014/15
Estimate Revised
£m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 202.300 303.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 20.100 20.100
Total 222.400 323.200

Page 210




OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2014/15 2014/15
Estimate Revised
£m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 182.300 279.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 10.100 10.100
Total 192.400 289.200

3.06.4 As stated in 3.02.5 the settlement payment and therefore the associated

3.06.5

borrowing requirement cannot be confirmed until 31t March 2015, as the
calculation is based on the PWLB interest rate on that day. The operational
boundary has been increased to accommodate a settlement payment based
on rates being 0.5% lower than anticipated in the HRA budget report. The
authorised limit has been increased to accommodate the highest possible
settlement payment. The point at which the Council would decide not to
proceed with the introduction of self financing, as the costs of financing the
debt outweighs the revenue savings from no longer making negative subsidy
payments.

Council is asked to approve the revised Indicators for 2014/15.
2015/16 - 2017/18 Indicators

In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approves
the following authorised limits for its total external debt gross of any
investment for the next three financial years. These limits separately identify
borrowing from other long term liabilities such as finance leases. The Council
is asked to approve these limits and to delegate authority to the Corporate
Finance Manager, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect
movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long
term liabilities, in accordance with option appraisal and best value for money
for the authority. Any such changes made will be reported to the Council at its
meeting following the change.

AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 324.100 341.100 353.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 20.100 20.100 20.100
Total 344.200 361.200 373.200

Page 211




3.06.6

3.06.7

The authorised limits are consistent with the authority’s current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the capital programme report, and with its
approved Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16. They are based on the
estimate of most likely, prudent position with, sufficient headroom over and
above this to allow for operational management, for example unusual cash
movements. Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been taken
into account, as have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital
financing requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all
purposes.

Council is also asked to approve the following operational boundary for
external debt for the same period. The proposed operational boundary for
external debt is based on the same estimates as the authorised limit but
reflects directly the estimate of the most likely, prudent provision, without the
additional headroom included in the authorised limit to allow for example for
unusual cash movements, and equates to the maximum of external debt
projected by this estimate. The operational boundary represents a key
management tool for in year monitoring. Within the operational boundary,
figures borrowing and other long term liabilities are separately identified.
Council is also asked to delegate authority to the Corporate Finance Manager,
within the total operational boundary for any individual year, to effect
movement between the separately agreed figures for borrowing and other long
term liabilities, in a similar fashion to the authorised limit. Any such changes
will be reported to Council at its next meeting following the change.

OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 304.100 321.100 333.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 10.100 10.100 10.100
Total 314.200 331.200 343.200

It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the
authorised limit and operational boundary, since actual external debt reflects
the position at a point in time.

Council is asked to note that the authorised limit determined in 2015/16 (see

section 3.06.4 above) will be the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1)
of the Local Government Act 2003.

Page 212



3.06.8

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

The Prudential Indicator in respect of treasury management is confirmation
that the Council has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (as reported
elsewhere on this agenda). The aim of this indicator is to ensure that treasury
management is led by a clear integrated forward treasury management
strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members approve and recommend to County Council on 17th February
2015:

(@)  the Prudential Indicators for 2015/16 - 2017/18 and revised Indicators
for 2014/15 as detailed in Section 3 of the report

(b)  delegated authority for the Corporate Finance Manager to effect
movements between the separately agreed limits within the authorised
limit for external debt and the operational boundary for external debt
(3.06.5, 3.06.6)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 213



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government and CIPFA Papers.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 214


mailto:liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT)
CHIEF OFFICER (ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE)
(IRB)

SUBJECT: GREENFIELD VALLEY HERITAGE LOTTERY
PROJECT

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To inform Cabinet of the Greenfield Valley Uncovered Project and to seek
Cabinet approval to (i) submit a Round 2 application to the Heritage
Lottery Fund (HLF) and (ii) if successful, enter into a funding agreement
with the HLF.

2.00 BACKGROUND

Greenfield Valley Uncovered is an exciting project to redevelop and
interpret the Greenfield Valley Museum and Heritage Park.

2.01  Project Aims

e Better interpretation of buildings and collections

¢ New site signage, orientation and interpretation

e Enhanced access through improved pathways

e Employment of an activity leader and associated programme of
events and activities.

e Projected visitor increase of 30% to 39,000 visitors per annum.

¢ Inspire pride and build confidence in local communities

¢ Increase volunteering

2.02 Introducing the Project
Greenfield Uncovered will reveal the hidden history of this area and the
people who lived and worked here. At its heart is the role that Greenfield
played in the industrial revolution, which has shaped the world, as we
know it today.

The proposed works will improve access through better pathways and re-
designed entrances. The Visitor Reception building will be extended and
remodelled, offering improved visitor flow into the site. There will be
refurbishment and repair of historic buildings and the creation of new
flexible and interactive interpretation within the existing pay boundary. Site
signage, orientation and interpretation, including the use of digital media
will improve access to the wider site and uncover its fascinating history.

Page 215



2.03

3.00

3.01

3.02

An activity leader will be employed for three years to recruit and train
volunteers, who will develop new skills, take part in community-based
projects and deliver activities across the whole site. Many of the activities
will provide further resources and ways of interpreting the heritage for
other visitors, for example memories gathered during an oral history
project will be accessed through an audio point in the museum and drama
workshop participants will animate the historical spaces. Training will be
provided, enabling volunteers to learn, demonstrate and share traditional
skills, lead guided tours and facilitate creative work inspired by the site’s
powerful heritage.

The interpretation will include redisplayed collections, hands-on interactive
models, touchscreen interactives, large format film and browsing material
using archival evidence and living memory. Additional marketing activity
and publicity as well as website improvements are included in the costs of
the project.

At present, the site, though popular and active in providing educational
and family activities, is a greatly under-appreciated and underused
heritage resource. This project will enable the site to fulfil its potential to
become a dynamic visitor destination, valued by its community with a
higher regional profile. The new exhibitions will provide heritage learning,
while space for community engagement will revitalise the site and
stimulate economic development in an area that suffers from deprivation.

The estimated economic impact of visitors to Greenfield Valley Heritage
Park and Museum in 2011/12 was worth £400,000 to the local economy.
Should the proposed benefits of the ‘Greenfield Valley Uncovered’
development scenario be realised, these impacts could rise to just over
£625,000 per year.

CONSIDERATIONS

The Greenfield Valley Museum and Heritage Park is owned by FCC and
managed by the Greenfield Valley Trust (GVT) under a management
agreement dating from 1st July 1993. An evaluation of the agreement had
been ongoing for the past few years but had stalled due to external
factors.

A new review of the agreement is vital for the effective delivery of the
project and will be undertaken from March 2015. It will include a detailed
analysis of the feasibility of existing and new governance arrangements
and will be completed by September 2015.

The project received a Round 1 pass from the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF)
in 2013 to develop the project further. We are now ready to submit our
Round 2 HLF application, seeking £940,050 in funding. The project is a
joint project between FCC and the Greenfield Valley Trust. As such, both
partners must agree to comply with the HLF’s Terms of Grant. These are

Page 216



4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

standard terms relating to the continued public access to the site,

maintenance, insurance and grant repayment liabilities.

RECOMMENDATIONS

(i) That Cabinet approve the submission of a Round 2 application to the

HLF for £940,050 in funding.

(i) That if successful, Cabinet approve a funding agreement with the

HLF.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Project Costs

Project Management 20,000
Architectural & Landscape Improvements 322,600
Interpretation and Signage 377,650
Conservation of Collections & Curator hours 63,400
Contingency & Inflation (Capital costs) 68,600
Activity Costs 187,800
Non-cash contribution (volunteer time) 280,000
Total 1,320,050

Funding Breakdown

HLF® 940,050

GVT 30,030 (secured)

FCC 20,800 (secured)
Fundraising 50,000 (£3k secured to date)

Long-term Financial Impact
Grant repayment liabilities relating to continued
maintenance and insurance of the site.

public access,

It is estimated that the minimum basic requirements to keep the pay
boundary open to the public, provide minimal staffing, maintenance,
operational costs and insurance are in the region of £145,000 per annum.

This cost can be offset by continuing to charge for entry. At present the
site benefits from an income of around £90,000 per annum, which comes

from entry costs, gift shop takings and some lettings.

The costs of the management and maintenance of the wider Heritage Park
and elements within (Watercourses, Scheduled Ancient Monuments etc)

are not included in this figure.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

There are no anti-poverty impacts from this report.

Page 217



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

There are no environmental impacts from this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

There are no equalities implications from this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

There are no personnel implications from this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Consultation has been undertaken with the Greenfield Valley Trust and its
partners in the development of the HLF bid.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Greenfield Connections

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

As referred to in the report.

Contact Officer: Sophie Fish
Telephone: 01352 714 172
Email: sophie.fish@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 218



Appendix 1 — Greenfield Valley Uncovered Project Visuals

Greenfield Connections

™, L o W

6T¢ abed



Industrial People | S g o

Coleshill Barn

i |
,,,,,

A
lempoe AT Family life llll hanges in sdtial Degcline
R gcﬁ@u Ve Tian Sl strjlcture
v: Q\l :~ m I,,,

QW‘I’IL/Q‘{’DM/GEK ; |Wltﬁ DISPUS .

o MixtwE OF AV, Touchseday3 , aowvhe]
UGHTBRES B Ale MUWT-Fumtey) BISKIAM



‘D
>
()

ppu s aldosd oy e M
/‘ ‘,
“A

Industrial People

Coleshill Bam

Page 221



2ce abed

INndustrial People

Coleshill Barn

Battery Row kitchen

Working Conditions



Ome DS o -

FAuaTui oedars PSged L e

o W MBS -

Abbey Barn

, E Agricultural Practices
|
\



| Mb%m G pot
Agricultural Practices | = - Ea
Combine Barn [] E A LR ©
L < WU ARG
o |

QUM ¢ ST - COVBINE- MIFIRE .

DS T

W=
1

Plan

Display elevation



Greenfield Valley - Identity and colourway

Baumann Creation

Farrow & Ball
URERAS RADICCHIO
Farrow & Ball
BLAZER 212
T
QD
«Q
@
N
N
” D
l
|
Dulux Farrow & Ball Baumann Creationl Dulux Farrow & Ball
336y 46/469 PITCH BLUE 220 ULTRA 412

Dulux
40yy 76/112 BABOUCHE 223 70YR 16/345



Greenfield Valley - Orientation and Interpretation within the Pay Boundary

POV

e\ay

) b

RS

By Wyd h

Warae

Indoor Interpretation Panel

Croeso i Dyffryn
o, Maes Glas

9¢¢ abed

Building Sign
End view Front elevation
Building Plaque Welcome Orientation Panel Fingerpost Outdoor Interpretation Panel



Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: 17™H FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: CHANGING TIMES: HELPING FLINTSHIRE'S TOWN
CENTRES ADAPT TO A CHANGING WORLD -
RECOMMENDATIONS.

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present to Cabinet the recommendations of the Environment Overview
and Scrutiny Committee in relation to the “Changing Times: Helping
Flintshire’s Town Centres adapt to a Changing World” workshop held on 14
July 2014.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee received a report in
January 2014 to consider how the Environment Overview & Scrutiny
Committee could support the rejuvenation of town centres and High Streets.

202 It was agreed that a workshop would be held involving a range of
stakeholders including all Members of the Council, officers from relevant
Flintshire County Council departments, Town Council representatives, Town
Centre Managers, Landlords and Business representatives.

2.03 A workshop was held at Theatr Clwyd on 14 July with over 45 delegates in
attendance representing a range of stakeholders. Presentations were given by
representatives of the Centre for Regeneration Excellence Wales, Towns
Alive and the Council’s Economic Development department.

2.04  Following the presentations, delegates formed into three discussion groups
to consider what the top five priorities the Council and its partners should
focus on in the next three years to support the revitalisation of town centres
and high streets. The feedback was presented in a report to the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 17 September 2014.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 In summary, the groups recognised the challenges that town centres
in Flintshire, and across the UK, are facing. Whilst this is largely a

Page 227



3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

result of changing consumer behaviour and business decision-making
the role of the public sector as facilitators of positive change was
highlighted and widely supported. The groups felt that the focus for
this facilitation should be on:
o effective town centre management, co-ordinating the work of
the different stakeholders;
e developing opportunities for investment through land assembly
and proactive planning;
e encouraging appropriate business investment and enabling
High Streets to adapt through the planning system;
e maintaining effective communication with communities and
businesses;
e increased promotion.

Many of these areas of work are already underway and have met with
considerable success over recent years, including the Flint
regeneration process, regeneration in Deeside and land assembly in
Buckley. The challenge for the Council will be balancing the clear
desire from the stakeholders at the workshop for this to be increased
and accelerated against the need to manage scarce resources in the
future.

The Environment Overview & Scrutiny considered the feedback from
the workshop at their meeting on 17 September and agreed to put
forward a number of recommendations to Cabinet for consideration. It
is therefore recommended that the Council should:

e review town partnership structures to ensure continued
effectiveness and build upon the inter-disciplinary internal team
approaches already used in major regeneration programmes;

e review and improve communication channels with town centre
stakeholders and the wider regeneration sector;

e use the opportunity offered by the development of the Local
Development Plan to create a flexible planning framework to
support the changing roles of the town centres;

e maximise the use of external funding in supporting town centre
regeneration; and

e review and improve the marketing of Flintshire and of the town
centres.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet considers and accepts the recommendations offered in 3.03.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

Page 228



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Town centres play a key role in providing accessible goods and
services for the most vulnerable.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Vibrant town centres support a large local business community and supply
chain and facilitate local purchasing by residents. The quality of the built
environment is a major factor in the quality of life of residents.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Vibrant town centres provide a range of vital local services which is
especially important for those without access to private transport.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Any changes to town centre action plans will require consultation.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

APPENDICES

None.
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Reports to Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee January and
September 2014.

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Telephone: 01352 702320
Email: Robert.Robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 229


mailto:Robert.Robins@flintshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS
COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
FEBRUARY 2015 TO JULY 2015

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
February
February
U
oint Community | 2 February 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Coleg Cambria Presentation
rofile & Members of the Committee to
pBartnerships and receive a presentation from
felong Learning Coleg Cambria
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
Environment 11 February 2015 Community and Flintshire Business Week I’
Overview & Scrutiny Enterprise To provide Members with an o)
Committee update on the Flintshire ('I:;
Business Week 2014

Xauuy epu



COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny

11 February 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Environment Forward Work
Programme

Committee To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Corporate 12 February 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring

Resources Overview 2014/15 (Month 8)

Scrutiny To provide Members with the

@ommittee Revenue Budget Monitoring

cl\Ju 2014/15 report as at month 8.

I}Borporate 12 February 2015 People and Resources | Update on the Development

Resources Overview of the People Strategy 2015 -

& Scrutiny 18.

Committee To provide an update to

Members on the key themes
and priorities for the next phase
of the People Strategy, the
outcomes from the Member
consultation exercise, and the
next steps to finalise the
strategy content.




BUDGET 2015/16

To present the final revenue
budget proposals for the
Council Fund for 2015/16 for
recommendation to Council.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Corporate 12 February 2015 People and Resources | Performance Appraisal
Resources Overview Competency Based Model.
& Scrutiny To provide members with
Committee details of the revised
competency based appraisal
and talent assessment models
and the arrangements and
timeframes for completion of
the same for senior managers.
gorporate 12 February 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Forward Work Programme
esources Overview (Corporate Resources)
g Scrutiny To consider the Forward Work
ommittee Programme of the Corporate
w Resources Overview &
Scrutiny Committee.
Cabinet 17 February 2015 Chief Executive's COUNCIL FUND REVENUE Strategic Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




Strategy 2015/16

To present to Members the
draft Treasury Management
Strategy for 2015/16 for
recommendation to Council.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 February 2015 Finance Council Fund Capital Strategic Leader of the
Programme 2015/16 and Council and
Indicative Funding Cabinet Member
To propose the Council Fund for Finance
Capital Programme for 2015/16
with indicative funding for
future years
UOabinet 17 February 2015 Community and HRA Revenue Account Strategic Cabinet Member
g Enterprise 2015/16 & Capital for Housing,
[0 Programme 2015/16 Leader of the
N To present for approval the Council and
ﬁ draft HRA Budget for 2015/16 Cabinet Member
and Capital Programme for Finance
2015/16.
Cabinet 17 February 2015 People and Resources | Treasury Management Strategic Leader of the

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 February 2015 People and Resources | Prudential Indicators 2015/16 | Operational Leader of the
and 2017/18 and Revision of Council and
the 2014/15 Prudential Cabinet Member
Indicators for Finance
To present proposals for
setting a range of Prudential
Indicators in accordance with
the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities
o (the Prudential Code).
%abinet 17 February 2015 People and Resources | Minimum Revenue Provision | Operational Leader of the
N 2015/16 Policy Council and
w To present proposals for the Cabinet Member
a1 setting of a prudent Minimum for Finance

Revenue Provision (MRP) for
the repayment of debt in
2015/16, as required under the
Local Authorities (Capital
Finance and Accounting)
(Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2008 (‘the 2008
Regulations’)




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 February 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2014/15 (Month 8) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
most up to date revenue for Finance
budget monitoring information
(Month 8) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
. Account in 2014/15.
g:abinet 17 February 2015 Community and Council Tax and Business Operational Cabinet Member
) Enterprise Rate Policies for 2015-16 for Corporate
N Cabinet to approve various Management
8 statutory policies for the
administration of Council Tax
and Business Rates for 2015-
16.
Cabinet 17 February 2015 Education and Youth Queensferry Campus Project | Strategic Cabinet Member

- Pause & Review

To inform Members of the
findings following the pause
and review into the
Queensferry Campus Project
and seek approval for the next
steps.

for Education




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 February 2015 Planning and GREENFIELD VALLEY Operational Deputy Leader of
Environment HERITAGE LOTTERY the Council and
PROJECT Cabinet Member
To inform Cabinet of the for Environment,
Greenfield Valley Uncovered Cabinet Member
Project and to seek Cabinet for Education
approval to (I) submit a Round
2 application to the Heritage
Lottery Fund (HLF) and (ii) if
T successful enter into a funding
8 agreement with the HLF.
D
@abinet 17 February 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Changing Times: Helping Operational
~ Flintshire's Town Centres

Adapt to a Changing World -
Recommendations

To present to Cabinet the
recommendations of the
Environment Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in relation
to the Changing Times: Helping

Flintshire's Town Centres adapt

to a changing world workshop
held on 14 July 2014




To present for approval the
draft HRA Budget for 2015/16,
and HRA

Business Plan developed for
the introduction of self-
financing in April 2015.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 17 February 2015 Chief Executive's COUNCIL FUND REVENUE
Council BUDGET 2015/16
To present the final revenue
budget proposals for the
Council Fund for 2015/16 for
recommendation to Council.
Flintshire County | 17 February 2015 People and Resources | Council Fund Capital
“Oouncil Programme 2015/16
g To present the Annual Council
) Fund Capital Programme for
N 2015/16 and indicative funding
od levels to 2018/19.
Flintshire County | 17 February 2015 Chief Executive's Housing Revenue Account
Council 2015/16 & Capital
Programme 2015/16




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Flintshire
Council

County

17 February 2015

People and Resources

Prudential Indicators 2014/15
to 2016/17

To present to Council the
recommendations of the
Cabinet in relation to the
setting of a range of Prudential
Indicators.

Flintshire
_80unci|
o))

6EC 9b

County

17 February 2015

Chief Executive's

Minimum Revenue Provision
2015/16

To present to Council the
recommendations of the
Cabinet in relation to the
setting of a prudent Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP) for
the repayment of debt.

Flintshire
Council

County

17 February 2015

Chief Executive's

Treasury Management
Strategy 2015/16

To present to Council the
recommendations of Cabinet in
relation to

Treasury Management
Strategy for 2015/16.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

24 February 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Review of Strategic Housing
Partnership

To review the Strategic
Housing Partnership

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

24 February 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Work of RSL’s operating in
Flintshire
To enable the Committee to

o meet with representatives of

g _Hou;ing Associations operating
[0 in Flintshire.

INJ

%ousing Overview &
crutiny Committee

24 February 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Supporting People
Commissioning Plan

To consider the Supporting
People Commissioning Plan




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

o
QO
(@]
D

24 February 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Housing Act 2014 (Wales) -
Homelessness and Power to
Disregard the test of
intentionality

To explain the Policy intent of
this new power and seek
Member's support for the
position that the Council
proposes it implements with
regard to disregarding the
homelessness intentionality
test from April 2015.

[ﬁousing Overview &
FScrutiny Committee

24 February 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Foward Work Programme
(Housing)

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Housing
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

26 February 2015

Organisational Change

Leisure Services Assets -
Scoping Report

To consider the Council's
approach to sustaining leisure
assets




Council's Pay Policy Statement

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 26 February 2015 Education and Youth Review of School Service
Overview & Scrutiny Level Agreements
Committee To inform Members of the
review of Service Level
Agreements for Schools repairs
and maintenance.
Lifelong Learning | 26 February 2015 Organisational Change | Repairs and Maintenance
Overview & Scrutiny Prudential Borrowing
g)ommittee To inform Members of options
) around prudential borrowing
INJ
ifelong Learning | 26 February 2015 Education and Youth Learner Outcomes
verview & Scrutiny To provide Members with a
Committee summary of learner outcomes,
including information on
attendance and exclusions
March
Flintshire County | 3 March 2015 People and Resources | Pay Policy Statement
Council To seek approval on the




To approve Council Tax levels
for 2015-16

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 3 March 2015 Governance Officer's Code of Conduct
Council To consider a recommendation
from the Constitution
Committee to adopt a revised
Officer's Code of Conduct.
Flintshire County | 3 March 2015 Governance Annual Report of the
Council Independent Remuneration
Panel for Wales (IRPW)
o To inform Members of the
Q contents of the annual report
Q issued by the IRPW concerning
(D 1]
N the payment of Members.
N allowances for the Council year
w 2015/16
Flintshire County | 3 March 2015 Governance Clwyd Pension Fund
Council Governance
To provide Members with a
proposal to create a Local
Pension Board for the Clwyd
Pension Fund
Flintshire County | 3 March 2015 Community and Council Tax Setting for 2015-
Council Enterprise 16




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Social & Health
Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

-
O
o

5 March 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
relevant to the Social & Health
Care Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. The report covers
the period October — December
2014.

NSommunity Profile &
artnerships

Overview & Scrutiny

Committee

9 March 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Quarter 3 ImprovementPlan
Monitoring Report (CP & P)
To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
relevant to the Community
Profile & Partnerships
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. The report covers
the period October — December
2014.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Joint Community
Profile &
Partnerships and
Lifelong Learning
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

9 March 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Community Profile &
Partnerships Forward Work
Programme

To consider the Forward Work
Programme of the Community
Profile & Partnerships
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee.

orporate
esources Overview

% Scrutiny
N

ommittee

™~

lw |

12 March 2015

People and Resources

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 (Month 9)

To provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 9.

(

Corporate
Resources Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

12 March 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report
(Corporate Resources)

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
relevant to the Corporate
Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. The report
covers the period October —
December 2014.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

17 March 2015

Chief Executive's

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report

Provide an update of progress
against the Improvement Plan
as at the end of quarter 1.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Cabinet

9t¢ abed

17 March 2015

People and Resources

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 (Month 9)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 9) for the Council Fund
and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2014/15.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance

Cabinet

17 March 2015

People and Resources

Capital Programme 2014/15
(Month 9)

To provide Members with the
Month 9 (end of December)
capital programme information
for 2014/15.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

17 March 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Flintshire's Strategic
Housing and Regeneration
Programme (SHARP) -
Update)

To provide an update to
Cabinet on Flintshire's
Strategic Housing and
Regeneration Programme
(SHARP) and seek approval to
progress the next key stages of
the procurement to appoint a
development partner.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Housing

abinet

L¥c|obed

17 March 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Enforcement of the
environmental powers under
the Anti-Social Behaviours,
Crime and Policing Act 2014
This report is to highlight to
Cabinet the changes made by
the Anti-Social Behaviour
Crime and Policing Act 2014
and to delegate to the most
appropriate Chief Officer the
exercise of the powers therein.

Operational




Arrangements 2016/17

To advise members of the
outcome of the statutory
consultation exercise on the
admission arrangements for
September 2016 and to
recommend approval

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 17 March 2015 Governance Webcasting of Member Operational Cabinet Member
Meetings for Corporate
For Cabinet to consider a Management
recommendation from the
Constitution Committee that the
Council implement webcasting
of those Member meetings of
most interest to the public with
g-? officers investigating ways of
Q doing so within available
® staffing resources.
N
&
Cabinet 17 March 2015 People and Resources | Workforce Information Operational Cabinet Member
Reports Quarter 3 2014/15 for Corporate
Workforce Information Reports Management
Quarter 3 for Cabinet
Cabinet 17 March 2015 Education and Youth School Admission Operational Cabinet Member

for Education




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Audit Committee

18 March 2015

People and Resources

Treasury Management
2014/15 Update

To provide Members with a
quarterly update on matters
relating to the Council's
2014/15 Treasury Management
Strategy up to the end of
February 2015.

_6udit Committee

67¢ abe

18 March 2015

Governance

Wales Audit Office - Annual
Financial Audit Outline
2014/15

To provide the Audit
Committee with the Wales
Audit Office - Annual Financial
Audit outline for the audit of the
Council's accounts for 2014/15
and those of the Clwyd
Pension Fund.




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

abed

[\
L4

19 March 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report
(Environment)

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
relevant to the Environment
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. The report covers
the period October — December
2014.

gnviron ment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

19 March 2015

Community and
Enterprise

Communities First Update
To receive an update on the
work of Communities First

Housing Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

24 March 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
relevant to the Housing
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee. The report covers
the period October — December
2014.




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Lifelong Learning | 26 March 2015 Education and Youth National Model for School
Overview & Scrutiny Improvement
Committee To consider the National Model
for School Improvement
Lifelong Learning | 26 March 2015 Education and Youth Year End Chief Officer
Overview & Scrutiny Performance Reports
Committee To consider the 2014/15 Year
End Service Performance
o Reports produced at Chief
Q Officer level for their respective
% portfolios

Mfelong Learning
Fverview & Scrutiny
Committee

26 March 2015

Overview and Scrutiny

Quarter 3 Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report (Lifelong
Learning)

To note and consider elements
of the 2014/15 Improvement
Plan Monitoring Report
relevant to the Lifelong
Learning Overview and
Scrutiny Committee. The report
covers the period October —
December 2014.

April




Care Overview &
Scrutiny Committee

Performance Reporting

To enable members to fulfil
their scrutiny role in relation to
performance monitoring

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 14 April 2015 Governance Community Review - Flint
Council Mountain
For Council to consider a report
issued by the Local Democracy
& Boundary Commission for
Wales seeking views on three
options for community
boundaries for the Flint
U Mountain area.
&
M@orporate 16 April 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring
Mesources Overview 2014/15 (Month 10)
Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 10.
Social & Health | 16 April 2015 Overview and Scrutiny | Social & Health Q3




Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

Transportation

To review the Streetscene
standards (including drain
cleaning policy & weeding
policy, cycle path maintenance,
flytipping, recycling e.g.
tetrapak, etc.)

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 21 April 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2014/15 (Month 10) Council and
To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
most up to date revenue for Finance
budget monitoring information
(Month 10) for the Council
Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account in 2014/15.
_Babinet 21 April 2015 Governance Community Review - Flint Strategic Cabinet Member
Q Mountain for Corporate
Q For Council to consider a report Management
D .
N issued by the Locall ngocracy
ol & Boundary Commission for
w Wales seeking views on three
options for community
boundaries for the Flint
Mountain area.
Environment 23 April 2015 Streetscene and Streetscene Next Steps




Scrutiny Committee

Enterprise

Involvement

To consider tenants
satisfaction results and the
involvement of tenants in
service improvements.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Environment 23 April 2015 Streetscene and Review of Winter
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation Maintenance
Committee To undertake a 2 yearly review
of the Winter Maintenance
Policy
Environment 23 April 2015 Streetscene and Highways Asset
Overview & Scrutiny Transportation Management Planning
Tommittee (HAMP) and Local
g Subsidence Schemes
[0 To review the HAMP document
N approved in 2012 and identify
E sites within the County
experiencing subsidence
issues.
Housing Overview & | 24 April 2015 Community and Update on Tenant

May




2014/15 report as at month 11.

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 12 May 2015 Governance Schedule of Member
Council Remuneration
The purpose of the report is to
approve the Council's Schedule
of Member Remuneration for
2015/16
Flintshire County | 12 May 2015 Governance CONSTITUTIONAL
Council MATTERS: COMMITTEES
A AND OUTSIDE BODIES
(@] To deal with those matters
@ which require decisions at the
@ Annual Meeting of the County
o Council in accordance with
Council Procedure Rule
1.1(vii)-(xiv). Those matters are
set out in separate paragraphs.
Corporate 14 May 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring
Resources Overview 2014/15 (Month 11)
& Scrutiny To provide Members with the
Committee Revenue Budget Monitoring




Transportation

To seek Cabinet approval of
the Council's Vehicle Tracking
Policy

COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Cabinet 19 May 2015 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan Strategic Cabinet Member
To approve the draft for Corporate
Improvement Plan 2015/16 Management
prior to final publication in
June.
Cabinet 19 May 2015 People and Resources | Revenue Budget Monitoring | Operational Leader of the
2014/15 (Month 11) Council and
Y To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
g most up to date revenue for Finance
@ budget monitoring information
N (Month 11) for the Council
g Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account in 2014/15.
Cabinet 19 May 2015 Streetscene and Vehicle Tracking Policy Operational Deputy Leader of

the Council and
Cabinet Member
for Environment

June




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Environment
Overview & Scrutiny
Committee

4 June 2015

Planning and
Environment

Year End Chief Officer
Performance Reports

To consider the 2014/15 Year
End Service Performance
Reports produced at Chief
Officer level for their respective
portfolios

Corporate

esources Overview
g Scrutiny
%ommittee

N

11 June 2015

People and Resources

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 (Month 12)

To provide Members with the
Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 report as at month 12.

[8x]

~Jorporate
Resources Overview
& Scrutiny
Committee

11 June 2015

People and Resources

Year End Chief Officer
Performance Reports

To consider the 2014/15 Year
End Service Performance
Reports produced at Chief
Officer level for their respective
portfolios




COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE

CHIEF OFFICER
PORTFOLIO

AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE
OF REPORT

REPORT TYPE
(Strategic or
Operational)

(Cabinet only)

PORTFOLIO
(Cabinet only)

Cabinet

abed

16 June 2015

Chief Executive's

LSB & Strategic Partnerships
Performance - End of Year
2014/15

To note and endorse the end of
year assessments for:

- the progress of the Local
Service Board Priorities and its
key Strategic Partnerships and;
- the priorities for each of the
Strategic Partnerships for the
year ahead.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

gabinet

16 June 2015

Chief Executive's

Year End Improvement Plan
Monitoring Report (2014/15).
Provide an update of progress
against the Improvement Plan
as at the end of quarter 1.

Strategic

Cabinet Member
for Corporate
Management

Cabinet

16 June 2015

People and Resources

Revenue Budget Monitoring
2014/15 (Month 12)

To provide Members with the
most up to date revenue
budget monitoring information
(Month 12) for the Council
Fund and the Housing
Revenue Account in 2014/15.

Operational

Leader of the
Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




COMMITTEE MEETING DATE CHIEF OFFICER AGENDA ITEM & PURPOSE REPORT TYPE PORTFOLIO
PORTFOLIO OF REPORT (Strategic or (Cabinet only)
Operational)
(Cabinet only)
Flintshire County | 23 June 2015 Chief Executive's Improvement Plan
Council To approve the draft
Improvement Plan 2015/16 for
final publication.
July
Cabinet 14 July 2015 People and Resources | Capital Programme 2014/15 Operational Leader of the
(Outturn) Council and
;? To provide Members with the Cabinet Member
Q outturn capital programme for Finance
(I\D‘ information for 2014/15.
&Babinet 14 July 2015 People and Resources | Prudential Indicators - Actual | Operational Leader of the

2014/15

To provide Members with
2014/15 (actual) Prudential
Indicator figures as required
under the Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local
Authorities (the Prudential
Code).

Council and
Cabinet Member
for Finance




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

	5 Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16 and Indicative Funding
	Enc. 1 for Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16 and Indicative Funding
	Enc. 2 for Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16 and Indicative Funding
	Enc. 3 for Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16 and Indicative Funding

	6 Housing Revenue Account 2015/16 & Capital Programme 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for HRA Revenue Account 2015/16 & Capital Programme 2015/16
	Enc. 2 for HRA Revenue Account 2015/16 & Capital Programme 2015/16

	7 Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

	8 Queensferry Campus Project - Pause & Review
	Enc. 1 for Queensferry Campus Project - Pause & Review
	Enc. 2 for Queensferry Campus Project - Pause & Review

	9 Minimum Revenue Provision 2015/16 Policy
	10 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 8)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2014/15 (Month 8)

	11 Council Tax and Business Rate Policies for 2015-16
	12 Prudential Indicators 2015/16 and 2017/18 and Revision of the 2014/15 Prudential Indicators
	13 GREENFIELD VALLEY HERITAGE LOTTERY PROJECT
	Enc. 1 for GREENFIELD VALLEY HERITAGE LOTTERY PROJECT

	14 Changing Times: Helping Flintshire's Town Centres Adapt to a Changing World - Recommendations
	 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME - COUNTY COUNCIL, CABINET, AUDIT AND OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - FOR INFORMATION

